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GREG CROMER 

MAYOR P.O. Box 828, Slidell, Louisiana 70459 
Telephone (985) 646-4333 

Fax (985) 646-4209 

December 8, 2023 

To the Honorable Mayor Greg Cromer, Members of the Slidell City Council and 
Citizens of the City of Slidell: 

State law requires that all governments publish within six months of the close of each fiscal 
year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that deadline, we 
hereby issue the annual comprehensive financial report of the City of Slidell, Louisiana (the 
"City") for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City. 
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability 
of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making 
these representations, management of the City has established a comprehensive internal 
control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, 
or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the financial 
statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not 
outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been 
designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements 
will be free from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Ericksen Krentel, L.L.P., a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has audited the 
City's financial statements. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 are 
free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating 
the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon 
the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unmodified opinion that the 
City's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditors' report is presented as the first component 
of the financial section of this report. 
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The independent audit of the financial staternents of the City was part of a broader, federally 
mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not 
only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's 
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. 
These reports are included in the Single Audit Section of this report. 

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction. overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the fortn of Management's Discussion and 
Analysis (MD&A ). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and 
should he read in conjunction with it. The City's MD&A can he found immediately 
thllowing the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the Governnient 

Slidell, the largest mutheipality in St. Tammany Parish. was founded in 1888. The City's 
system of government is established by its Home Rule Charter, which was adopted in 1978. 
The Louisiana Constitution prohihits the state legislature from enacting any law affecting 
the structure, organization. or distribution of the power and functions of any local 
subdivision that operates under a Home Rule Charter. 

The City has a Mayor-Council fonn of government. The governing council is responsible, 
among other things, for passing ordinances and adopting the budget. The Mayor is 
responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing council, for 
overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government, and for appointing the heads of the 
various departments. The council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members and 
the Mayor serve fimr-year terms and are limited to two consecutive tenns. Seven of the 
council members are elected hy district. The Mayor and the two remaining council members 
are elected at large. 

The City provides a full range of services including police protection, water and sewer 
services: airport facilities: the construction and maintenance of highways, streets. drainage 
and infrastructure: recreational activities and cultural events. The financial reporting entity 
consists of the primary government and other organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable. The City is financially accountable fbr three legally 
separate economic development district's. The Fremaux Economic Development District, the 
Camellia Square Economic Development District, and the Nmhshore Square Economic 
Development District are reported separately within the City's financial statements. 
Additional infortnation on these legally separate entities can be found in the notes to the 
financial statements (see Note 17). 



The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City's financial planning and control. All 
depanments of the City are required to submit requests ibr appropriation to the Mayor on or 
before mid-January each year. The Mayor uses these requests as the starting point for 
developing a proposed budget. The Mayor then presents this proposed budget to the council 
for review hy April 1st. The council is required to hold puhlic hearings on the proposed 
budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than June 30th. Operating budgets are prepared 
by fund and by departrnent. Department heads may make transfers of appropriations within 
a department. as authorized by the Mayor. The transfer of appropriations between 
departments requires the approval of the governing council. The Mayor also recommends to 
the City Council a capital improvement program for the next five years and a capital hudget 
by project for the first year of the program. The City Council is obligated to approve a capital 
budget program and adopts the capital budget concurrently with the annual operating hudget. 
Transfers between capital project line items require approval by the City Council. 
Unexpended capital appropriations carry over for a total of three years or until re-
appropriated. 

Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental 
flind for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund. Sales 
Tax Fund. Grants and Donations Fund, Public Safety Fund, and American Rescue Plan Fund 
this comparison is presented on pages 72 through 78 as part of the basic financial statements 
for the governmental funds. For other govermnental funds with an appropriated annual 
budget, this comparison is presented in the governmental fund suhsection of this report, 
which is presented on pages 88 through 90. 

Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The inkirmation presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City 
operates. 

Local economy 

Slidell (population: approximately 29,000) is located in the southeastern portion of St. 
Tammany Parish - ahout 20 miles from New Orleans. The City is uniquely located at the 
intersection of 3 interstates — Interstate 10. 12 and 59. The City is primarily a residential 
area that continues to benefit from population gowth and commercial development. Due to 
its proximity to New Orleans, residents have access to broad and diverse employment 
opportunities. The City's transportation accessibility, low business costs, availability of 
labor, superb school system, low crime rate, and first-rate medical facilities encourage 
continued growth. 

Slidell has traditionally served as a retail center for the unincorporated areas of southeastern 
St. Tammany Parish which contributes to the City's major source of revenue, sales tax. For 
fiscal years ending 2020, 2021 and 2022, the City experienced a sales tax growth rate of 
4.12%, 18.71% and 8.77%, respectively. The City experienced a decrease of 2.13% in fiscal 
year 2023. City anticipates sales tax to level out in fiscal year 2024. 
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The average unemployment rate in St. Tammany Parish and the New Orleans metropolitan 
area is 3.32% and 4.30%, respectively. 

Long-term financial planning 

Twenty years ago the City embarked on a $30 million capital improvement program that 
included issuance of general obligation bonds for drainage projects, sales tax revenue bonds 
tbr street projects, and utility revenue bonds for water and sewer projects. With the end of 
debt service on those bonds, the City embarked on another large scale capital hnprovement 
plan of a similar tnagnitude. In 2010 and 2016 the city issued $10 million and $12 million, 
respectively. in General Ohligation Bonds for streets, bridges and drainage improvements. 
The 2020 and 2021 hudgets include funding in the Utility Fund to provide debt service for 
issuance of $18.9 million in utility revenue bonds. The City entered into a loan agreement 
in 2018 for a 0.95% interest rate loan from the DEQ Clean Drinking Water Revolving Loan 
Fund Program to finance $10 million in improvements to the wastewater treatment plant and 
to fund $6.4 million in improvements to sewer lift stations. A. ofiune 30. 2023, $13.172,381 
has been drawn on this line of credit. The City has also been given approval from the EPA 
Clean Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund Program for a 2.45% interest rate loan to fund 
$2.6 million for water system distribution improvements. The City closed on this loan in 
2021. As of June 30, 2022. $2,566.268 has been drawn on this line of credit. 

The City has been awarded a $10 tnillion watershed initiative. This funding will be utilized 
to upp-ade several culverts and increase the size of a channel that runs towards a pump 
station, retrofitting it with an earthen bottom to allow intiltration, but with reinforced slopes 
to protect from erosion. It will 

Awards and Acknowledgments 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Slidell for its annual 
comprehensive financial report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. This is the 
thirty-fifih consecutive year the City has received this prestigious award. In order to be 
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government published an easily readable and 
efficiently organized ACFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and applicable legal 
requirements. 

A Certiticate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that the 
current ACFR continues to meet the Certiticate of Achievement Program's requirements and 
we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 
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The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the entire staff of the Finance Department. I would like to express my 
appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the 
preparation of this report. Credit also must be given to the Mayor and the City Council fbr 
their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in the 
management of the City's finances. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Blair Ellinwood 
Director of Finance 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Slidell, Louisiana 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Slidell, Louisiana (the "City"), as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate 
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Slidell, Louisiana, as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in 
fmancial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinions 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Slidell, Louisiana 
and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements 
relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

4227 Canal Street 
New Orleans, LA 70119 

P: (504) 486-7275 l F: (504) 482 2516 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
www. bricksenKrentel.com  
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2895 Highway 190, Ste 213 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of 
Slidell, Louisiana's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial 
statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly 
thereafter. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Slidell, Louisiana's internal control. Accordingly, 
no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Slidell, Louisiana's ability to 
continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal 
control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

10141  
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in 
net OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of employer contributions, schedule of proportionate 
share of the net pension liability and schedule of contributions - retirement plan on pages 5 through 
14 and 80 through 83 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is 
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part 
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the City of Slidell, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The accompanying 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal. Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements 
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining 
and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards 
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial 
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic fmancial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 
8, 2023, on our consideration of the City's internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the City's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the City's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

10141  
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Mandeville, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2023  

C)ur discussion and analysis of the City of Slidell's tthe "City") financial perfbrmance provides an 
overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Please read it in 
conjunction with the transmittal letter on pages I through V and the City's financial statements. 
which begin on page 15. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and 
the Statement of Activities (on pages 15 an(1 16) provide information about the activities of the 
City as a whole and present a long-term view of the City's tinances. 

Fund financial statements start on page 17. For governmental activities, these statements report 
how these services were tinanced in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. 
Fund financial statements als() report the City's operations in more detail than the government-
wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. The remaining 
statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as an agent 
for the benefit of those outside of the government. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activ ities 

Our analysis of the City as a whole begins On page 7. One of the most important questions asked 
about the City's tinances is, "Is the City as a whole better off or worse off as a result of the year's 
financial activities7 The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report 
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this 
question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liahilities. and 
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. As such, all of the current year's revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the City's net position and changes in them. You can think of the 
City's net position—the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and 
deferred inflows of resources—as one way to measure the City's financial health or financial 
position. Over time. increases or decreases in the City's net position are one indicator of whether 
its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need to consider other nonfinancial 
factors, however. such as changes in the City's property tax hase and the condition of the City's 
roads, to assess the overall financial health of the City. 

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two kinds 
of activities: 

• Governmental activities—Most of the City's basic services are reported here. including the 
police. public works. and parks deparunents, and general administration. Sales and use 
taxes. property taxes, franchise fees, and state and federal grants tinance most of these 
activities. 
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• Business-type activities—The City charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most 
of the cost of certain services it provides. The City's water and sewer system and airport 
are reported here. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 9. The fund financial statements begin on 
page 17 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds—not the City as a 
whole. Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, 
the City establishes other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to 
account for it to meet legal responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants, and other money. The 
City's two kinds of funds—governmental and proprietary—use different accounting approaches. 

• Governmental funds—Most of the City's basic services are reported in eovernmental 
funds, which fbcus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left 
at year-end that are available for spending. These flinds are reported using an accounting 
method called modified accnial accounting, which measures cash and all other tinancial 
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a 
detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services 
it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more 
or fewer tinancial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's 
programs. We describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities 
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds in reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements. 

• Proprietary funds—When the City charges customers for the services it provides, these 
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the 
same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities. In fact, the City's enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are 
the same as the business-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but 
provide more detail and additional information. such as cash flows. for proprietary funds. 

Reporting the City's Fiduciar) Responsibilities 

The City also holds certain assets in a fiduciary capacity for individuals, organizations and others. 
All of the City's fiduciary activities are reported in a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 
on page 26. We exclude these assets from the City's other financial statements because the City 
cannot use these assets to tinance its operations. The City is responsible for ensuring that the assets 
reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund tinancial statements. The notes to the financial 
statements can be found beginning on page 28 of this report. 
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Other Information 

In addition to the basic financial statetnents and accompanying notes, this report also presents 
certain required supplementary information concemine budgetary basis reporting for the General 
Fund, Sales Tax Fund, Grants and Donations Fund, Public Safety Fund, and American Rescue 
Plan Fund, and changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, enfployer contributions. 
proportionate share of net pension liability, and contributions-retirement plan. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 72 to 82 of this report. 

The combining statements of non-major governmental funds are presented immediately following 
the required supplenlentary information. Conlbining and individual fund statenlents and schedules 
can be fbund on pages 86 to 87 of this report. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

As noted earlier. net position tnay serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial 
position. In the case of the City, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred 
inflows hy $232.4 million at the close of fiscal year 2023 as compared to $227.4 million at the 
close of fiscal year 2022. 

Table 1 
Net Position 

(In Thousands) 

 

cruurnia1 c nva le,  1:111:the..-type Acin ¡tie, Ttital Govenwriit 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 

 

2022 

Cutrent and odic-I asSelS S 8.5 E69 S 79.706 S 271.58 S 26 - 5-1 S 113.527 S Ii)6.1f.4) 

Capital asset% 163.987 166.179 72.20S 6A.618 '36.255 

 

232.-  .--

 

Total assets '49.3.57 2-15.885 99.925 93.372 3-19782 

 

339.257 

Total deferred outflows of resources 15 '5? 9.632 2.039 1 i%93 17.293 

 

11.525 

Lnig-terna baltiburs 81.88c 69.1:116 27.586 19.998 Ity.t.470 

 

89.804 

Other ltabibues 13.399 12.491 2.338 4.579 I 5.738 

 

17%070 

Tot HI hallibiies 95.28-1 K2.^97 29.924 2-1.57- 125.208 

 

106.874 

Total defetred in Iliws of resources 7.741 14.890 1.707 2.591 9.4-1)t 

 

l7.481 

Net inves atria m capital assets 156.239 158.904 55780 58.281 212.019 

 

217.185 

Restiu ted 13 it-14 12.048 -1,:s 785 14,629 

 

12.833 

'Arcs Wird a 7.999) a l2.622) B769 9.031 5.771 

 

(3.591 t 

Total net position S 162085 S 158.330 S 70.334 S 68097 S 232.419 S 726.427 
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Table 2 
Changes in Net Position 

(In Thousands) 

 

(iv% ennurlital Activitte. Liu litess-tvpe Activities Total tiovennuent 

2023 2022 2023 

 

2022 202.; 2u22 

Rewoues 

      

Prograni revenues 

      

Cliarges for services 1 5.778 S 5102 $ l2.777 S 11.t Kr $ 13.545 $ 16.619 

Operating grants 2.753 3.765 

   

2.753 3.765 

Capitml giants 4 987 7.330 101 

 

469 5.088 7.799 

General revenues: 

       

Sales tax 27.684 28,136 

   

27.684 28.136 

Pirpeny raX 5.234 5.000 2.565 

 

2.412 7,798 7.412 

Other tax 2.545 2.287 

  

- '.545 2.287 

Other general revenue 3 tr)6 49 2.203 

 

125 5.199 174 

Total ievenues 52.078 52.199 17.645 

 

14.013 69.722 66.212 

Program Expemek 

       

General government 13.596 13,633 

   

13.596 13.633 

Pullin. works 14.695 16.693 

   

14.695 16.693 

Public safety 16.512 11.281 

   

16312 11.281 

Recreation and (Anne 3 829 2.915 

   

3.829 2.915 

Judicial system 801 571 

   

801 572 

Interest an long-tenn del 391 485 

  

- 391 485 

Utilities 

  

12.261 

 

10.8(6 12.261 10.866 

Auport 

  

1.6.17 

 

1.729 1.647 1.729 

Total expenses 49.823 45.579 13.908 

 

1/.595 63.731 58.174 

Excess before trans fets s .155 6.620 3.737 

 

1.418 5.9,)1 S.03k 

Transfers 1.500 1.105 (1.500) 

 

(1.1015) 

  

hisrease in net assets $ 3.755 $ 7,728 1) 2,237 S 310 $ 5.991 S i.1).-;S 

Ending net position limn 

Statement of Activities $ 162 085 S 158.330 S 70.334 S 68.097 S 232.419 S 226.427 

By far the largest portion of the City's net position (91.22%) reflects its net investment in capital 
assets (e.g. infrastructure, land, buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used 
to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to provide 
services to citizens, consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the 
City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should he noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets 
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liahilities. 

An additional portion of the City's net position (6.29%) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
is $5.77 million. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2023  

At the end of the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year, the City is able to report positive 
balances in all three categories of net position for its separate business-type activities and is able 
to report positive balances in two of three categories for governmental activities. 

The City's net position increased $5.991 million during the current tiscal year. 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities increased the City's net position by $3.755 million in 2023. 

Total revenue from governmental activities decreased $121 thousand or 0.23% in 2023. Revenue 
from sales tax ($28.14 million in 2022) decreased by $452 thousand million primarily due to the 
slowing down of the economy. Grant funding (operating and capital) decreased by $3.35 million 
in grant funding primarily due to a decrease in FEMA funding, as the City closes out Hurricane 
Katrina projects. Other general revenues increased by $3.05 million primarily due to the increase 
in interest rates. 

Total expenses for governmental activities increased by $4.24 million or 9.31% in 2023. Program 
expenses for public safety increased hy $5.23 million due to the addition of long-term transactions 
in the government wide conversion (changes in net other post-employment benefits liability and 
net pension liability). Public works decreased by $1.20 or 11.97% in 2023 when compared to 2022 
primarily due to a decrease in grants and contributions having no public works expenditures. 

Business-qpe Activities 

Business-type activities increased the City's net position by $2.24 million in 2023. 

Total revenue for business-type activities increased by $3.63 million in 2023. The charges fbr 
service increased by $748 thousand primarily due to a 5% CPI increase to the hase water and sewer 
billing rate. Other general revenues increased by $2.08 million due to changes in net other post-
employment benefits liability and net pension liability. 

Total prop-am expenses for business-type activities increased by $1.31 million or 10.43%. 
Salaries, wages and related benefits increased by $948 thousand due to the implementation of a 
new pay scale that gave on average employees a 6.42% raise. Repairs and maintenance costs 
increased by $278 thousand due to aging tixed assets. 

FINANC'I.AL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FUNDS 

The City uses fimd accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements. The focus of the City's governmental fimds is to provide information on near-term 
inflows, outflows. and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing 
the City's tinancing requirements. In particular. unreserved fund halance may serve as a useful 
measure of a government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
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As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending 
fund balances of $64.287 million, an increase of $12.35 million from 2022. Governmental fund 
revenues exceeded expenditures by $11.13 million and the net transfer from other funds was $1.21. 

Of the total fund balance amount, $50.22 million or 78.11% is reported as unrestricted fund 
balance, either committed, assigned, or unassigned. The unrestricted fund balance includes $32.72 
million in committed funds which are formally dedicated by City Council ordinance for specific 
purposes. As of June 30, 2023, $18.85 million is committed for capital outlay, $10.78 million is 
committed for contingencies, and $3.09 million is committed for operating reserves. 
Approximately $12.63 million, or 19.65%, are funds which are assigned for specific purposes in 
accordance with an ordinance of the City Council and other assignments based on the purpose of 
the individual governmental fund. Assigned fund purposes include assignments for public safety, 
public improvements, and compensated absences. The General Fund has $6.94 million in 
unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the government's discretion. The 
Grants and Donations Fund has an unassigned deficit fund balance of $1.64 million. The remainder 
of fund balance is either non-spendable (0.82%) or restricted (21.07%). Restricted fund balance 
of $13.54 million is primarily restricted to debt service and capital outlay for unexpended bond 
proceeds. 

Fund balance in the General Fund increased by $3.49 million during the current fiscal year. 

Total revenue in the General Fund increased by $3.05 million or 43.72% in 2023. Revenue 
from other revenues increased by $2.58 million primarily due to increase in interest rates. 
Revenue from franchise fees increased by $242 thousand or 10.94%. Licenses and permits 
increased $201 thousand primarily due to an increase in the number of occupational 
licenses issued. 

10 
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Total expenditures in the General Fund increased by $485 thousand or 8.11% in 2()23 
primarily due to the implementation of a new pay scale that gave on average employees a 
6.42% raise. 

Transfers from the General Fund decreased by $3.05 primarily due to the City, in fiscal 
year 2022. established a self-insurance fund and differences in General Fund support of 
City Capital Project Fund in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 

Fund balance in the Sales Tax Fund decreased $314 thousand in the current fiscal year. 

Revenue in the Sales Tax Fund decreased by $2.11 million in 2023. Beginning July 1, 
2013, a portion of the sales tax revenue stream that was previously recorded in the Sales 
Tax Fund was rededicated by voter approval to be used for police department operations. 
Accordingly. sales tax revenue is recorded in hoth the Sales Tax Fund and the Public Safety 
Fund. The Sales Tax Fund recorded sales tax revenue of $14.86 million and $16.97 million 
in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Public Safety Fund recorded sales tax revenue of 
$12.82 million and $11.16 million in 2023 and 2022, respectively. Overall, total revenue 
from sales tax collections decreased $451 thousand or 1.61% in 2023. 

Expenditures in the Sales Tax Fund decreased $617 thousand or 5.16% from 2022 to 2023. 
Capital expenditures decreased $1.897 million or 73.15%. Fluctuations in capital 
expenditures from one year to the next are common. Capital appropriations are for a 
minimum three-year period because capital projects often require time for design and 
engineering before more cost intensive construction occurs. General government, public 
works, and recreation and culture expenditures increased by 1.37%, 24.14% and 14.50% 
primarily due to the implementation of a new pay scale for employees that gave on averaee 
employees a 6.42% raise. Public works additionally increased due to an increase in repairs 
and maintenance due to aging equipment. 

The Public Safety Fund was established in 2014 to account for the City's police department. which 
is primarily funded by a portion of re-dedicated 1987 sales and use tax. The halance of funding 
comes from an operating transfer from the General Fund, property tax, state supplemental pay, 
fines and service charges. The growth in sales tax revenue is discussed above. Operating 
expenditures in the Public Safety Fund increased by $938 thousand or 6.75% primarily due to a 
shortage of staffing in fiscal year 2022 when compared to 2023 along with the implementation of 
a new pay scale fbr civilian police department employees that gave on average employees a 6.42% 
raise. 

The Grants and Donations Fund accounts for various grants and donations that are not accounted 
for in other funds. Total revenues were $9.79 million and total expenditures were $6.03 million 
resulting in a net increase in fund balance of $3.72 million for the 2023 fiscal year-end. 
Reimbursements that are not received within 60 days after fiscal year end are recorded as a deferred 
inflow on the balance sheet of governmental funds. The City recorded $2.49 million and $6.27 
million for deferred inflows related to grants as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
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The American Rescue Plan Fund was created to account for funding received under the American 
Rescue Plan Act of 2021. The City received $4.76 million and has allocated the funding for the 
following projects: water meter replacement, aeration hlowers. Roverinnental software, and police 
software. Most projects will begin in fiscal year 2024. 

The General Obligation Bonds 2016 Fund was created in 2017 to account for the proceeds and 
uses of General Obligation Bonds. Series 2016. The proceeds of the bonds are dedicated to street, 
bridge and drainage improvements. In 2023, revenue from interest income totaled $230 thousand 
and expenditures totaled $409 thousand primary for street repairs. 

The City Capital Construction Fund was created to record all capital projects funded by sales tax, 
general revenues and insurance proceeds. In 2023. the revenue from insurance settlement totaled 
$286 thousand as a result of Hurricane Ida claims. Expenditures totaled $2.82 million which 
included $1.63 to updating the tennis courts. $506 thousand on drainage and concert work. $328 
thousand to updating John Slidell gym and park. As of June 30, 2023. $50 thousand of the 
settlement has been spent to repairing the police evidence building, fences and parks. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City Council revised the 2023 original adopted budget for the General Fund twice. The first 
budget amendment utilized prior year surplus to increase capital expenditures by $5.88 million. It 
also, reallocated previously dedicated ftmding on projects that have been completed to new 
projects in the amount of $2.51 million. This included closed projects in the Sales Tax Fund, City 
Capital Fund. Public Works Capital Fund, GOB 2010 and GOB 2016. The second budget 
amendment increased interest revenues by S110 thousand and moved employee health insurance 
costs of $13 thousand between the tinance department and human resources department due to a 
change in staffing levels. 

By hudgetary policy, revenue and expenditure estitnates are prepared with a conservative bias. 
Overall, General Fund revenue in 2023 experienced a positive variance of 55.74% from the final 
adopted budget. Actual expenditures of $6.47 million were $687 thousand less than the tinal 
adopted budget primarily due the con.servative bias in expenditure forecasting. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2023. the City had $233.8 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, 
including police and public works equipment. buildings, park facilities. roads, drainage, bridges, 
airport facilities, wastewater treatment plant, water lines, and sewer lines (See Tahle 3). This 
amount represents a net increase (including additions and deductions) of $1.04 million from last 
year. 
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Table 3 
Capital Assets at Year-end 

(Net of Depreciation, In Thousands) 

 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Government 

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

Land $ 22,397 $ 21,977 $ 76 $ 76 $ 22,473 $ 22,053 

Building and building improvements 30,064 30,082 870 958 30,934 31,040 

Land improvements 4,537 3,640 2,409 2,712 6,946 6,352 

Machinery and equipment 2,928 2,826 1,687 2,155 4,614 4,981 

Vehicles 900 929 152 152 1,052 1,081 

Right-of-use vehicles 251 

 

800 

 

1,051 

 

Infrastructure 95,822 91,041 48,456 44,341 144,278 135,382 

Contruction-in-progress 6,238 15,684 17,301 16,224 23,539 31,908 

Total net position $ 163,137 $ 166,179 $ 71,749 $ 66,618 $ 234,887 $ 232,797 

Capital asset additions for governmental activities ($7.87 million) in 2023 include $5.31 million 
for construction-in-progress, $3.11 million for street rehabilitation primarily funded by General 
Obligation Bonds and grants, $1.83 million for recreation projects and remaining for building 
repairs. Capital additions for business-type activities ($8.061 million) in 2023 include $6.38 
million for construction-in-progress primarily for wastewater treatment plant improvements and 
upgrades to lift stations funded by utility revenue bonds. 

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note 4 to the financial 
statements. 

Debt 

At year-end, the City had $29.52 million in bonds and notes outstanding versus $23.02 million last 
year as shown in Table 4. 

Table 4 
Outstanding Debt, at Year-end 

(In Thousands)  

General obligation bonds 
(backed by property tax) 

Revenue bonds and notes 
(ba cked by specific tax and 
fee revenue) 

Total outstanding debt 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Government 
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 

$ 13,550 $ 14,675 $ 

15,974 8,345 

$ 13,550 

15,974 

$ 14,675 

8,345 

$ 13,550 $ 14,675 $ 15,974 $ 8,345 $ 29,524 $ 23,020 
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In 2023. principal additions were $0 and $8.52 million in the governmental and business type 
activities and principal reductions were $1.13 million and S891 thousand in the governmental and 
business-type activities, respectively. Standards & Poor Global Ratings assigned its "AA" rating 
and stable outlook to the City's General Obligation Bonds. The State limits the amount of general 
obligation debt that cities can issue to 35% of the assessed value of all taxable property within the 
City's corporate limits. The City's outstanding general obligation debt ($13.55 million) is 
significantly helow this $105.43 million state-imposed limit. 

The City is self-insured with excess coverage fbr workers' compensation. general liability, auto 
liability, and employee medical. Claims and judgments of $2.69 million and $3.56 million were 
outstanding for the years ended 2023 and 2022. respectively. Other obligations include 
compensated ahsences ($1.62 million). net other post-employment benefit liability ($38.7(1 
million) and net pension liability ($35.29 million). 

More detailed information about the City's long-term liabilities is presented in Notes 6, 7, 8, 12 
and 13 to the tinancial statements. 

ECONOMIC: FAC:TORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES 

Original Adopted But4,Pet 2024 

Total budgeted revenues for operations in 2024 are $64.68 million. and budgeted expenditures for 
departinental operations, debt service. grant related expenditures and capital outlayireserves are 
$50.08 million, $3.05million, $8.71 million, and $2.84 million, respectively. 

Sales tax revenue which represents 45.43% of recurring revenue in the 2024 budget is budgeted 
with a conservative bias and is monitored very carefully throughout the year. Although the 2()24 
budget for sales tax revenue was estimated to approximate 2()23 budgeted sales tax revenue. actual 
revenue for the first four months of 2024 is 2.36% less than the first four months of 2023. This 
decrease is attributed to slowing down of purchasing by consumers. Property tax rates are 26.09 
mills in 2023 and 2024 hudget respectively. Collections from various utility fees and charges were 
projected to grow in accordance with the annual rate adjustment based on the increase in the 
consumer price index. All other revenue and expenditure projections were budgeted with a 
conservative hias. 

CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

The financial report is designed to provide our citizens. taxpayers. customers, investors and 
creditors with a eeneral overview of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for 
the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial 
information. contact the Finance Director's Office at 2045 Second Street. Slidell. Louisiana or by 
phone at (985)-646-4316. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISLANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023 

 

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 

 

Total 

COMPONENT UNITS 

GIA el munital 
Actavities 

Bualness-tM7sc 
Activities 

Fremaux 
EDD 

Nonbshore 
Square EDD 

Camellia Square 
EDD 

ASSETS: 

       

Cash and cash equivalent, S 62.199.11S S 24.405,93n s Nti.6iii,o3x s - it - S 
Ills es tments 2.200.647 

  

2.260.647 

   

Receivables. net of allowances for =collectibles 

       

Taxes 3.1333)55 45.142 

 

3.1- 9.107 133.511 l`P 4)!.45 3... 200 
Water, sewerage...Ind garbvge 

 

1.1714215 

 

I.I71..21i 

   

UM:tilled re..eivables 

 

71.3,935 

 

- 83.935 

   

Other 55.141 19(.110 

 

245.04 I 

   

Inveutoty 180.003 202.883 

 

3)1.).846 

   

Pt epa id items „496.6-1. 34.7'90 

 

4.444466 

   

Due ft om other fluids 19.201 119.201) 

 

- 

 

t.t.3) 

 

Due front othei Roventments 4.165 845 25,3Mi 

 

4.191.205 

   

Due front lmal entities 3,458 

  

3.448 

   

Resit wied assets 

       

Catli and cm.li equivalents I2.329.7.10 85.124 

 

13.114.8- 0 1 .24.9.-12 IM 48l 48 937 
Inves tments ?00.000 

  

...00.t irk 

   

Lease te.ovable 

       

Current poition X15.104 25,3M. 

 

840.439 

   

Loitit-term portion S50.176 4  l $.11214 

 

1.36).304 

   

Capital assets not heana dein eciatet I 283135.357 l 7.376.2 l 0 

 

-01.011.467 

   

Capital assets being depreciated. 
net of acctunulatecl depiesdation 134.501.909 54.33.254 

 

188.87.5.163 

   

Total assets 240 s56 71. I 99,925311P 

 

149.-}.2.0 I I .1(),., 200.503 82.227 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOLItC ES: 

       

Deter, ed cli.ulies on refunding, 2o,s,l 77 3.722 

 

204.899 

   

Pension• 11.109222 1.4:6.1)2 

 

13.1-0.404 

   

Other post employment benefit. ,.• l,..0 9e!i Sott,451 

 

3.-40.4si; 

   

Total de tenet) outflows of resources 15.253.394 2.0.19..455 

 

17.202.659 

   

LIABILITIES 

       

Act..outit, pa)able and odict current habihties 12.4 74.799 2.338.117 

 

14.812.016 82.985 2211 3ihi 

Due It. Odle] goveinments 924.698 

  

02.4.608 57 

 

62 
Non-citnet it liabilities 

       

LeaSe. 

       

Due within one yevt 52 769 1,16.094 

 

211,1413 

   

Due an more th.ut one ycar I98 028 634.731 

 

832.-c9 

   

Bonds payable 

       

Due watlim one year 1.200.803 1.012.000 

 

2.218.803 179..441i 

  

Due in more than one ycar 12 926 430 14,941,649 

 

27.890.079 5-10 Imo 

  

Conapen.lted abserwes and Jamas 

       

Due wthm *Inc yew 2.20.964 43.283 

 

2.323.32-

    

Due m mote Man one year .805.1.10 122.140 

 

1.087.280 

   

Othet noncurrent liabilities 

       

Net other post employstient benefits liability 32 396 196 6.3ei6.1.10 

 

1S.-0^.re's 

   

Nei pension liability 30.957.296 4,339.720 

 

35.297.014 

   

Total habilittes 95.284.223 29.023.844 

 

125.208.067 8.552.701 22t1 11' 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES. 

       

Leases 1.599.051 547.079 

 

2.147.030 

   

Othet post employment benefits 5.271.258 .020.084 

 

6.207.342 

   

Pen.ton. 870.608 132.844 

 

I.I.01.512 

   

Total delened inflows of re.tources 740 97' 1.706.907 

 

9.447.884 

   

NET POSITION: 

       

Net investment in capital 40.sets 156.22,9.316 55.79.437 

 

2i -2.08.843 

   

Resit wted tiu 

       

Debt service 2.692.680 785.124 

 

3.-r7.80-1 1.007.522 

  

Stites and ill autage 10.851.801 

  

10.1351.861 

   

Worker; compeustmon 300.000 

  

..00.060 

   

Unresincted C.999.0521 13.769.253 

 

5.70.201 8.203.9- 01 2iitt 81 782. 

Total net posinini ideficall S 162 mg x05 S 11O33,914 1 232.4I X.719 S 40 446i S 200,28.4 S 81.782 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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2 451 0ro 
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:26 42691S (7.501.70..1 40104 63 415 
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S 16.241$1.01H  t:..•al  S  z3: 4Ib 719 S 0.149.4453 I 20n.2t3 S 61 762 

l he acrompaming note% 3re an integral part of this statement 
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( HY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
RECONCILLATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30 2023  

Amounts reported ba governmental activities m die Siaiemoit of No Posttiou 

are different hecause 

Funds balances. total giwernmental funds 

Right-of-use assets used in giwernmental atrlvnlrb tire not finamial iestIlliceS and. 
thelefore. are not rrponed in the governmental hinds 

Capital assets used ui governmental acuvitirs ate not financial resources and. 
therefore, are not reported in the ;overnmental funds 

250.7,:7 

162.886.469 

Deterred outflows of resources relateil to net pension liability are not reported in governmental I L9l9.222 
funds 

Deferred outflows of resources related to othei pustemployrnent benefit liability afe nun reported 

  

in goverunieutal fiinds. 

 

3.130.905 

Long-term haMhnes mcluding bonds payable are not due and payable in the current penod 
and. therefore• are uot reported ill the governmental funds 

  

ALinied interest payable (142.664) 

 

Claims I.411.6001 

 

Compensatril absences (1.-15I.72S) 

 

Other postemploymrin benefits hahihty t32.396.1o6) 

 

PenSiOll hahihty t3o.957.296i 

 

Bonils. notes. and loans payable (net of premiums• thsiounts rind defened thargest O-U35.2331 

   

040,500.7141 

The focus of goveninkmal funds IS otl short-tenn finanium. however. some assets will not 
be available to pay for current-mod expenditures Those assets are offset hy unavailable 
rcvenue - intergovernmental in the govenunental hinds and are thus not 'minded in fund 
balant.e. 

 

3.538.784 

Lease liabilities used in ipvernmental activities are not financial resources and. 
therefore. are not repotted in the governmental funds LI5o.7971 

Deferred inflows of resources related ro net pension liability are not reported ui governmental (87(1.668) 
funds 

Deferred inflows of resowces relined to other posietnployment lienetit liability are not reported 
in goveninieutal fiinds. 

internal service funds are used by inanagement to ait.ount foi die awunulation ot resouries 
for and payment of employee health nisurance claims• administration t. osts for processin; 
medical ilaims and the cost of excess inswance premiums and. dierefore, are not 
reported in die governmental fiinds 

  

t s,'7I.2i8I 

Cash and cash equivalents 

  

3.885.958 
Prepaid expenses 

  

49.233 
Resu c tat asset... 

   

Cash and cash equivalents S S.515 

 

Investments 

 

300.000 

 

Total restricted assets 

  

305.5'5 
Accounts payable and other cunent liabtlities 

  

(I.2- 6.5(18) 
2,964.208 

Net posititNn of governmental activities 162.W:4.805  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL Fl 'NDS TO THE 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FC)R THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

Amounts reported for governmental activities ni the Statement ot Activities ate different hecause: 

   

Net change in fimd balances, total governmental funds 

 

5 12 3-19,5,19 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental fiinds expenditiues Hi lwever, in the statement pf 

activities. the ci,st Id those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as 

depreciata in expense 

   

Capital outlay S 7.875,(1-1S 

  

Depreciation expense (10,916.9t6) 

     

(3.0.11.93:3) 

Rudit-ot-use assets are reported in governmental funds as expenditures However. in the statement 

ot activ Ines, the cost of those assets is allocated over their esUmated usetid lives and ieported as 

amortization expense 

   

Right-ot-use assets 5 232,288 

  

Amortizati, in expense (18.72(11 

  

1 63.568 

The issuance of long-tenn debt (bonds, leases, etc.1 provides current financial resources to 

governinental tUnds. while the lepayment of the principal ot haig-terni debt CollsUllies the 

cunent financial rem maces of governmental funds Neithei transaction, however, has any 

effect OH net position. Also, governmental funds ieport the etTect of issuance costs. 

premnims. discounts. and similai items when debt is issued, whereas these amounts are 

amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences 

ni the ueatment +of long-term debt and related items. 

Some expenses ieported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use ot current 

financial res,mrces and, therefore. ale not reported as expenditures in governmental funds 

Accnied interest expense (11,397) 

Claims (53,0231 

C, nnpensated absences ( I 76,994) 

Amortizan, in of deferred charges 40,071 

Othei postemployment benefits (612,2031 
(1.751,1731 

Non-employer ciaitributh ins for pensions 6711.-114  

1.166.803 

(1.AA8.305) 

Revenue is reported in the Statement of Activities at the time it is earned. without regard to 

Umeliness Id' collection: 

Unavailable ievenue - intergovernmental for the current year 

Less unavailable revenue - mtergovenunental tin the prior year 

3,335,607 
(8,661.877) 

  
(i .32(i.270) 

Internal Service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to 

individual funds. The net rev enne (expense) of the Internal Service fund is rec, ,riled with 

governmental activities. 

Change in net position of governmental acnvines 

2fl .603 

ti 3.755.0 10 

The accompan in£ notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITV OF SLIDELL, LOUISLANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
JUNE 311, 2023 

ASSETS: 

 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Govenunental 
Attivities - Internal 

Service Fund 

 

Utilities 
Fund 

Airpiirt 
Fund 

 

Total 

      

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 5 23,311.036 S 1.094 894 5 24,105,930 958 
Receivables. net of allowances bw uncollectibles: 

      

Taxes 

 

45.242 

  

45.242 

 

Water. seweral e. and garbage 

 

1.178.215 

  

1.178.215 

 

Utibilled receivables 

 

783.935 

  

783.935 

 

Other leceivables 

 

149.046 41.064 

 

190.110 

 

Inventi iry 

 

156.860 46.023 

 

202.883 

 

Prepaid expenses 

 

25.524 9,266 

 

34.790 49.233 
Due from other glivernments 

 

1.098 24.262 

 

25.360 

 

Due from other funds 

      

Lease receivable. current portion 

  

S.:430 

 

25.330 

 

Total current assets 

 

25.650.95r 1.240.839 

 

'6.891.795 3.935.191 

Noncurrent assets 

      

Resmcted assets 

      

Cash and casb equivalents 

 

785.124 

  

785.124 cs2c 

Investments 

     

300.00( 

Lease receivable, net of tiirrent portion 

  

518.128 

 

518.128 

 

Rikiht-of-use assets 

 

800.286 

  

800.286 

 

Capital assers. net of accumuLited depieciation 

 

67.402.598 3.546.5%0 

 

70,949.178 

 

Total noncurrent assets 

 

68.988.00h 4.64.708 

 

73.052.716 305.525 

Total assets 

 

94.631O64 5.305.547 

 

99.944.511 4.240.716 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES: 

      

Defetred tharges oti iefundings 

 

3.722 

  

3.7')  

 

Pensions 

 

1.389,716 36.466 

 

1,426.182 

 

Other post employment benefits 

 

573.601 35.850 

 

609.45 l 

 

Total tlefen ell outflows of resources 

 

1.967,039 72 316 

 

2.039355 

 

LLABILITIES: 

      

Current lialnlities: 

      

Acci RIMS payable 

 

2, 118,992 172 052 

 

2.291.044 629 
Interest payable 

 

47.073 

  

47.073 

 

Due to taller funds 

 

1.201 

  

l9.20I 

 

Blinds payable, ciurent amnion 

 

1.ii12.000 

  

L012.000 

 

Le3se liability, current pi arion 

 

166.094 

  

166.094 

 

C'orupensated absences 

 

34.843 8.420 

 

43.263 

 

Total cuirent liabilities 

 

3,398.203 1%0 472 

 

3,518,675 629 

Non-ciment 

      

Bonils payable, net of turrent portion 

 

14,961,649 

  

14,961,649 

 

Claims payable 

     

1.215,879 
Compelisated absent es 

 

98,368 23 77' 

 

122.140 

 

Lease liability current ponion 

 

634.731 

  

634.731 

 

Net other post eilqiloyment benefits Lability 

 

5.935.181 370.9-19 

 

6.306.130 

 

Nei pensa in liability 

 

4.273.307 66.413 

 

4.339.720 

 

Total noncurrent 

 

'5.903.236 461.13-1 

 

26.164.37(i 1.275.879 

Total liabilities 

 

'9.3111.439 641,606 

 

29.943.045 1.276.508 

The accornpaning notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION i CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
.11.71SE Nr23 

DEFERR£D LNELOWS OF RESOURCES: 

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Govenunental 
ALtivines - Inteinal 

Service Fund Ulihnes Airpon Total 

    

Leases - 547.979 547.979 

 

ilther post employment benefits 9(.5.726 (.0.358 E026.084 

 

Pensions 119.9-15 12,899 132.8-14 

 

Totaltlefered inflows of lesouloN Lit85.671 621.236 1.706.907 

 

NET POSITION: 

    

Nei invesunent in capital assets 51.432.133 3.546.5x0 54.978.7[3 

 

ResttictedIN: 

    

Debi service 7:44.124 

 

785.124 

 

Workeis coinpelisation 

   

300,000 
Uluestncted 14,0111,636 568 441 14,570,077 2,664 208 

Total nei position 66.21S.S93  S 4.115.021  S 70.333.914 S 2.964.20S  

The accornpaning notes are an integral part of this statement 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

OPERATING REVTtiC'£5: 

Business-Type Activities - Euterpi ise Funds 

Lifilifiet Aupo0 Total 

  

Charges for service; 
Water $ 4,647.962 $ - $ 4,647.962 
Sewer 4,974,075 4.974,075 
Solid waste disposal 1,-149,886 1.449,880 
Connection charges 180,454 180,454 
Fuel 

 

1,165,183 1,165,183 
Tie down and iental ievenues 

 

105,978 105,978 
Penalties 253,055 445 '53,500 
Insurance 

Total operating revenues 

  

11.305.432 1.2 - 1.o0X I 2.711,040 

OPERATING EXTENSES: 

  

Salaries. wages and ielaied benefits 3,274,836 266,466 3,341,302 
Solid waste disposal 2,675,2,16 -0,400 2,677,646 
Repairs anti inatntenance 1,261,799 48,287 1,310,086 
Fuel - 736,031 736,031 
Mate' ials aud supphes 469.761 8.439 478.250 
Utilities 689,315 17.580 716.895 
Gas am! oil 101,920 - 101,921) 
lusiirance 596.543 64.913 661.456 
(Alice expense 13,686 2,185 15.871 
Certification and training 3,663 961 4,624 
Professional fees 579,622 40,851 620,473 
Other 110,177 3,969 114,146 
Depreciation 2,435.467 445,363 2,880.830 
Amortization -4s..^04 48,704 

Total operating expenses l 2,260,739 1,647,495 (3,)08,234 

Operating income dom) (755,307) (375,887) (1,131,194) 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): 

  

Atl valot ern taxes assessed for sewerage maintenance 1,412,456 1,412,456 
Ad valorem taxes assessed for garbage service 1,152,109 1,152,109 
Federal grants 34,160 66,479 100,639 
ntei est income 3.737 7.696 11,433 

hiterest and fiscal chinges t146.44 H (146.441) 
Other ievenues (expenses) 1,987,607 350,531 2.338.138 

Total non-opeiating ievenues 4.443.628 424,706 4.868.334 

Income (loss) before contiabutions and transfers 3,688.321 48.810 3,737,140 

Ministers iu 31.225 31."5 

Transfers out (1.531,571) 11.531.571) 

Change in net position 2,187,975 48.819 2,236,794 

Net position - beginning of the year 64,030.91S .1.066.202 68.097.120 

Net posation - end of the year S 66,218,893 $ 4,115,021 $ 70,33314 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PR.OPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE VEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Business-Type Airivines - Enterprise Funds Govennnenial 

Activities - Internal 
ServiLe Fund Unhties Airport Total 

    

Receipts from cus6aners and UStrs 5 II 377.277 S 1 259.512 S 12 636.789 S 1 263.365 

PayliteMS to suppliers (8790.442) 0318.46-1) (9 608.906) (1 624.778) 
Payments to employees (5 042.166) (252.418) (5 294.584) (466.939) 

Net Lash provided (used) by operating activities 42.455.33! 18s.630 {2.266.701i (82x.352? 

CASH FLOWS FR(.fM NON-CAPITAL FLNANCENG 

    

ACTIVITIES: 

    

misters. net 1.500.346 i 

 

(1.600.346; c55.746 

Net payments 6 r other fluids 19.202 

 

19.202 

 

Property tax assessed foi sewei maintenance 1.412.456 

 

1.412.456 

 

Property tax assessed bn garbage service l 152.10 

 

l 152.109 

 

Other nou-operating revenue 1.987.607 35(O34 2.33N.14 130.371 

Net Lash provided (used) by non-Lapital financing activities 071 .(28 15 0. 5744 3421.562 685.819 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 

    

ACTIVITIES: 

    

Capital connibutions 34.160 6o.479 100.639 

 

Principal payments on outstanding bowls (89 l 000) 

 

(891.000) 

 

Proceeds from issuance of dela 8.519.373 

 

8.519.373 

 

Inception of lease 800.824 - 800.824 

 

Interest erpense ‘ al ‘ al:standing blinds (117.260; (523.650i (640,940i 

 

Purchase of capital assets (7 538 063) - (7 538.063) 

 

Pioceeds from sale of capital assets - 1.074 1.074 

 

Net Lash provideil ( used) by capital and related financing activities $118.4134 1456.127) 351.907 

 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 

    

Receipts of interest 111CvIlle 3.737 7.O6 I1.a33 3.139 

Net cash provided hy investing 31. twine, 3.737 1 ,6% 11.-133 3.139 

Net deL tease in cash and cash equivalent.s l 427.468 90.733 1 518.201 (139.394) 

Cash and cash eqiuvalents, I ieginnin; of yeal 22 668.692 1 004.161 23 677.553 41130.577 

Cash and cash etpuvalents. end of year S 24.096.160 S 1.094.894 S 25.191.054 S 3./491.483 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash 

Brismess-Type At. times - Enterprise Funds Governmental 
Activities - Internal 

Servi,e Fluid Unlines A uport Total 

    

provided (used) by operating actis ities: 
Operating income ( loss ) S (755.307i S (375.887) S (1.131.194i S 97.892 
Adnistinents to a econcile operating income (loss) to net 

cash polvided (used i hy tlielatmt.; auivities 

    

Depreciatom 2 484.171 445.363 2 929.534 

 

Change in asset and liataluies 
(Increase) decrease in customei receivable 163.012 - 163.012 

 

(btu ease) decrease in lease reLeivable 

 

101.766 101,766 

 

(Inu ease) detrease in intergovernmental receivable 8.052 (12.146) (4.094) 

 

(Inuease) deciease in unlnlled Lharges (139.292i 

 

(139.292i 

 

(Increase) decrease m prepaid items /.2.961 (8.291) 74.670 (1.934) 
(Increase) decrease in inventoly 9.769 10.547 20.316 

 

( Increase i decrease in other receivables (159 928) 20.515 O39.413) 13.062 
(lut.rease) dect ease in deferred I willows tni pension benefits (601.286) (47.8361 (649.122) 

 

(Lau ease) det.rease HI deferred ialinOws On OPEB 485.615 13.801 499,416 

 

Increase (decrease) in accomus payable 12.381.440) 114.947 (2.266.493) (20.8(I2) 
Increase (decrease) in compensaied absences 6.944 2.254 9.198 

 

Increase (decrease) in t launs payable 

 

- - 016.570) 
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability (2 049.619) 88.586 (1 961.033) 

 

Increase (decrease) in OPEB halal!' 1.113.489 i3.3311i 1.110.151 

 

Inca-ease (decrease) in deferred inflows on leases 

 

(l 22.210i (122.230) 

 

htcrrase (decreasei ill deferred inflows on pension benefits (631,582) (50.247i (681,8291 

 

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows on other post-employment benefits 04t (.890 ) In.826 (80.064) 

 

Net Cash movided by operating acnvuies S (2 455.331) S 188.630 $ (2 266.701) S (828.352) 

N oncash int-esting. capital and financing:it-0s ities: 

    

Bond teluwliue preutauli,  S (3.374) S - c (3.374) S 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equit aleuts tu stAterneut 

    

Of net position: 

    

Cash aml cash euivalents, unrestricted 23.311.03r. S 1.094.8'.+4 S 24.405.93t) s :4S8:5.95ti 

Cash and cash equivalents. restiii.ted -S5.124 

 

785.124 5.5 7'5 

Cash and cash equivalents. end if year 24 09t5. 100  S l (194.1i94  25 1914;54  S 3 591.483  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2023  

Custodial 
Fund 

Animal 
A.csistance Leaeue 

of Slidell 

ASSETS:  
Cash and cash equivalents 342.381 

Restricted cash 9').16$ 

Total assets  

 

3.'90 .Acci Runs paNahle 

Totnl liabilities 3)90 

NET POSITION: 

 

Restricted for individuals. organizations. and others 431.259 

Total net position 431.259 

Total liahilities and net position 434.549 

See Independent Auditom.  Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

AIIIIITI(:Irti: 

Custodial 
Fund 

Animal 
Aissistance Leaeue 

of Slidell 

 

Donations 105.31h 

Total additions lo5.316 

DEDUCTIONS: 

 

Public gaiety 74 i'sl0 

Total deductions 74.810 

Net increase in fiduciary net position 30.50h 

Net position (deficit) - heginning of- year 400.751 

Net position (deficit) - end of year 431.259 

See Independent .kuditor.' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30. 2023  

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The financial statements of City of Slidell, Louisiana (the "City") have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP): these financial statements present the City as the 
primary government The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard 
setting body for establishing go‘ernmental accounting and fmancial reporting principles. The more 
significant of the government's accounting policies are described below. 

Reporting Entity 

The City is a municipal corporation governed by an elected nine-member Council. As required by GAAP, 
these financial statements present the City as the primary government. GAAP requires the financial 
statements of the reporting entity to present the primary govenunent (the Council) and its component 
units. Component units are defined as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the 
primary govenunent (the Council) are financially accountable. The criteria used in determining whether 
financial accountability exists include the appointment of a voting majority of an orgammtion's 
governing board, the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or whether 
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens to the primary 
government. Fiscal dependency may also play a part in determining financial accountability. Discretely 
presented component units are presented ui a separate column in the government-wide financial 
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Fremaux Economic Det•elopinent District. State of Louillana 

The Fremaux Economic Development District, State of Louisiana (the "District") was created hy an 
ordinance of the City Council of the City on March 25, 2008, pursuant to the Louisiana Cooperative 
Economic Development Law. On the same date, the Council passed ordinance numher 3461 levying an 
additional sales tax of one percent (1%) in the District and passed ordinance number 3462 lei, ying a hotel 
occupancy tax of one percent (1%) in the District. On December 13, 2011, the City Council adopted 
ordinance number 3636 to reduce the levy from one percent (1%) to one-half of one percent (0.50%). The 
District encompasses 89 acres of land where a mixed-use development is being constructed in multiple 
phases. The purpose of the Distnct is to issue sales tax and hotel occupancy increment revenue bonds to 
reimburse a developer for economic developnient in the District. The audited financial statements for this 
entity may be obtained by contacting the Finance Director's Office at 2045 Second Street, Slidell, 
Louisiana or hy phone at (985) 646-4316. 

The City of Slidell appoints the District's governing body and can impose its will on the District, 
however, the District does not meet any of the blending criteria as set forth in GASB No. 61. 
Accordingly, the District has been determined to be a discretely presented component unit of the City. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2023 

SI \MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Reporting Entity - Discretelr Presented Cmnponent Units (continued) 

Camellia Square £ronomic• Development District, State of Louisiana 

The Camelha Square Economic Development District, State of Louisiana (the "District") was created by 
an ordinance of the City Council of the City on September 12. 2012, pursuant to the Louisiana 
Cooperative Economic Development Law. On May 14, 2013, the Council passed ordinance number 3686 
levying an additional sales tax of one percent (1%) in the District The Council passed ordinance number 
3487 levying a hotel occupancy tax of two percent (21No. The purpose of the District is to reimburse a 
developer for economic development (a shopping center and hotel) within the District. Fund financial 
statements are included in the Other Supplementary Information section of this report for the Camellia 
Square Economic Development District. Separate financials are not issued for this district since the City 
perform, administrative and accounting services for the District. 

The City appoints the District's governing body and can impose its will on the District: however, the 
District does not meet any of the blending criteria as set forth in GASB No. 61. Accordingly, the District 
has been determined to be a discretely presented component unit of the City. 

Northshore Square Economic Development District. State of Lomsuma 

The Northshore Square Economic Development District. State of Louisiana (the "District") was created 
by an ordinance of the City Council of the City on September 23, 2014, pursuant to the Louisiana 
Cooperative Econonne Development Law. Ordinance number 3753 levied a one half of one percent 
(0.5%) sales and use tax beginning April 1, 2015 tbr the purpose of paying the costs of economic 
development projects. The purpose of the District is to fmance economic development projects within the 
District. Fund financial statements are included in the Other Supplementary Information section of this 
report for the Northshore Square Economic Development District Separate financials are not issued for 
this district since the City performs administrative and accounting services for the I)istnct. 

The City appoints the District's governing body and can impose its will on the District, however. the 
District does. not meet any of the blending criteria as set forth in GASB No. 61. Accordingly, the District 
has been determined to be a discretely presented component unit of the City. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Changes in Net Position) report information on all the nonfiduciary activities of the City. The effect of 
interftind activity has been removed from these statements. Interfund services provided and used are not 
eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by 
taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately tlinn business-type activities, which rely to 
a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charees to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2023 

SI INBIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and tiduciary funds, 
el, en though the latter are excluded from the gm ernment-wide financial statements. Major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

NIeasurement Focus. Basis of Accounting. and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fluid financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of 
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed 
by the provider have been met. 

Grnernmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liahilities of the current period. For this purpose. the City 
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal 
penod. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, deht service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims 
and judpnents. are recorded only when payment is due. 

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. All other revenue items are considered to he measurable and available only when cash is received 
by the government. 

Governmental Fund Types 

Go‘ernmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the City are financed. The 
acquisition, use, and balances of the Citys expendable financial resources and the related liabilities 
(except those accounted for in the proprietary funds) are accounted for through governmental funds. The 
measurement focus is upon determination of changes in financial position, rather than upon net income 
determination. The following are the City's governmental fiind types: 

General fund - The general ftind is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

Special revenue funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other than debt 
service or capital projects. These funds account for the revenues and expenditures related to federal, state, 
and local grant and entitlement programs and special district funds established for ‘arious educational 
objectives. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(I) SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

(liovernmental Fund Types (continued)  

Debt service funds - Debt sen ice funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted. committed. or assigned to expenditures for principal and interest. Deht service funds should be 
used to report resources if legally mandated. Financial resources that are being accumulated for pnncipal 
and interest maturing in future years also should be reported in debt service funds. 

apital projects funds - Capital projects fiinds are used to account for and report financial resources that 
are restricted. committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays. including the acquisition or 
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those types of 
capital-related outflows tinanced by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in trust for 
individuals, private organizations, or other gm emments. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all tinancial resources of the 
general government, except those required to he accounted for in another fund. 

The Sales Tax Fund accounts for the hond proceeds and subsequent debt service and expenditures 
funded by the City's one percent 1963 sales and u.se tax and a portion of one percent 1987 sales and use 
ta.x, which are primarily dedicated for public improvements. 

The Public Safeo. Fund accounts for the City's police department that is primarily funded by that portion 
of the 1987 one percent sales and use tax, which is dedicated to puhlic safety. 

The Grants and Donations Fund accounts for federal and other grant programs not accounted for 
elsewhere. 

The Arnerican Rescue Plan Fund accounts for the proceed.s of coronavirus tiscal recovery funds received 
from the U.S. Department of the Treasury. 

The Genera! Obligation Bond 2016 Fund accounts for the use of bond proceeds dedicated to 
improvements to the City's streets, bridges and drainage. 

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the pavments of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2010; Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2016: General Obligation Bonds, Series 2016: and Refundin2 Bonds, Series 2021. The 
bonds are secured through the City's ad valorem and sales and use taxes. 

The City Capital Fund accounts for monies received from an outside agency and proceeds frorn the sales 
of City property 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(I) SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Pnprietary Fund I Vpes 

Proprietary funds account for activities similar to those found in the private sector where the 
determination of net income is necessary or useful for sound financial administration and are used to 
account for the School System's ongoing organizations and activities which are similar to those often 
found in the private sector. The measurement focus is upon determination of net income. The School 
System's proprietary funds consist of two enterprise funds and an mternal sen ice fund. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The Utility Fund accounts for the operations of the water and sewerage systems and the solid waste 
disposal system. 

The Airport Fund accounts for operations of the Slidell Nlunicipal Airport. 

The Sdf-Insurance Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and payment of employee 
health insurance claims, administration costs for processing medical claims and the cost of excess 
insurance premiums. 

Fiduciary Fund Types 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held by the School System in a trustee or agency capacity. 
The City maintains one fiduciary fund type custodial fund. The custodial fund is established to account 
for all monies held by the City in an agency capacity. Disbursements are made only in accordance with 
the purpose for which assets are received. 

The City reports the following fiduciary fund: 

A Custodial Fund is used to account for the activities of the private, non-protit Animal Assistance 
League of Slidell. This fund accounts for assets held by the City in a fiduciary capacity for individuals, 
organizations and:or other funds. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods. services, 
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. 
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. 
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
re% enues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of 
the Utility Fund and Airport Fund are charges to customers for services. Operating expenses for enterprise 
funds include the cost of services. administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are availahle for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources first. then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(1) SIINEMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Budgetan-  Accounting 

Budget Policies — The City legally adopts annual budgets for only the General Fund and Special Revenue 
Funds in accordance with state law. The Mavor and City Council approve, prior to the begmning of each 
year, an annual operating budget prepared on the modified accnial basis for general governrnental 
activities, except state supplemental pay (S660.0,14 in 2023) to police officers is not treated as budgeted 
revenues and expenditures of the Public Safety Fund. Payments under capital leases are treated as 
expenditures in the year of payment for hudgetary purposes. At the end of the tiscal year, unexpended and 
unencumbered appropriations of these funds automatically lapse except for capital outlay appropriations, 
which lapse after three fiscal years. 

During the year, the Mayor may authorize transfers between line items within a department without 
Council approval. Upon request by the Mayor, the Council may amend departmental or fund level 
appropnations during the year. The budget data reflected in the Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - Budgetary Basis, (see pages 72 to 78 and 88 to 90) 
includes the effect of such appropriation amendments approved by the City Council during the current 
year. These amendments may reappropriate committed funds rolling forward from the previous year for 
vanous capital projects as well as amend the distributions of operating funds already appropriated. 

( -ash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, cash includes all demand, savings accounts, and 
certiticates of deposit of the City. For the purpose of the proprietary funds Staternent of Cash Flows, all 
highlv liquid investments (including certificates of deposit) with maturity of three months or less when 
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents. 

The City is authorized under state law to deposit funds within a fiscal agent bank organized under the 
laws of the State of Louisiana, the laws of any other state in the United States, or laws of the United 
States. Under state laws, these deposits must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of 
securities owned by the fiscal agent hank. State Law R.S. 39:1225 provides that the amount of the 
security shall at all times be equal to l001.is of the amount on deposit to the credit of each depositing 
authority, except that portion of the deposits insured by the United States. 

Investments 

State Law R.S. 33:2955 allows the investment in direct United States Treasury obligations; bonds, 
debentures, notes or other idence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by federal agencies or U.S. 
government instrumentalities, which are federally sponsored; direct security repurchase agreements of 
any federal hook-entry-only securities guaranteed by the U.S. government; time certificates of deposit of 
any bank domiciled or having a branch ottice in the state of Louisiana; savings accounts or shares of 
certain savings and loan associations and sai, ings banks, certain accounts of federally or state chartered 
credit unions, and certain mutual or trust fund institutions. 

estments are stated at fair ‘alue in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
Statement (GASB) No. 31 "Accounting und Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External 
Investment Pools." 

33 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Interfund 1 ransactions 

During the course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. Those related to goods and services type transactions are classified as "due 
to and from other funds.-  Short-term interfund loans are reported as "interfund receivables and payables.-
Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as "advances from and to other funds." 
Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are eliminated in the 
Statement of Net Position. 

The permanent reallocation of resources between funds of the City are classified as interfund transfers. 
For the purposes of the Statemem of Activities, all interfund transfers between inJniclual governmental 
funds have been eliminated. Interfund services provided and used are not eliminated in the process of 
consolidation. 

Payment in Lieu of Taxes 

Costs associated with general governmental operations of the City are initiallv recorded in the General 
Fund. A portion of these costs is applicable to the administration and operation of the Utility Fund. 

In the Utility Fund, the payment in lieu of taxes is made to the General Fund based on rates the General 
Fund would have charged a third party for the services provided. The rates are determined based on the 
current franchise and property millage tax rates. 

Inventories and Prepaids 

Inventories are valued at cost using the average cost method. Inventories in the govenunental funds 
consist of materials and supplies held for consumption and are accounted for using the consumption 
method whereby individual items are recorded as expenditures when they are consumed. Inventories in 
the governmental funds are equally offset hy non-spendable fund balance, which indicates that although 
inventories are a component of net current assets. they do not constitute "available spendable resources.-
Inventories in the proprietary funds consist of chemicals, repair materials, and spare parts. These 
inventories are also accounted for using the consumption method. 

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2023, are recorded as 
prepaid items using the consumption method by recording a current asset for the prepaid amount and 
reflecting the expenditure:expense in the vear in which it was consumed. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted cash on the Balance Sheet of the General Fund totals $39,464, which represents primarily cash 
being held for Federal Asset Forfeiture. 

Restricted cash on the Balance Sheet of the Grants and Donations Fund totals $644,370, which represents 
cash recened through grants and donations that are restricted for future activity. 

Restricted cash on the Balance Sheet of the American Rescue Plan Fund of $4,606,281 represents unspent 
proceeds related to the American Rescue Plan. 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Restricted Assets (continued) 

Restricted cash on the Balance Sheet of the General Obligation Bonds 2016 Fund of $6,588,116 
represents unspent bond proceeds and interest earnings rdated to the Senes 2016 General Obhgation 
Bond. A corresponding amount of fund balance is restricted as these monies are legally segregated for a 
specific future use. 

Restricted cash on the Balance Sheet of the General Obligation Bonds 2010 Fund of $445,990 represent, 
unspent bond proceeds and interest earnings related to the Series 2010 General Obligation Bond. A 
corresponding amount of fund balance is restricted as these monies are legally segregated for a specific 
future use. 

Restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position of the Utility Fund of $785,124 represent, funds which 
are required to be maintained pursuant to ordinances relating to the Utihties Revenue Bonds and 
Certificates of Indebtedness. 

Restricted investments on the Statement of Net Position of the Self-Insurance Fund represent a certificate 
of deposit of $300,000 required to be maintained and held hy the Workers Compensation Fund (a State of 
Louisiana agency) as collateral against the City's self-insured portion of workers' compensation claims. A 
corresponding amount of fund balance is restricted as these monies are legally segregated for a specific 
tiature use. 

Other restricted assets include the Fremaux Bond Fund. Fremaux Debt Service Fund, C'ameha Square 
Development Fund. Northshore Development Fund. and Animal Assistance Fund These funds represent 
unspent funds in relation to those activities. The balances are as follows: Fremaux Bond Fund. $202.220. 
Fremaux Debt Service Fund, $1,067,522. Camelia Square Development Fund, $48,937. Northshore 
Development Fund, $181,481. Animal Assistance Fund, $92,168 

Lease Assets 

The City is a lessor for noncancellable leases of City land and property. The City recognize, a lease 
receivable at the present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, 
the lease receivahle is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received. Under the lease 
agreements, the City may receive variable lease payments that are dependent upon the lessee's revenue. 
The variable payments are recorded as an inflow of resources in the penod the payment is received. The 
deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the initial amount of the leas.e receivable, adjusted for 
lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of 
resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term. 

The City uses the stated rate in the lease or its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate 
for the leases. The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in 
the measurement of the lease recen able are composed of tixed payments from the lessee. 

The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease. and \\ ill 
remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are 
expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease recen able. 
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Lease Liability 

The City is a lessee for noncancellable leases of land and equipment. The City recognizes a lease liability 
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the government-wide financial statements only. 

At the commencement of a lease, the City initially measures the lease liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the 
principal portion of lease payments rnade. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the 
lease liability. adjusted fim lease payments made at or before the lease comrnencement date, plus certain 
initial direct costs Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. 

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the City determines (1) the discount rate it 
uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 

1. The City uses the interest rate charged hy the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest 
rate charged by the lessor is not provided. the City generally uses its estimated incremental 
borrowine rate as the discount rate for leases. 

The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease pavments included in 
the measurement of the lease liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option 
price that the City is reasonably certain to exercise. 

3. The City monitors changes in circumstances that would require a rerneasurement of its lease 
and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to 
significantly affect the amount of the lease liability. 

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease habilities are reported with long-term debt on 
the Statement of Net Position. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for uncollectibles in business-type activities. 
Uncollectible amounts for customers' utility fees receivahle are recognized as bad debts through the 
establishment of an allowance account at the time information becomes availahle which would indicate 
the collectability of the particular receivable. 

The water, sewerage and garbage rem% able balance at June 30, 2023 of $3,699.489 in the Utility Fund is 
net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $2,521,274 

(:apital Assets and Depreciation Expense 

Capital assets, which include land and land improvements. buildings, equipment, and infrastructure assets 
(streets, roads, bridges, canals, and sewer and drainage systems) are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical 
cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of 
donation. Major additions are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
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(1) MINEMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital Assets and Depreciation Expense (continued) 

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as 
capital outlav expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary 
fimd operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide tinancial statements. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially extend 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation on all capital assets, excluding land and constniction in progress, is calculated on the 
straight-line rnethod over the following estimated useful lives. 

Land improvements 7 to 20 years 
Buildings and building improvements 20 to 50 years 
Street system 10 to 20 years 
Drainage system 20 years 
Office equipment 4 to 10 years 
Machinery and equipment I 0 years 
Vehicles 4 years 
Bridges 25 years 
Water system 20 to 50 years 
Sewerage system 10 to 50 years 

Pensions 

The City is a participating employer in three defined benefit pension plans as described in Note 3. For 
purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense. information about the fiduciary net position of each of 
the plans, and additions toideductions from each plans' fiduciary net position have heen determined on 
the same basis as they are reported by each of the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including 
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the henetit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value within each plan. 

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

The Statement of Net Position includes a separate section for Deterred Outflows of Resources. This 
represents the consumption of net assets that applies to future periods. This category includes deferred 
charge on refunding reported on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. The deferred charge on 
refunding is the difference between the canymg value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This 
amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the lite of the refunded or the refunding debt. This 
category also includes amounts related to pensions and other post-employment benefits for certain 
actuarially determined differences projected and actual investment earnings. 

The Statement of Net Position also includes a separate section for Deferred Inflows of Resources. This 
represents the acquisition of net assets applies to future periods. Currently, this category includes revenue 
recen ed in advance. and amounts related to pensions and other post-employment benefits for certain 
actuarially determined differences between projected and actual experience. 
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Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources (continued) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet include unavailahle revenue. 
Unavailable revenue consists primarily of grant related receivables. The City considers revenues available 
if they are collected within 6.0 days of the end of the fiscal year. 

Compensated Absences 

Vacation and sick leave benefits are based on the number of years of service. Unused sick leave may be 
carried forward to suhsequent years. Only 30 days of unused vacation niay be carried forward to 
subsequent years. However, upon retirement or termination 30 days of eanied vacation will be paid to 
City employees. In addition. 30 days of earned sick leave will be paid to City employees only upon 
retirement Upon retirement, unused and unpaid sick leave and vacation leave are converted to time 
served for retirement credit. The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in 
the governnient-wide financial statements. 

In the fund financial statements, the governinental funds report a liability for compensated absences thr 
the amount that has rnatured as a result of employee resignations and retirements. 

Conipensated absences are liquidated hy the funds in which the employees' salaries were reported. In 
prior years, the funds which have tvpically been used to liquidate compensated absences have been the 
General. Sales Tax, Puhlic Safety, Utility and Airport Funds. 

Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) 

The City provides certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired employees. The primary 
government recognizes the costs associated with providing these benefits as claims are paid. In the 
government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements. other 
post-employment benefits are reported as liabilities in the applicahle governmental activities, business-
type activities, or propnetary fund type statement of net position. 

Lone-Term Debt 

In the government-wide financial statenients and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statenients, 
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental 
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums 
and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. 
Bonds payable are reported net of the applicahle hond premium or discount. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recoenize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while 
discounts on deht issuance are reported as other financine uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld 
from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
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Ad Valorem Taxes 

Ad valorem taxes are levied based on a calendar year. The tax is due and becomes an enforceable lien on 
the property when the tax bills are mailed in early December. Although the bill states the property taxes 
are due on December 31st, penalties are assessed for any payment not received by January 15th. Taxes 
are hilled and collected by the St. Tammany Sheriffs Office, which receives a fee per property tax bill for 
its services. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they are deterniined to he 
currently collectible Any unpaid taxes are collected in connection with a tax sale held in June. 

Equity Classifications 

In the government-wide financial statements, equity is classified as net position and displayed in three 
components. 

a Net investment in capital assets - consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net 
of accumulated depreciation and reduced hy the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, 
notes, or other borrowings that are attributahle to the acquisition, construction, or improvement 
of those assets and anv related deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources. 

b.Restricted net position - consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either hy (1) 
external groups such as creditors, gantors, contributors, or laws or reeulations of other 
gco, ernments, or (2) law through constitutional pro% isions or enabling legislation. Restricted for 
other purposes on the Statement of Net Position consist of grant related cash, workers 
compensation investments, and Economic Development District. 

c. Unrestricted net position - all other net position that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or 
"net in‘estrnent in capital assets.-

 

The equity of the fimd financial statements is defmed as fund balance and is classified in the following 
categories. 

a Nonspendable Fund Balance - This represents amounts that cannot be spent clue to form (e g., 
inventories and prepaid amounts). 

b.Restricted Fund Balance - This represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by 
external parties, such as grantors, creditors, contributors or laws and regulations of their 
governments. 

c. C'ommitted Fund Balance - This represents the portion of a governmental fund's resources 
whose use is subject to a legally hinding constraint that is imposed by the City Council that 
remains legally binding unless removed in the same manner. These constraints are set by the 
City Council through an ordinance 

d Assignecl Fund Balance - This represents amounts constrained for the intent to he used for a 
specific purpose by the City Council or Finance Director that has been delegated authority to 
assign amounts by the City Council through an ordinance 
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Equity Classifications (continued) 

e Unassigned Fund Balance - This represents fund halance in the General Fund in excess of 
nonspendable, restricted, committed and assigned fund halance. If another governmental fund 
has a ftind balance deficit. it is reported as a negatn e arnount in unassipied fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted tund balances are available for use, it is the City's policy to use 
restricted resources tirst, then unrestricted as needed. When committed, assigned or unassigned fund 
balances are available for use, it is the City's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned 
resources and unassigned resources as they are needed. 

Minimum Unrestricted Fund Bahmce Policy  

Unrestricted fund balance is defined as total fund balance less non-spendable fund balance less restricted 
fund balance. The City has adopted the following minimum unrestricted fund balance policy! 

General fund — The minimum unrestricted fund balance shall he 25% of operating revenue per the last 
audited financial statements of the City. 

Special revenue ftmds primarily funded by sales tax — The minimum unrestricted fund balance shall he 
25% of operating revenue per the last audited tinancial statements of the City plus funds committed to 
capital outlay. 

DISA Building Fund - The minimum unrestricted fund balance shall he 60% of operating expenditures 
per the last audited financial statements of the City plus fluids comrnitted to capital outlay. 

Replenishment - Should the minimum fund halance fall below the targeted levels defined ahove, the 
Mayor shall propose a plan to the Council for their approval to restore the fund balance to the target levd 
within 24 months. If restoration to the minimum fund balance target cannot be accomplished within such 
a period without severe hardship to the City, the Council will establish a different time frame. 

Deficit Fund Balances 

The Grants and Donations Fund had a deficit fund balance of $(1,641.824) at June 30, 2023. The deticit 
fund balance results primarily frorn expenditures incurred for which the related revenue is unavailable at 
June 30, /0/3. 

Encumbrances 

The City uses encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments 
for the expenditure of funds are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicahle appropriation. 
Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase mders for goods and 
services. Appropriations for operating expenditures lapse at the end of the year but appropriations for 
capital expenditures are carried forward. Unfilled purchase orders encumbering operating budgets are 
cancelled and they are only reissued upon reauthorization Appropriations for capital expenditures are 
carried forward for three years. Encumbrances at year end do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. 
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(1) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

tccounting Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions. Those 
estimates affect the reported arnounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources. liabihties, and deferred 
inflows of resources and disclosure of assets, deferred outflows of resources. liabilities, and deferred 
inflows of resources at the date of the financial statements. They may also affect the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses of proprietary funds and the govertunent-wide financial statements during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December 8, 2023, the date the financial statements were 
m ailable to be issued. 

(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The City had the following cash as of June 30, 2023: 

Petty cash: 

Governmental 
Propnetary Funds Fiduciary Funds 

 

Total Funds 

    

Unrestricted 1,325 $ 600 $ 6,050 $ 7,975 
Restricted 200 

     

200 

 

1,525 

 

600 

 

6,050 

 

h.1~5 
Demand deposits: 

       

Unrestricted 58,311,835 

 

?8,?91,?8£; 

 

336,331 

 

86,939.454 
Restricted 12,324,021 

 

790 649 

 

92.168 

 

13,206,838 

 

70,635.856 

 

19.081 .937 

 

428.499 

 

100.146,292 
Total cash and 

cash equivalents  $ 70,637,381 

   

434.549 

 

100,154,467 

Custodial credit risk is the nsk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City's deposits might not he 
recovered. The City's deposit policy for custodial credit risk conforms to state law, as described in Note 
1. At June 30, 2023. the City's demand deposit hank balances of $100,146,292 were entirely secured by 
federal deposit insurance and pledged securities held by the City's agent in the City's name. 

Investments 

As of Rine 30. 2023. the City had the following investments. 

Investment Maturities (In Years) 
Less 

Investment Type Fair Value Than 1 1-5 (;-11)  

U S. Agencies S 2,260.647 S 2,260.647 S 
Certificates of Deptfsit 300.000 300.000 

 

S ',560,647 S ',560,647 
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(2) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Investments (continued) 

The fair value measurements of the investments noted above have been classitied by the fair value 
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting pnnciples. The hierarchy is based on valuation 
inputs used to measure the fair value of investments. 

The levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

a. Level 1 - investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

h Level 2 - investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either directly 
or indirectly, which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to he active. 

c. Level 3 - investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

There were no Level 2 or 3 inputs used by the City for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Custodial credit risk is defined as the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the City will not 
be able to recover the value of its investment. The City is not exposed to custodial credit nsk at June 30, 
2023 since investments are held in the name of the City. The City's investment policy conforms to state 
law, as described in Note 1. 

Concentration of credit risk relates to the amount of investments in any one entity. At June 30, 2023, the 
City had no investments in any one entity which exceeded five percent of total investments, except 
obligations of federally sponsored entities, which are Unplicitly guaranteed hy the federal government. 

Interest rate risk is defined as the risk that chanees in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. The City's investment policy conforms to state law. which includes a pohcy that limits 
investment maturities to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell 
securities prior to maturity. This reduces exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates 

Credit risk is detined as the risk that an insurer or other counterparty to an investment will not iulfill its 
obligations. AS of June 30, 2023, the City's investments are in obligations of or guaranteed by the U.S. 
government. The City's investment policy minimizes credit risk hy limiting its investments to those 
which are either obligations ot guaranteed by. or collateralized by the U.S government. 

(3) INTERFI'NI) TRANSACTIONS 

Due To/From Other Fuuds  

Due toifrom other funds at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Recen. able Fund Payable Fund Amount     
General Fund 
Grants and Donations Fund 
Grants and Donations Fund 
General Fund 

Total  

CDBG Fund ¶ 349,462 
Sales Tax Fund 16,336 
Utility Fund 19.201 
Grants and Donations Fund 1,703,020 

$ 2,098,019 

The above due to:from other funds were short-term receivables or payahles resulting from the normal 
course of the City's operations. 
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(3) INTERFItNI) TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

S 

Transfers In Transfers Out 

Interfund 'transfers 

Interfund transfers at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Governmental Funds: 
1,028,940 

521,182 
S 1.085,857 

4,053.1'5 
4'7,115 

General Fund 
Sales Tax Fund 
Grants and Donations Fund 
City Capital Fund 

 

4,583,086 

 

General Obli.9tion 2016 Bonds Fund 

 

42,125 

 

Non-major C)ther Funds 

 

164.706 213,832 

Total governmental funds 

 

6,340,039 5,394,939 

Proprietary Funds: 

   

Utility Fund 

 

31.225 1,531,571 

Internal Service Fund 

 

5”246 

 

Total proprietary funds 

 

586.471 1,531,571 

Total _`) 6,926,510 $ 6,926,510 

Transfers are primarily used to move funds front: 

   

The Sales Tax Fund to finance various programs accounted for m other funds m accordance with 
budeetary authorizations. 

The General Fund to the Utility Fund to satisfy bond co% enants to provide S25 for maintenance of 
each fire hydrant. 

The General Fund to the Public Safety Fund to finance puhlic safety in accordance with 
budgetary authorization. 

The Utility Fund to the General Fund to satisfy payments in lieu of taxes tsec Note 1) 
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(4) CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION 

A summary of changes in governmental fund type fixed assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 is as 
follows: 

Governmental Activities 
6 30 1011 Additions Reductions 

Completed 
Construction (; 3() 10-'3 

    

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Land S 21,977.563 S 419.790 S - S - $ "1.397.353 
Construction-in-progress 15,6£a3,413 5.312,277 - (14.763,686) 6,238,004 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 37,661,976 5,737,067 

 

(14,763,6861 28,635,357 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 

    

Buildings and building 
improvements 51,345,921 186.747 

 

962.643 52.495,311 
Land improvements 14,364.903 269.460 

 

1,309.628 15.943,991 
Street system 115348.323 83.045 

 

789.135 116.620,503 
Drainage system 88,33),133 33.242 

 

11,702.280 100.074,655 
Office equipment 7,488.159 259.671 (5.322) 7.742,508 
Machinery and equipment 8,254.406 566.224 (30.380) 8.790,250 
Right-of-use leased vehicles 

 

269.517 

 

269,517 
Vehicles 8,794.509 470.1)75 (243.852) 0,070,731 
Bridges 1,621.503 - - 1,621,503 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 295.95(O57 2.137.981 t279.554) 14.763.686 312.579,870 

Less accumula ted 
depreciation for: 

    

Buiklings and building 
improvements '1.263,958 1,167.585 

 

22.431,543 
Land improvements 10,725.463 681.193 

 

11.406,656 
Street system 68,266,028 4,113,834 

 

72.379.862 
Drainage system 45,714.588 3,66(O13 

 

49,365.30 
Office equipment 6,894.865 327.481 (5.322) 7.217,024 
Machinery and equipment 6.021.353 397.019 (30.380) 6.387.992 
Right-of-use leased vehicles 

 

18.72(1 

 

18,720 
Vehicles 7,866.203 498.223 (243.852) 8.120,574 
Bridges 697.174 52.214 

 

749,388 

Total acctunulated 
depreciation 167.439.632 10.916.983 (27).554) 178.077.061 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated. net 128.517.225 (8.779.002i 

 

14.763.w7(6 1 14.501.909 

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net 5166,170.101 S (3.041.936) S 

 

- $1o3.137.2o6 

Construction-in-progress primarily consists of street and drainage system improvements which are financed hy 
sales tax revenues and grants. 
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(4) CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED) 

A summary of channes in proprietary fund type fixed assets as (Winne 30, 2023 tbllows: 

Business-Type Activities: 
6:31):'0'2 Additions 

Completed 
Reductions Construction 6. 30: '11,3 

     

Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Land S 75.658 S 

 

- S 75.658 
Construction-in-progress 16.224.021 6.381.8O 

 

(5.305.3311 l 7.300.552 

Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 16,299.679 6,381.862 

 

(:;.305.:,'31) 17,376,210 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 

     

Buildings and building 
improvernents 2,061.959 - 

 

- 2.061.959 
Land improvements 11,222.747 - 

  

11.222.747 
Water system 26,472.582 45.156 

 

3.306.683 N.824.421 
Sewerage system 70.049,437 65',101 

 

1.998.649 72.700.288 
Office equipment 398.499 43.006 (4.295) 

 

437,210 
Right-of-use leased vehicles - 848.91111 - - 848.900 
Vehic les 2.331.425 - - - 2.331.41 5 
Machinery and equipment (3.235,81)4 90,528 (110,i54) 

 

6,215.788 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 118.772,453 1.679,792 (114.8-(5)) s 305  332 125,642.728 

Less accumulated 
depreciation fur: 

     

Buildings and building 
improvements 1.103.514 88.645 

 

- 1.192.159 
Land improvements 8.510.55(3 303.457 - - 8.814.013 
Water system 18.866.097 446.800 

  

19.312.897 
Sewerage system 33.163.344 1.592.621 

  

34.755.965 
Office equipment 374.155 13.754 

 

- 387.909 
Right-of-use leased vehicles 

 

48.704 

  

48.704 
Vehic les 1 ,051.11)9 127.245 

  

2.179.454 
Machinery and equipment 4.383,9311 308.218 (113.775) 

 

4.578.373 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 68.453.805 2.929.444 (113.775) 

 

7 I .209.474 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated. net 50,318.648 (1.249,652) (1.074) 5,305.331 54.373,254 

Business-Type Activities 
capital assets, net 60,618,327 S 5,132,120 S (1 074) S 1 $ 71.749.464 

     

Construetion-in-progress primarily consists of sewer improvements 
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(5) CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions:programs of the City as follows: 

 

Depreciation 

Ewen s e 

A inort izat ion 

Evense 

 

Total 

Governmental activities : 

    

Cieneral government 520,961 

   

Public works 8,279,247 

  

8,279,247 

Public safety 099,710 I 8.720 

 

1.018,430 

Recreation and culture 1.072,700 

  

1.072,700 

Judicial system 25,645 

  

'5.645 

Total governmental activities S 10,898,263 S 18,721) 

 

10,3Q6,022 

Bus iness -type act iv ities : 

     

$ 2.435,467 $ 48.704 s 2.484.171 

Airport 445,363 

  

445.363 

Total business-type activities $ 2.880,830 $ 48,71)4 5 2,929.534 

(6) PENSION PLANS 

Plans Description 

The City provides pension henefits for all of its full-time employees through three separate cost-sharing, 
multiple-employer public employee retirement systems. All full-time City employees, except police, are 
members in the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of the State of Louisiana { the Municipal 
System). All full-time police are members of the Municipal and State Police Retirement System of 
Louisiana (the Police System). The City Court Judge is a member of the Louisiana State Employees' 
Retirement System (LASERS). 

Prior to January l , 2013. municipal employees participating in the Municipal System are entitled to a 
retirement benefit at or after age 60 with 10 years of creditable service or at any age with 25 years of 
creditable service. The retirement benefit is generally two percent of the member's final compensation 
inultiplied by his years of creditable service. After 2013, municipal employees participating in the 
Municipal System are entitled to a retirement henefit at or after age 67 with 7 years of creditable sentce, 
at or after age 62 with 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with 30 years of creditable service, 
or at any age with 25 years of creditahle service with an actuarially reduced early benefit. 

The retirement benefit is generally two percent of the member's final compensation multiplied by his years 
of creditable service. Howe% er, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited 
to specified amounts The system also provides death and disability benefits as well as a deferred retirement 
option. Benefits are established hy state legislation. The Municipal System issues a publicly available 
financial report that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the 
Municipal System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal Employees' Retirement System 
of Louisiana, 7937 Office Park Blvd., Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
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JUNE 30., 2023  

(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Plans Description (continued) 

Police participating in the Police System prior to January 1, 2013 for at least one year are eligible for 
regular retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any 
age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years creditable service and is age 55. A 
member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of 
creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. The retirement benefit is generally three 
and one - third percent of the members' average fmal compensation multiplied by their years of creditable 
service (not to exceed 100% of average final compensation). Police participating in the Police System 
after January 1, 2013, under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, is eligible for regular retirement after he has 
been a member of the System and has 25 years of creditable service at any age or has 12 years of 
creditable service at age 55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular 
retirement after he has been a member of the System and has 30 years of creditable service at any age, 25 
years of creditable service at age 55, or 10 years of creditable service at age 60. Under both sub plans, a 
member is eligible for early retirement after he has been a member of the System for 20 years of 
creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit from age 55. Under the Hazardous and 
Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are 3% (generally) and 21/2%, respectively, of average 
final compensation (average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months 
if service was interrupted) per number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary. 
The system also provides death and disability benefits as well as a deferred retirement option. Benefits are 
established by State legislation. The Police System issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for the Police System. That 
report may be obtained by writing to the Municipal and State Police Retirement System of Louisiana, 
8401 United Plaza Building, Room 235, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70809. 

For LASERS participants, the age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire 
with full benefits are established by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and 
job classification. The majority of LASERS rank-and-file members may either retire with full benefits at 
any age upon completing 30 years of creditable service or at age 60 upon completing five to ten years of 
creditable service depending on their plan. The rank-and-file members hired between July 1, 2006 and 
June 30, 2015 may retire at age 60 upon completing 5 years of creditable service or those hired on or after 
July 1, 2015 may retire at age 62 with 5 years of creditable service. Additionally, members may choose to 
retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit. The basic annual retirement 
benefit for members is equal to 2.5% to 3.5% of average compensation multiplied by the number of years 
of creditable service. LASERS issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at 
www.lasersonline.org. 

Contributions 

Contributions to the retirement systems were based on participating full-time employee earnings, which 
were approximately as follows for fiscal 2023: 

Municipal System $ 7,613,000 
Police System 5,925,000 
LASERS 43,000 

Total $ 13,581,000 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Contributions (continued) 

According to state statute, contributions requirements for all City employers are actuarially determined 
each year by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial C'ommittee. For the vear ended June 30. 2023, the 
ernployer and employee contnhution rates were 29.50% and 10.0% of employee earnings, respectively, 
for the Municipal System_ 31 25% and 10.00% of employee earnings. respectively. for the Police System, 
as well as 43.80% and 13.0% of employee earnings. respectively, for the LASERS. 

The City's 2023 contributions to the Municipal System consisted of 29.50% of participating employee 
earnings. The City's 2023 contributions to the Police System consisted of 31.25% of participating 
employer wages. The City's 2023 contributions to the LASERS consisted of 43.80%, of the participating 
judges wages. 

The City's contributions to the Municipal System for the year ended June 30. 2023 were approximately 
$2,246,000, equal to the required contribution for each year. The City's contributions to the Police 
System for the years ended June 30. 2023 were approximately $1.852,000, equal to the required 
contribution for each year. The City's contributions to the LASERS for the year ended June 30, 2023 was 
approximately $19,000. equal to the required contribution for the year. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows nf 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the City reported a liability totaling $35.297,016 of which $15,521,299 was for its 
proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Municipal System, $19,608,799 for the Police 
System, and $166,919 tbr the LASERS. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022 and 
the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of that date. The City's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the City's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating employers, actuarially detemuned. At June 30, 2022, the City's proportion was 3 737160% 
for the Municipal System, which was a decrease of .172683% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2021. At June 30, 2022, the C'ity's proportion was 1 918336% for the Police System, which was a 
decrease of .260190% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021. At June 30, 2022, the City's 
proportion was .002208% Ibr the L.ASERS, which was an increase of .000010% frimi its proportion 
measured as of June 30. 2021. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized pension expense plus the City's amortization of 
change in proportionate share and difference between employer contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions consisted of the following: 

 

Pension Expense Amortiza tion Total 
Municipal System 2,057,850 $ (2,152,947) (95,(197) 
Police System 3,878,009 (1,740.589) 2,137.420 
LASERS 22.109 (15,430) 6,679 

Total 5,957,968 $ (3M18,9(,6) $ 2,049,002 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the City recognized revenue for the support provided by non-employer 
contributing entities totaling $692,877. of which $266,140 was for the Municipal System and $426,737 
was for the Police System. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows nf Resources mid I)eferred Inflows of 
Resources Rehited to Pensions (continued) 

At June 30, 2023. the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources. 

Differences 
between 

expected and 
actual 

ex erience 
Deferred outflows of resources 

Change in 
assum tions 

Net 
difference 
hetween 

projected and 
actual 

earnings on 
pension plan 
investments 

Changes in 
proportion 

and 
differences 

between 
emphiyer 

contributions 
and 

proportionate 
share of 

contributions 

Employer 
contributions 
subsequent to 

the 
measurement 

da te Total 

            
Municipal S 18.330 $ 150.366 $ 2,582.680 $ 402.277 $ 2,245.717 $ 5,399.370 
Police 96.710 676.394 3,500.788 1.784.264 1,851638 7.909.794 
LASERS 455 3,(135 13.445 33' 18.973 36,240 
Total 115,495 8'9,795 6.096,913 2.186,873 4.116,328 I 3.345,404 

Deferred infllMN Of resources 

     

Municipal (59.433) 

  

(452,663) 

 

(512,096) 
Police (15).818) (145.849) 

 

(185.478) 

 

(491.145) 
LASERS 

   

(271) 

 

(271) 
Total (219,251) (145,849) 

 

(638.412) 

 

(1,003.512) 

Total (103,756) $ 683,946 $ 6,096,913 $ 1.548,461 $ 4,116,328 $ 12.341,892 

Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date totaling $4.116,329 and reported as deferred 
outflows of resources will be recoguzed as a reduction of the net pension habihty in the year ending June 30, 
2023. C)ther amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: Municipal Police LASERS 

 

Total 
'023 534,538 1. 658,836 8.400 

 

2.201.774 
2024 61 1.3'6 1,382,213 2,778 

 

2.006,317 
2025 247.147 689.659 (3.400) 

 

933,406 
10/6 1,238,546 1,836,303 9.217 

 

3,084.066 

Total .64 1 557 S 5,567 011 S 16 995 y 8,22s •;61 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINiTEI)Z 

Actuarial Assumptions — Municipal System Plan A 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 taluation for the Municipal System were based on 
the results of an experience study, for the period July 1. 2013 through June 30, 2018. The total pension 
liability as of June 30, 2022 is based on actuarial valuations for the same period. updated using generally 
accepted actuarial procedures Information on the actuarial valuation and assumptions is as follows: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 1021 

Actuarial Cost Method: Frozen Attained Age Normal 

Actuanal Assumptions. 

Investment Rate of Return 6.85%. net of investment expense 

Projected Salary Increases Salary increases include 2.5% inflation 

Years of Service Salary Increase 
(less than or equal to) (in the following year) 

1-4 6.4% 
Above 4 4.5% 

Mortality Rates 120% of the Pub6-2010(B) Employee Tables for males and 
females, each with the full generational NE12018 scale 

120% of the PubG-2010(B) Healthy Retiree Tables for males 
and females, each adjusted using MP20113 scale 

120% of the PubNS-2010(B) Disabled Retiree Tables for males 
and females. each with the full generational MP2018 scale 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 3 years 

The long-terrn expected rate of return on pension plan ill% estments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weightine the expected future real rates of 
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected intlation and an adjustment for the 
effect of rebalancingidi% ersification. 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUEI)Z 

Actuarial Assumptions — Municipal System Plan A (continued)  

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target 
allocation as of June 30. 2022 are summarized in the following table. 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

Public equity 53% 2.31% 
Public fixed income 38% 1.65% 
Alternatives 9% 0.39°.;, 
Total 100% 

 

Inflation 

 

2.6(A) 
Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

 

6.95% 

I)iscount Rate 

The discount rate used to rneasure the total pension liability was 6.85% for the year ended June 30. 2023. 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contnbutions from plan 
members will be made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from participating 
employers will be made at the actuarially determined rates which are calculated in accordance with 
relevant statutes and approved by the Board of Trustees and the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial 
Committee. Based on those assurnptions. the System's fiduciary net position was projected to he mailable 
to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore. the lom-term expected 
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

The effects of certain other changes in the net pension liability are required to be included in pension 
expense over the current and future periods. The effects on the total pension liability of (1) changes of 
economic and demographic assumptions or of other inputs and (2) differences between expected and 
actual experience are required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over 
a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are 
provided with benefits through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), determined 
as of the beginning of the measurement period The effect on net pension liability of differences between 
the projected earnings on pension plan investments and actual experience with regard to those earnings is 
required to be included in pension expense in a systematic and rational manner over a closed period of 
five years, heginning with the current period. 

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liahihtv to Chanties in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the City's Municipal System Plan A proportionate share of the net pension 
liability using the discount rate of 6.85'!•o, as well as what the City's proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one 
percentage point higher than the current rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(5.85%) Rate (6.85%) (7.85%) 

Net iension 20,646,359 15.521,299 S 11,190,7K7 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions — Municipal System Plan A (continued) 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
stand-alone audit report on their financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Access to the 
report can be found on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website,  www.11a.la.gov. 

Actuarial Assumptions — Police System 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 valuation for the Police System were based on the 
assumptions used in the June 30, 2022 actuarial funding valuation, and were based on the results of 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2019. In cases where benefit 
structures were changed after the study period, assumptions were based on estimates of future experience. 
The total pension liability as of June 30, 2022 is based on actuarial valuations for the same period, 
updated using generally accepted actuarial procedures. 

Information on the actuarial valuation and assumptions is as follows: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2022 

Actuarial Cost Method: Individual Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 6.75% (Net of investment expense) 

Inflation 2.50% 

Salary increases, including Years of Service Salary Growth Rate 
Inflation and merit increases 1 — 2 12.30% 

3 & Over 4.70% 

Mortality Rates For annuitants and beneficiaries, Pub-2010 Public Retirement 
Plans Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees 
multiplied by 115% for males and 125% for females, each with 
full generational projection using the MP2019 scale. 

For employees, Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Below-Median Employees multiplied by 115% 
for males and 125% for females, each with full generational 
projection using the MP2019 scale. 

For disabled lives, Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality 
Table for Safety Disabled Retirees multiplied by 115% for males 
and 125% for females, each with full generational projection 
using the MP2019 scale. 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 4 years 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions — Police System (continued) 

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously granted cost-of-lning increases. The present values 
do not include provisions for potential future increases not yet 
authorized by the Board of Trustees. 

The mortality rate assumption used was set based upon an experience studv for the period of July 1, 2014 
through June 30, 2019 A change was made full generational mortality which combines the use of a base 
mortality table with appropnate mortality improvement scales. In order to set the hase mortality table, 
actual plan mortality experience was assigned a credibility weighting and combined with a standard table 
to produce current levels of mortality. 

Best estimates of the arithmetic nominal rates of return for each major asset class included in the 
System's target allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class Target Allocation 

Long-Terrn 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return  

Equity 55.50% 3.60% 
Fixed income 30.50% 0.85?i) 
Alternatives 14.00% 0.95% 
Other 

 

(i.000'0 

Tota1 

Inflation 

Expected Arithmetic Nominal Return 

100% 5 40% 

 8 06% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6 750%. The protection of cash flows used tO 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will he made at the current 
contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
determined rates approved by PRSAC takme into consideration the reconunendation of the System's actuary. 
Based on those assumptions, the Svstem's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit pavinents of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investinents was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)  

Actuarial Assumptions — Police System (continued)  

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 6.750%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, 5.750%, or one percentage point 
higher, 7.750%, than the current rate as of June 30, 2022. 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)  

Net pension liability $ 27,448,564 $ 19,608,799 $ 13,060,000 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
stand-alone audit report on their financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Access to the 
report can be found on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website,  www.11a.la.gov. 

Actuarial Assumptions — LASERS 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuations for the LASERS was determined using 
the following actuarial assumptions: 

Valuation Date: June 30, 2022 

Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal 

Actuarial Assumptions: 
Investment Rate of Return 7.40% per annum 

Inflation 2.50% per annum 

Expected Remaining 
Service Lives 2 years 

Mortality Rates Non-disabled members — Mortality rates based on the RP-2014 
Blue Collar (males/females) and White Collar (females) Healthy 
Mortality Tables projected on a fully generational basis by the 
MP-2018 Mortality Improvement Scale. 

Disabled members — Mortality rates based on the RP-2000 
Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, with no projection for 
mortality improvement. 

Termination, Disability, Termination, disability, and retirement assumptions were 
and Retirement projected based on a five-year (2014-2018) experience study of 

the System's members for 2019. 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED) 

Actuarial Assumptions — LASERS (continuedl 

Salary Increases Salary increases were projected based on a 2014-2018 
experience study of the System's members. The salary increase 
ranges thr specific types of members are: 

Member Type 
Regular 
Judges 
Corrections 
Hazardous Duty 

Lower Ranee 
3.0% 
2.6% 
3.6% 
3.6% 
3.6% 

Upper Ranee 
12.M. 
5.1% 

13.8% 
13.8% 
13.8% 

Cost of Living Adjustments The present value of future retirement benefits is based on 
benefits currently being paid by the System and includes 
previously ganted cost of living increases. The projected benefit 
payments do not include provisions thr potential tliture increases 
not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as they were deemed 
not to bc substantively automatic. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building block 
method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investrnent expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of 
return hy the target asset allocation percentage and hy adding expected inflation of 2.3% and an 
adjustment for the effect of rebalancing:diversification. The resulting expected long-term nominal rate of 
return is 8.34% for 2022. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class 
included in the System's target asset allocation as ofJune 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset ( - lass Target Allocation 
Long-Term Expected 

Real Rate of Return 
Cash 

 

0.39% 
Domestic equity 31% 4.57% 
International equity '3% 5.76% 
Domestic fixed income 3% 1.48% 
International fixed income 14% 5.04% 
Ahemative investments 1 4% 

 

Total 100% 5.91% 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current 
contribution rates and that contrihutions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially 
deternnned rates approved by PRSAC. taking into consideration the recommendation of the System's actuary. 
Based on those assumptions, the Svstem's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected ti.iture benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of retum on 
pension plan investinents was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability. 
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(6) PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)  

Actuarial Assumptions — LASERS (continued)  

Sensitivity of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the participating employers calculated using the 
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, or one percentage point higher than the current 
rate. 

1.0% Decrease 
(6.25%) 

Net pension liability $ 210,033 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.25%)  

1.0% Increase 
(8.25%) 

$ 166,918 $ 127,606 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
stand-alone audit report on their financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. Access to the 
report can be found on the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's website,  www.11a.la.gov. 

(7) OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) 

Plan Description 

The City of Slidell (the City) provides certain continuing health care and life insurance benefits for its 
retired employees. The City of Slidell's OPEB Plan (the OPEB Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit 
OPEB plan administered by the City. The authority to establish and/or amend the obligation of the 
employer, employees and retirees rests with the City. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the 
criteria in Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

Benefits Provided 

Medical/dental and life insurance benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement. The 
employer pays 100% of the retiree medical/dental coverage for retirees and dependents for those who 
retired prior to July 1, 2010. For those retiring after June 30, 2010 and hired before September 1, 2008, 
the employer pays for a portion of the medical/dental coverage for retirees and dependents based on years 
of service at retirement: 10 or more years, 80%; 20 or more years, 90%; and, 25 or more years, 100%. For 
those retiring after June 30, 2010 and hired on or after September 1, 2008, the employer pays for a portion 
of the medical/dental coverage for retirees only (not dependents), and only until attainment of age 65, 
based on years of service at retirement: 10 or more years, 55%; 20 or more years, 65%; and, 25 or more 
years, 75%. The employer also pays for life insurance coverage after retirement (see section entitled "Life 
Insurance" below for more details). Employees (other than Police) are covered by the Municipal 
Employees' Retirement System, whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entiy) provisions as follows: 25 
years of service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of service. Employees hired on and after January 1, 
2013 are have retirement eligibility of age 55 and 30 years of service, age 62 and 10 years of service, or 
age 67 and 7 years of service. Police are covered by the Municipal Police Retirement System, whose 
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions as follows: 25 years of service at any age; age 50 and 20 
years of service; or, age 55 and 12 years of service. 

Life insurance coverage is continued to retirees according to a flat schedule: $10,000 before age 65; 
$6,500 from age 65 and below age 70; and, $5,000 at age 70 and after. The employer pays 100% of the 
active/retired blended rate. 
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)  

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms  

As of the measurement date June 30, 2023, the following employees were covered by the henetit terms 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefit payments 188 
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments 
Active employees 230 

418 

Total OPEB Liability 

The City's total OPEB liability of 538,702,326 was measured as of June 30, 2023, the end of the fiscal 
year. 

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Inputs  

The total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2023 actuarial measurement was detemined using the following 
actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless 
otherwise specified: 

Inflation '.5% 
Salary increases 4.0%, including inflation 
Prior discount rate 3.54%, annually (beginning of year to determine ADC) 
Discount rate 3.65% annually (as of end of year measurement date) 
Healthcare cost trend rates 5.5% annually for ten years: 4.5% thereafter 
Mortality rates SOA RP-2000 Table 

The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyers' 20 Year General Obligation municipal bond index over 
the 52 weeks immediately preceding the applicable measurement dates. 

The actuanal assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 valuation were based on the results of ongoing 
evaluations of the assumptions from July l, 2009 to June 30, 2023. 

Chances in the Total OPEB Liability 

S 42.j94,4ti6 Balance at June 30, /0),  

Changes for the year: 

 

Service cost 281,373 

Interest 1,463,324 

Difference hetween expected and actual experience (2,902,929) 

Changes in assumptions (518,627) 

Benefit payments and net transfers (1,915.301) 

Net changes (3,59),160) 

Balance at June 30, 2023 3S,701,316 
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OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point 
higher than the current discount rate: 

1.0% Decrease Current Discount 1.0% Increase 
(2.65%) Rate (3.65%) (4.65%) 

Total OPEB S 46,951,210 S 38.702.326 32,321,493 

Sensitivits of the Total OPEB Liability to Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

The followmg presents the total ()PEB liability of the City, as well as what the City's total OPEB liability 
would he if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (4.5(1%) 
or 1-percentaee-point higher (6.50%) than the current healthcare trend rate (5.50%): 

1.0% Decrease Current Trend 1.0% Increase 
(4.50%) (5.50%) (6.50%) 

Total UPEB liability  S 33.047,280 S 38.702.326 46,065.'83 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to 
OPEB 

For the year ended June 30. 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of $1.021,399. At June 30, 2023, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred intkiws of resources related to OPEB from 
the following sources. 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows of 
of Resources Resources 

Changes in assumptions 3O)4,235 $ (3,697,037) 
DifTerences between expected and actual 

experience 736,1/1 (2,600,305) 
Total 3,740,356 $ (6,297,342) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 
will he recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 

Years ending June 30. Net amount to be recoonized 
/0'4 ti (850.796) 
2025 (850,796) 
, ())6 (855.389) 

(2,55(>.981) 
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JUNE 30„ 2023  

(8) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions of the City for the year ended June 30, 
2023: 

Description 
Balance at 
6/30/2022 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
6/30/2023 Current Non-current 

Governmental Activities: 

      

General obligation bonds $ 14,675,000 $ $ (1,125,000) $ 13,550,000 $ 1,165,000 $ 12,385,000 
Bond issuance premiums 627,036 

 

(41,803) 585,233 41.803 543,430 
Subtotal for general obligation bonds 15,302,036 

 

(1,166,803)  r 14,135,233 1,206,803 12,928,430 
Compensated absences 1,274,731 1,011,069 (834,075) 1,451,725 294,660 1,157,065 
Net pension liability 15,736,761 15,220,535 

 

30,957,296 

 

30,957,296 
Net OPEB liability 33,935,399 2,928,070 (4,467,273) 32,396,196 

 

32,396,196 
Claims 3,557,026 6,490,195 (7,353,742) 2,693,479 1,985,404 708,075 

Total governmental activities 69,805,953 25,649,869 (13,821,893) 81,633,929 3,486,867 78,147,062 

Business-Type Activities: 

      

Utility revenue bonds 8,345,276 8,519,373 (891,000) 15,973,649 1,012,000 14,961,649 
Compensated absences 156,205 154,586 (145,388) 165,403 43,263 122,140 
Net pension liability 3,137,645 1,202,075 

 

4,339,720 

 

4,339,720 
Net OPEB liability 8,359,087 284,280 (2,337,237) 6,306,130 

 

6,306,130 

Total business-type activities 19,998,213 10,160,314 (3,373,625) 26,784,902 1,055,263 25,729,639 

Total long-term debt $ 89,804,166 $ 35,810,183 $ (17,195,518) $ 108,418,831 $ 4,542,130 $ 103,876,701 

GASB Statement No. 65 requires current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of 
debt reported by governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary funds, the difference 
between the reacquisition price, and the net carrying amount of the old debt be reported as a deferred 
outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources. GASB Statement No. 68 established standards for 
measuring and recognizing deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions. 

  

Defened Outflows of Res ources 

  

Balance at 

  

Balance at 

Description 6/30/2022 Additions Reductions 6/30/2023 

Governmental Activities: 

    

General obligation bonds - 

deferred charges on refundings $ 243,248 $ $ (40,071) $ 203,177 

Pens ion 4,887,342 7,031,880

 

- 11,919,222 

OPEB 4,501,670 

 

(1,370,765) 3,130,905 

Total governmental activities 9,632,260 7,031,880 (1,410,836) 15,253,304 

Business-Type Activities: 

    

Utility revenue bonds - 

deferred charges on refundings 7,111  

 

(3,722) 3,722 

Pens ion 777,060 649,122 

 

1,426,182 

OPEB 1,108,867 

 

(499,416) 609,451 

Total bus ines s -type activities 1,893,371 649,122 (503,138) 2,039,355 

Total defened outflows of resources $ 11,525,631 $ 7,681,002 $ (1,913,974) $ 17,292,659 
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(8) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

   

Description 

Balance at 

6'30'2022 Additions Reductions 

Balance al 

6'30:2023 

Governmental Activities • 

    

Leases S (2,398577) $ - $ 799.5'6 S (1.599,(151) 

Pensicrn (8,001,027) 

 

7.130.359 (874068) 

OPEB (4,490,617) (780.641) 

 

(5,271,258) 

Total governmental activities (14,)+90.221) (780,(41 ) 7,9'9.885 (7.740,977) 

Business-Type Activities • 

    

Leases ((;70.209) - 122.230 (547,979) 

Pension (814,673) - 681.829 f 132.844) 

OPEB (1,100_145) - SO. 001 ( 1.020.0S-0 

Total business-type activities (2,591,027) - 884,120 (1,706.907) 

Total deferred mflows ofresources S (17.481,248) S (780.641) * 8.814.005 S (9,-147.884) 

Details on the City's long-term debt as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

General Obligation Bonds secured by an irrevocable pledge of 100°.;. ad valorem taxes related to the 
bonds through 2036: 

512,000,000 General obligation Bonds. Series 2016, bearing interest 
from 2.01/4  to 4.0%, payable semi-annually through 2036, streets. 
bridges and drainage. 

54,920,001) Reftmding Bonds, Series 2016, bearing interest at 1.22%, 
payable senu-annually throueli 2029, street and bridges, and drainage. 

$ 9,335.000 

-1.215.000 
 

 $ 13,550,000 

The annual requirements to maturity for general ohligation bonds as of June 30, 2023 are as follows. 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal 

 

Interest 

2024 $ 1,165,00(1 

 

376,573 
)015 1.205,00(1 

 

348,877 
2026 1,255,00(1 

 

319,720 
2027 1.295,000 

 

289,041 
2028 1.340,000 

 

268,640 
2019-2033 4,490,00(1 

 

856,656 
2034-2036 2.800,000 

 

170,700 

 

$ 13.550,00_0 $_ ?. (13 0,707 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2023 

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

Utility Revenue Bonds secured hy an irrevocable pledge of 101Ris of the City's revenues of the Utility 
Fund through 2039: 

$3,625,000 Utility Revenue Refunding Bonds. Series 2012, bearing 
interest at 2.34%, payable semi-annually through 2024, improvements 
to wastewater treatment plant and sewer system. 

$16,400,000 Utility Revenue Bonds (DEQ), Series 2018, 
bearing interest at 0.95%, payable senn-annually through 2039, 
improvements to the wastewater treatment plant and sewer lift stations. 

$2,600,000 Utility Revenue Bonds (LDH), Series 2022, 
bearing interest at 2.011%, payable semi-annually through 2043, 
improvements to the wastewater treatment plant. 

s 135.000 

13.172,381 

2,566,268  

$ 15.973,649 

The annual requirements to maturity for utility revenue bonds as ofJune 30. 2023 are as follows. 

Year Ending 
June 30, Princ ipal Interest 

1 0'4 S 1.114,000 S 191,312 
2075 890,000 178,957 
10'6 899,000 168,927 
2027 910,000 158,782 
2028 920,000 148,487 

2029-21)33 4.757,000 568,428 
2034-2038 5.039,000 304,247 
1039-'043 1.444,649 64,423 

 

$ 15,973149 $ 1,783,562 

On January 11, 2022, the City entered into a loan and pledge agreement with the Louisiana Department of 
Health (LDH) Loan No. 1103041-01. The purpose of the loan is to pay the cost of constructing, acquiring, 
extending and'or improving the watenvorks components of the combined utilities system Under terms of 
the agreement, the LDH will loan the City an amount not to exceed $2,600,000. Upon completion of the 
prgject (currently expected to be in April 2024) the actual amount borrowed will be determined and the 
City will issue Utility Re‘enue Bonds to evidence the debt as authonzed by ordinance No. 3312. The 
bonds will be payable over a 20-year period and will hear an interest rate of 2.00%. This amount is 
recorded as a liability in the financial staternents of the Utility Fund. Under terms of the agreement. the 
City is subject to compliance with certain provisions and covenants. As of June 30, 2023, the City is in 
compliance with all significant provisions and covenants. 
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(8) LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED) 

On June 27, 2018, the City entered into a loan and pledge agreement with the Louisiana Department of 
Environmental Quality (DEQ) Loan No. CS221123-03. The purpose of the loan is to pay the cost of 
constructing improvements to the wastewater treatment plant and sewer lift stations in the C'ity. Under 
terms of the agreement, the DEQ. through its Municipal Facilities Revolving Loan Fund. will loan the 
City an amount not to exceed $16.400,000. Upon cornpletion of the project (currently expected to be in 
December 2020) the actual amount borrowed will be determined and the City will issue Utility Revenue 
Bonds to evidence the debt as authorized by ordinance No. 3885. The bonds will be payable over a 20-
year period and will bear an interest rate of 0.95%. Under terms of the agreement, the City is subject to 
compliance with certain provisions and covenants. As of June 30, 2023, the City is in compliance with all 
significant provisions and covenants 

At June 30, 2023, $67,477,837 are considered available for the retirement of general long-term debt in the 
Debt Service Fund : 

In accordance with the Revised Statutes of the State of Louisiana, aggregate debt payable solely from ad 
valorem taxes for each specific purpose shall not exceed 35% of the total assessed valuation of taxable 
property As of June 30, 2023, the City was in compliance with these statutes 

Pursuant to the Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2012, certain assets of the Special Revenue and Enterprise 
Funds are restricted (see Note I ). As of June 30, 2023, the City was in substantial compliance with the 
restrictive covenants of its debt ageements. 

There are a numher of limitations and restrictions contained in the various bond indentures. The City is in 
compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions, including federal arbitrage regulations. 

In prior years, the City defeased certain general obligation and sales tax revenue bonds by placing the 
proceeds of the new refunding bonds in an irrevocable trust escrow account to provide for the future debt 
sen ice payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased 
bonds are not included in the Statement of Net Position. At June 30, 2023, $4.585,000 in general 
obligation bonds outstanding are considered defeased. 

General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, Public Safety Fund, DISA Fund, Utility Fund and Airport Fund have heen 
used to liquidate the liability for net pension liability and net OPEB liability. 

Interest costs incurred and charged to expense during the year ended June 30, 2023 for all business-type 
activities was $144,428. 

(9) LEASES 

The Citv leases a building which it owns, which it refers to as the DISA Building, to two separate tenants. 
The DISA Building was acquired by the City in 1996 hy an act of donation. The estimated fliir market 
value is $7.500,000 and has a carrying 1, alue as of June 30. 2023 of $3.125,000. Depreciation expense 
related to the building for the year ended June 30, 2023 was approximately $137,000, which was recorded 
in the govenunent-wide financial statements. The City recognized $799.526 in lease revenue and $25,489 
in interest revenue during the year ended June 30, 2023, related to these. As of June 30. 2023, the City's 
recen, ables for lease payments were $1,665,285. Also, the City has a deferred inflow of resource 
associated with these leases that will be recognized as revenue over the lease terms. As of June 30, 2023, 
the balance of the deferred inflow of resources was $1,599,052. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
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JUNE 30., 2023  

LEASES (CONTINUED) 

The City also leases to others land and property at the Airport under various lease agreements. The City 
recognized $58,319 in lease revenue and $7,696 in interest revenue during the year ended June 30, 2023, 
related to these leases. As of June 30, 2023, the City's receivables for lease payments were $543,458. 
Also, the City has a deferred inflow of resource associated with these leases that will be recognized as 
revenue over the lease terms. As of June 30, 2023, the balance of the deferred inflow of resources was 
$547,979. 

Future minimum rental payments to be received under these leases are as follows for the years ending 
June 30, 2023: 

  

DISA Building 

 

Other Land and Property at the Airport 

 

Total 

 

Year Receipts Interest Principal Receipts Interest Principal Receipts Interest Principal 

2024 $ 39,464 $ 6,690 $ 32,774 $ 830,878 $ 15,769 $ 815,109 $ 870,342 $ 22,459 $ 847,883 
2025 18,464 6,231 12,233 855,804 5,629 850,175 874,268 11,860 862,408 
2026 18,464 6,081 12,383 

   

18,464 6,081 12,383 
2027 18,464 5,930 12,534 

   

18,464 5,930 12,534 
2028 18,464 5,777 12,687 

   

18,464 5,777 12,687 
2029-2033 93,939 26,486 67,453 

   

93,939 26,486 67,453 
2034-2038 79,030 22,638 56,392 

   

79,030 22,638 56,392 
2039-2043 79,030 19,113 59,917 

   

79,030 19,113 59,917 
2011  2048 79,030 15,368 63,662 

   

79,030 15,368 63,662 
2049-2053 79,030 11,389 67,641 

   

79,030 11,389 67,641 
2054-2058 69,974 11,389 58,585 

   

69,974 11,389 58,585 
2059-2063 35,243 4,319 30,924 

   

35,243 4,319 30,924 
2064-2068 35,243 2,386 32,857 

   

35,243 2,386 32,857 
2069-2073 14,426 847 13,579 

   

14,426 847 13,579 
2073-2075 5,770 104 5,666 

   

5,770 104 5,666 

Total $ 684,035 $ 144,748 $ 539,287 $ 1,686,682 $ 21,398 $ 1,665,284 $ 2,370,717 $ 166,146 $ 2,204,571 

Amortization of deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2023 is as follows: 

Year 
DISA 

Building 

Other Land and 
Property at the 

Airport Total 

2024 $ 799,526 $ 32,899 $ 832,425 
2025 799,526 14,992 814,518 
2026 

 

14,992 14,992 
2027 

 

14,992 14,992 
2028 

 

14,992 14,992 
2029-2033 

 

74,960 74,960 
2034-2038 

 

62,217 62,217 
2039-2043 

 

62,217 62,217 
2044-2048 

 

62,217 62,217 
2049-2053 

 

62,217 62,217 
2054-2058 

 

57,606 57,606 
2059-2063 

 

27,699 27,699 
2064-2068 

 

26,557 26,557 
2069-2073 

 

13,564 13,564 
2073-2075 

 

5,858 5,858 

Total $ 1,599,052 $ 547,979 $ 2,147,031 
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JUNE 30. 2023 

(9) LEASES (CONTINUED) 

The City entered into multiple aereements as lessee for the acquisition and use of vehicles. An initial 
lease liability was recorded in the amount of $1.118,507 for business-type activities. As of June 30, 2023, 
the value of the lease liabilities were $1,051,622 for business-t)pe activities. The City is required to make 
monthly principal and interest payments totaling $18.642. The City uses its incremental borrowing rate 
for the leases. which is 1.22% for the vear ended June 30. 2023. 

The future pnncipal and interest lease payments as of June 30. 2023, were as follows: 

Year EndinL, 
June 30, 

Business-Type Activities 
Principal Interest Total 

2024 $ 218,864 $ 11,609 S 230,473 
1 01s 221,550 8.924 230,473 
2026 224.268 6.205 230,473 
1 0'7 227.019 3.454 230,473 
2028 159,922 801 160,723 
Totals $ 1,051,622 $ 30,992 $ 1,082,615 

(1(1) DEDICATED REVENUES 

The City eollects a two percent sales and use tax pursuant to two separate one percent tax propositions 
approved by the voters in November 1962 (fiscal 1963) and September 1986 (fiscal 1987). These 
revenues are dedicated for specific purposes and are accounted tbr in two separate Special Revenue Funds 
— Sales Tax Fund and Public Safety Fund. 

Dedication of the 1963 tax, as amended, requires one half of all proceeds of the tax to he used first for 
debt service requirements and the costs for bonds issued for the purpose of constructing, acquiring, or 
improving lands, huildings or other works of public improvement for the City, including equipment and 
furnishings thereof, title to which shall be in the public's name. The remaining dedicated revenue is to be 
used for constructing, acquiring or improving the atbrementioned capital improvements. The proposition 
also provides for one half of the 1963 sales and use tax revenues to be undedicated. These undedicated 
revenues are available for eeneral operations Proceeds of the 1963 sales and use tax serve as security tbr 
outstandinL,  sales tax revenue bonds { see Note 5). 

All proceeds of the 1987 tax, after paying the reasonable and necessary expenses of collecting and 
administenng the tax. were dedicated to the purchasing, constructing, acquiring, extending, improving, 
maintaining,, and. or operating public facilities, public works or capital improvements and payine the 
capital costs of police protection and public safety for the City or any sites, equipment and furnishings 
thereof. According to the voter-approved proposition, the City is further authorized to fund the proceeds 
of the tax into bonds for the above-stated capital purposes. 

In a tax proposition approved hy voters in December 2012, the 1987 tax was rededicated to include all the 
lawful purposes approved in September 1986. and beginning, July 1, 2013, for paying the operational cost 
of police protection and public safety. 
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(10) DEDICATED REVENUES (CONTINUED) 

An inter-2overnmental agreement (known as the Sales Tax Enhancement Plan) was executed between the 
City and Sales Tax District #3 of St. Tammany Parish. The queement targets all undeveloped commercial 
properties (within St. Tammany Parish) annexed into the City atler November 4, 1986 and stipulates that 
the two percent sales and use tax derived from the subsequent development of such properties would be 
split equally (after the City recovered approximately S1,386.000 of costs relating to the extension of 
services to two retail developments) between the City and Sales Tax District #3 of St Tammany Parish. 
The initial agreement had a twenty-year life, and expired December 1, 2006. The City entered into 
negotiations with St. Tammany Parish to renew this agreement and on October 24, 2006, an ordinance 
was passed renewing the inter-governmental agreement between the City and Sales Tax District #3 of St. 
Tammany Parish, with a few minor changes. The agreement has a 25-year life, expiring December 1, 
2031. 

(11) COMMITMENTS AND ENCUMBRANCES 

The local electric company owns and leases to the City certain street lighting facilities. In 1986, the City 
renegotiated the lease afgeement, which expired in December 2001 but automatically renews for one-year 
intervals until cancelled. The City has no intention of cancehng this lease at this time. The total ainount 
paid by the City for street lighting under this agreement was approximately $.594,000 for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. 

The City has a contract with a sanitation disposal company to provide garbage collection services to City 
residents. In January 2011, the City resumed a recycling program with this sanitation disposal company. 
This contract requires the City to pay a monthly fee of S17.71 per household for garbage collection and 
S1.90 per household for recycling service. The City in turn bills a monthly fee of approximately $10.04 
per household for garbage collection and $1.90 per household for recycling and collects a 4.00 mill 
property tax for garbage collection in accordance with the voter-approved proposition. The City. paid 
approximately $2,467,000 for garhage collection and fbr recycling under this contract during the year 
ended June 30. 2023. 

Appropriations in governmental funds are encumbered upon issuance of purchase orders for goods and 
services. Unfilled purchase orders encumbering operating budgets are cancelled and they are only 
reissued upon reauthorization. Appropriations for capital expenditures are carried forward three years. 

Encumbrances include the following contractual commitments by fund as of June 30, 2023: 

Fund Amount 

Sales Tax Fund S 1.158,000 
Grants and Donations Fund 2,407,00(1 
American Rescue Plan Fund 3.300,000 
City Capital Fund 1,104,000 
General Obligation Bond 2016 Fund 989.000 
Other non-major govermnental funds 770,000 
utility Fund 2.740,000 
Airport Fund 155,000 

 

12.623,000 
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JUNE 30. 2023 

(12) CONTINGENCIES 

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are sukject to audit and adjustment by such grantor 
agencies, principally the Federal government. Any disallowed clairns, mcluding amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. 

The City is a defendant in a number of claims and lawsuits resulting principally from personal injury, 
property damage, and construction clanns. The City Attorney and the outside administrator have reviewed 
these claims and lawsuits in order to evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorahle outcome to the City and to 
arrive at an estimate, if any, of the amount or range of potential loss to the City. As a result of such 
review, the various claims and lawsuits ha% c been categorized into "probable," "reasonably possible." and 
"remote" contingencies, as defined in National Council on Governmental Accounting Statement No 4 for 
Claims and Judgments. The City's "probable" loss contingencies at June 30, 2023 were approximately 
$300,000. 

(13) RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to thefts of. damage to, and destruction of assets, 
errors and omissions, negligent acts of law enforcement officials and natural disasters. These risks are 
covered by commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. The City had no claims that 
exceed insurance coverage for fiscal vears ended June 30, 2023. 

The City is also self-insured with excess coverage in these areas: (a) workers' compensation with 
$600,0001750,000 retention and statutory limit on coverage, 01) general liability with $100,000 retention 
per occurrence and a $10.000,000 limit per occurrence and $10.000,000 aggregate limit on coverage. (c) 
auto liability with $100,000 retention per accident and a $10,000,000 per occurrence. The City also has 
an aggregate limit of $2,000.000 for workers' compensation claims and an annual stop loss of 5600,000 
thr general liability and auto liability combined. The City is self-insured for employee medical insurance 
with $80,000 retention per individual and an aggregate stop loss of $4,820,519. 

The City uses the General Fund to account for self-insured risk financing activities The liability for 
claims in excess of amounts payable with expendable available resources is recorded in the governmental 
activities in the Statement of Net Position. The Sales Tax Fund, the Puhlic Safety Fund, and the 
Enterprise Funds make contributions to the General Fund for claims. Estimated losses from claims are 
recorded when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably 
estimated. The expenditure and liability includes an amount for claims that have heen incurred but not yet 
reported. The liability for claims is based on the estimated ultimate cost of settling the claims using past 
experience adjusted for current trends 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30., 2023  

(13) RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Changes in the claims liability amounts are as follows: 

 

Automoble/ 

General 
Liability 

Workers' 
Compensation 

Employee 

Health/ 
Dental Total 

Balance, June 30, 2021 $ 1,947,300 $ 612,533 $ 1,278,790 $ 3,838,623 

Claims incurred 187,806 482,866 5,458,309 6,128,981 

Changes in estimates (45,775) (404,635) 47,575 (402,835) 
Claim payments (256,426) (331,220) (5,420,097) (6,007,743) 

Balance, June 30, 2022 1,832,905 359,544 1,364,577 3,557,026 

Claims incurred 300,643 422,334 5,670,401 6,393,378 

Changes in estimates (534,129) 327,618 303,328 96,817 
Claim payments (590,701) (842,335) (5,920,706) (7,353,742) 

Balance, June 30, 2023 $ 1,008,718 $ 267,161 $ 1,417,600 $ 2,693,479 

(14) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 90, "Majority Equity Interests an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 61." The primary objectives of this Statement are to improve the consistency and 
comparability of reporting a government's majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and 
to improve the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, as 
extended by GASB Statement No. 95, "Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative 
Guidance." The City plans to adopt this Statement as applicable by the effective date. 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 94, "Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements." The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of 
financial statement users by improving the comparability of financial statements among governments that 
enter into public-private and public-public partnerships (PPPs) and availability payment arrangements 
(APAs) by enhancing the understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about 
PPPs and APAs. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2022. This Statement did not have a material effect on the City's financial statements upon 
implementation. 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 96, "Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements." 
The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by (a) 
establishing uniform accounting and financial reporting requirements for SBITAs; (b) improving the 
comparability of financial statements among governments that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) 
enhancing the understandability, reliability, relevance, and consistency of information about SBITA. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. This 
Statement did not have a material effect on the City's financial statements upon implementation. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(14) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 99. "annibus 202r The primary objectives of this Statement are 
to (1) duties that a governing hoard typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the plans) 
as fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund tinancial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance. The 
requirements of this Statements are effective for tiscal years ending after December 15, 2021. This 
Statement did not have a material effect on the City's financial statements upon implementation. 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 100, "Accounting Changes and Error Corrections". The primary 
objective of this Statement is to eithance accounting and tinancial reporting requirement for accounting 
changes and error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and 
comparable information for niaking decision or assessing accountability The requirements of this 
Statements are effective for fiscal years ending after June 15, 2023. This Statement did not have a 
material effect on the City's tinancial statements upon implementation. 

The GASB has issued Statement No. 101, "Compensated Absences". The primary objective of this 
Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition 
and measurement guidance for compensated absences. This objective is achieved by aliping the 
recognition and measurement guidance under a umfied model and by amending certain previously 
required disclosures. The requirements of this Statements are effective for fiscal years beginning atler 
December 15, 2023. This Statement did not ha% e a material effect on the City's financial statements upon 
implementation. 

(15) PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

During the year ended June 30, 2023, the Sheriff s Office became aware of cumulative $980,599 in sale 
tax overpayments from fiscal years ended June 30, 2020, 2021, and 2022. The City accordingly adjusted 
beginning fund halance with a decrease of $980,599 and an increase of $980,599 in due to other 
governments. 

(16) DISCRETELY' PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS  

Fremaux Economic Development District, State of Louisiana ("the District') 

C ash and cash equnalent,:s 

The District had the following cash and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2023. 

Total 
Governmental funds: 

Restricted demand deposits S -33 
Restricted money market mutual funds 1.269,689 

$ 1,236,764 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that. in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits might not he 
recovered. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit risk conforms to state law, as described in 
Note 1. At June 30, 2023. the Distnct's demand deposit bank balances were entirely secured by federal 
deposit insurance, and the District's money market mutual funds were entirely secured by government 
backed securities held in the District's name. 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023 

(16) DISCRETELY PRESENTEI) COMPONENT UNITS (CONTI N E DI  

Fremaux Economic Development District, State of Louisiana ("the District") (continued) 

Dedicated Revenues  

On March 25, 2008, the City Council passed ordinance number 3461 levying an additional sales tax of 
one percent t I%) in the Distnct and passed ordinance number 3462 levying a hotel occupancy tax of one 
percent (I 4!'"o) in the District to fund economic development projects sdected by the District. On December 
13, 2011. the City Council adopted ordinance nuniber 3636 to reduce the levy from one percent (1%) to 
one-half of one percent ( 0.50%). 

Long-term Debt 

The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the District for the year ended June 30, 
2023: 

Dest.iiption 
Babnce at 
6'30 2022 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 
6'30.'2023 

 

Cunent Islon-ciment 

CI, ivennuental Activities 

      

Sales Tax B4mds. Series 2014 

      

R-I S 1.625.000 S - 1, (325.00U1 1, 13auxio 1, - 1, I mio.noo 
R-2 i 2c)o.iloo 

 

i2c)o.lieo 

 

- 3 200.100 
Original issue disLounts t 32.6701 1.485 t31.1851 

  

(31.1851 
Sales Tax Bonds. Series 2015 

      

R-I 4040.000 

 

4040.000 

  

4 040.4‘.10 
Ongnial issue discounts (40.906) 1.750 (39.156) 

  

(:9.156) 

TOIal goveninrntal activities 5 S 791.424 S - S (321.765) S 469.659 S - 5 S 469.659 

Sales Tax Bonds secured by an irrevocable pledge of 100n) of the C'ity's sales and use taxes through 
2045: 

$5,710,000 Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2014, issued on April 3, 2014, secured 
by an irrevocable pledge and dedication of all the avails or proceeds of the 
special one-half of one percent (1 .2%) sales tax now being levied and 
collected, bearing interest from 5.0% to 6.0%, R-1 bonds mature in 
2034 and R-2 bonds mature in 2043, economic development projects. 

$5.250.000 Sales Tax Bonds. Series 2015, issued on November 12. 2015. 
secured by an irrevocable pledge and dedication of all the avails or 
procee(l. of the special one-half of one percent (.50%) sales tax now being 
levied and collected, hearing interest of 5.50%, R-1 bonds mature in 2045, 
economic development projects. 
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JUNE 30. 2023 

(16) DISCRETELY PRESENTEI) COMPONENT UNITS (CONTI N E D)  

Fremaux Economic Development District, State of Louisiana ("the District") (continued)  

Lona-term Deht (continued)  

The annual requirements to maturity for Saks Tax Bonds as ofJune 30. 2023 are as follows: 

Year Ending 
June 30, Principal Interest  
2024 $ 488,700 
2025 488.700 
)076 488,700 
2027 488,700 
2028 488,700 

2(129-2033 2,443,500 
2034-2038 2.510,000 1.928,650 
2039-2043 1,708,100 
2044-2046 6,030,000 615,200 

Total $ 8,540,00(1 $ 9,138,850 

The Bonds were issued for the purpose of paying the costs of various capital improvements within the 
Distnct and paying the costs of issuance of the Bonds. Most of the proceeds were used to pay or 
reimburse Slidell Development C'ompany, L.L.C.. the developer, for certain costs of economic 
development projects (consisting of water, sewer. drainage. road.s and related infrastructure projects and 
other costs of a multi-purpose real estate development consisting of retail, commercial, residential, office, 
hotel, education and,Or rnedical facilities) in or beneficial to the District. 

Camellia Square Economic Development District, Staie of Louisiana ("the District") 

Cash and cash equivalents 

The District had the following cash as ofJune 30. 1013: 
Total  

Governmental funds: 
Restricted demand deposits. 48,937 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District's deposits might not be 
recovered. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit nsk conforms to state law. as described in 
Note 1. At June 30, 2023, the District's demand deposit hank balances were entirely secured by federal 
deposit insurance. 

Dedicated Revenues 

On May 14, 2013. the Council passed ordinance number 3686 levying an additional sales and use tax of 
one percent (1%) in the District. The Council passed ordinance number 3487 levying a hotel occupancy 
tax of two percent (2%). The purpose of the District is to reimburse a developer for economic 
development (a shopping center and hotel) within the District. 
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(16) DISCRETELY PRESENTEI) COMPONENT UNITS (CONTINUED)  

Northshore Square Economic Development District. State of Louisiana ("the District'') 

('ash and cash equivalents 

The District had the followmc! cash as of June 30, 2023: 
Total 

Governmental funds: 
Restricted demand deposits.  181,481   

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a hank failure, the District's deposits might not be 
recovered. The District's deposit policy for custodial credit nsk conforms to state law. as described in 
Note 1. At June 30, 2023. the Distnct's demand deposit bank balances were entirdy secured by federal 
deposit insurance and by govenunent backed securities held in the District's name 

Dedicated Revenue,; 

Ordinance nuniher 3753 levied a one half of one percent 10.5%) sales and use tax beginning April 1, 2015 
for the purpose of paying the costs of economic development projects. The purpose of the District is to 
finance economic devdopment projects within the District. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANC E 

BUDGET AND AC11.1AL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

GENERAL. FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actual on 

Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Netiative) Onemal Final 

    

Taxes: 

Ad valorein S 1.360.000 $ 1,360.000 S 1.460,336 S 100.336 

Franchise 1.933.000 1,933.0()0 2.451,090 518.090 

Beer and tobacco 70.000 70.000 71,286 1.286 

C)ther 9.600 9.600 22,669 13.069 

Licenses and penults 2.199.200 2.199.200 2.776,896 577.696 

Interpovenunental reveinies: 

    

Federal and state grants 

  

7,833 7.833 

Other state and local governmental revenues 

 

- 

 

- 

Fines and forfeatines 251.500 251.500 274,423 22.923 

Service charges 224.997 224.997 247,152 22.155 

Contributions 

  

- - 

Other revenues, primarily interest, net 72.000 390,040 2.715.697 2.325.657 

Total aevenues 6.120.297 6.438.337 10.02',382 3,589 045 

EM'ENDITURES: 

    

General goveinment 

    

Adnunistrative 991./(51.1 991.858 958,535 33,3'3 

Finance 954.319 941.819 732,552 209,267 

Legal 503,393 503.393 362,283 141.l10 

Data processing 641,788 641.788 576,799 64,989 

Purchasing 297,991 297.991 291,002 6,989 

Civil service 145.320 123.370 115,480 7,890 

Hunian resources 327.370 362.320 361,866 454 

Legislative 797.219 797.219 779,064 18 155 

 

4.6s9.758 4,659.758 4.177.581 482.177 

Public works: 

    

Building safety 907.483 907.483 N50.418 57.065 

Plannuig 441.651 441.651 376.283 65.368 

 

1 :349,134 1.349.134 1,226.701 122.433 

Recreation and culture 70i7.7ns 412.708 387,154 75.554 

Judicial system 620.820 739.820 632,234 57.586 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

    

7.026.420 7,161.420 6.473.670 687.750 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(undei) expendimres (906.123) (723.(I83) 3.553.712  4.276.795 

Seelndependent.kuditor.' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTIN(.IED) 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE \TAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

OTHER FINANCING SOI:Rt 'Es (UsES): 

 

Budgetary Amounts Actual on 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Vanance with 
Final Blidget 

Positive (Ne9ative) 

 

Orunnal Fuial 

     

Transfers ui 

 

1,028,9.10 1,028.940 1.028.940 

 

Transfers (out) 

 

fl22,817) (1,(185.857) (l.0S5.857) 

 

Total other tinancuig (uses) 

 

906,123 (56 91%) (5o.017) 

 

Net change in fund balance 

  

(7so Mu) 1496.795 4.2'6 '0S 

Fund balances, hegmning of yeai 

 

7 O6,349 7 .0S6 349 7.08o,349 

 

Fluid balances. end of year 5 7.686.340 $ 6.30o.349 1(O83.144 S 4,276.795 

*Note The City legally adopts annual hudgets for the Cieneral Fund and all Special Revenue Funds 

See Independent Auditor.' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDE[) JUNE 30, 2023 

REVENUES: 

 

Buduetary Amounts Actual on 

Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Neuritive) 

 

(1)riinal 

 

Final 

      

Taxes 

Sales s 11.500.000 8 9.675,731 $ 14.859.895 $ 5,184.164 
Ad valorem 

bitergovemmental revenues: 

 

539.000 

 

539.000 577.551 38.551 

Federal and state rrants 

    

16.040 16.040 
Other state and local giivernmental revenues 

 

16.040 

 

10.040 

 

(16.04(t) 

Service charges 

 

31.000 

 

31.000 68.416 37.426 

Contributions 

    

11.4mi 11.400 

Other revenue 

 

- 

  

4.210 4.210 

Total revenues 

 

'3.086.04(1 

 

10.261.771 15.537.522 5.275. 751 

EXPENDITURES: 

      

General gi ivernmem 

Administrative 

 

3,8.'3.301 

 

4.657.4'9 3.-;1;.650 1,133.779 

  

3.8 '3.10") 

 

4.657 4' 0 3.523.65o 1,133.77') 

Puhlic works: 

      

Streets. bridges and drainage 

 

1.753.515 

 

2.753.518 2,639.745 113.773 

Engineering 

 

658.786 

 

658,786 640.181 18.605 

Electrical 

General maintenance 

Vehicle maintenance 

 

242.163 

786.1 86 
617. .7., 

 

242.163 

836,286 

627.272 

' 18.559 

804.161 

547.962 

13.604 

32.1~5 

79,310 

  

5.008.025 

 

5.115.025 4.860.6118 257.417 

Recreation a nd culture 

 

2. 444 .715 

 

2.504.715 2.25S.911 1 45.804 

Capital outlay 

 

5.715.673 

 

5 7 15 073 696.005 5,019.668 

Total expenditures 

 

17,051.715 

 

17.995,84' 11.339.174 6,656.668 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures 

 

o.034.325  

 

(7.734.071) 4,198.348  O,380.917) 

See Independent .kuditor.' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED) 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

OTHER FINANCLNG SOURCES (USES): 

 

Buduetary Amounts Actual on 
Budgetary 

Basis 

Variance with 
Final Budget 

Positive (Neuritivo 

  

Final 

     

Transfers in 

 

338.142 521,182 521.182 

 

Transfers (out) 

 

(12,088.140) (4.053,125) (4,053.125) 

 

Total other financing (u.ses) 

 

(11.749.998) (3.531.943) (3.531.943) 

 

Net change in fund balance 

 

(5,715.673) (11.266,014) 666.405 (1,380.917) 

Fund balances. beginnine of year 

 

21.564.817 21.564,817 21.564.817 

 

Fund balances, end of year 's 15.849.144 S 10.298.803 $ 22.231.222 $ (1.380.917) 

See Independent Auditor.' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
GRANTS AND DONATIONS FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023 

REVENUES: 

Budgetaiv Amotmt•, Actual on 

Budgetin.y 
Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Positive (Negative) Original I inid 

    

hitei governmental revemies• 
Federal and state giants $ 13,009,361 $ 18.372,447 $ 9,687,837 $ (8.684.(i10) 

Contributions 

 

-197,2-12 108,460 (388,782) 

Total ievenues 13.009 361 18.869.689 9.796.797 (9 073.392) 

EXPENDITURES: 

    

General governuieut 7.379.361 9.247.877 3.158.664 6.089.213 
Public works 

    

Pubhc safety 375.000 263.804 186.485 77.319 
Recreation and culture 755,000 102,693 82,084 20.609 

Capital outlay 5.00(1.000 3.897119 1.605,677 1.286.552 

Total expenditures 13.009,361 13.506,603 6,032,910 7,473 .693 

Excess (deficiency) of ievenues ovei 

(under) expenditures 

 

5.363 086 3_763.387 (1.599.699) 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

  

(42.1251 

 

Net change in fund balance 

 

5.363,086 3,721,262 (1.599,(i99) 

Fund balance, beginning of year (5,363,086) (5.3(;3,086) (5.363.086) 

 

Fund balance. end of year $ (5.3(.3.086) $ 1.6-11.82.1) X  (1.599.(.99) 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 
PUBLIC SAFETY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023 

REVENUES: 

BudgetarY Amotutts Actual on 

Budgetin.y 
Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Positive (Negative) Original I inid 

    

Taxes: 
Sales $ 11,104,269 $ 12.824,269 $ 12.824,269 $ 

 

Ad valorem 1.375,000 1.375,000 1,475,298 100.298 
Intel governmental revenues: 

    

Federal and state giants 300,000 300,000 300.440 440 
Other state and local govenunental ievenues 1,056,200 1.077,300 1.045.338 (31.962) 

Service charges 222,500 200,500 200.250 (250) 
Contributions - 

  

- 

Other revenues, primarily interest 

 

2.136 17.548 15.412 

Total revenues 14.057.969 17,.779 '05 15.8(.3.143 83.938 

EXPENTHTURES: 

    

Ciurent: 

    

Police 11,962,491 11.962,491 12.143.497 (181.(K6) 
Correcrions facility 1,064,497 1.064,497 319.726 744.771 
Regional training facility 327,137 327,137 297.912 19.'25 
Animal control 503,844 503,844 457.933 45,911 

Debt service - '75,000 19.573 5.427 

Capital outlay 100,000 3.977.044 943.056 3,033.988 

Total expenditures 14.057 969 17.860.013 l4.181.697 3.678.316 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under ) expenditures 

 

(2.080.808) 1.681.446 3 762.254 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

    

Inception of lease 

 

269.517 269.517 

 

Transfers in 

Totail other financing sources 

     

269 517 269.7;17 

 

Net change m fund balances 

 

(1.811.291) 1..950.963 3.762.254 

Fuml balances - beginning of !,ear r• 414 3-19 5.414.349 5.414,349 

 

Fund balances - end of year $ 5.414,349 $ 3403.058 $ 7,365,312 $ 3,762.254 

*Note: The Actual on Budgetary Basis amounts above reflect the modified accrual basis of accounting, except dial state 
supplemental pay for police O660.(144) is not reflected above in revenues and expenditures 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED .IUNE 30, 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actual on 

Budgetary 

Etaqs 

Variance with 

Final Budget 

Positive (Negative) Orlpnal 

 

Final 

     

Federal and state grants S 4,687.401 8 4.687,403 S 91.6(t6 $ 0,505.797) 

Other re% enues. primarily interest 

   

9.83? 9.832 

Total revenues 4,687.403 

 

4.687,403 101.438 0,585.965) 

EXPENDITURES: 

     

General government 4,687.403 

 

4.687,403 91.000 4,595.797 

Total expenditures 4,687.403 

 

4,687,403 91,606 4,595.797 

Excess (deficiency) of re% enues over 

(under) expenditures 

   

9.83' 9.83? 

OTHER FINANCING SOURSES (USES): 

     

Transfers Out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net ch;m€e in fund halance 9,S,-; 

Fund balance. beginning of year 

Fund balance. end of year 0.83' 

See Independent Auditor.' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Total OPEB Liability: 

6/30i2023 6/30/2022 6/30/2021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 6/3012018 

      

Service cost S 281,373 $ 47(1.844 $ 418,951 S 333,883 $ 347.366 $ 3-19,555 
Interest cost 1,463,324 1,036.098 1.067.609 1.387,749 1,342.1)82 1.369.301) 
Changes of henetit terms 

      

Differences between expected and actual experience (2,902,929) 379.326 (520,645) 413,478 1,439.223 (859,400) 
Changes of asstunptions (51)+.627) (6.616.133) 578,531 8,318,467 

  

Benefit payments (1,915,301) (1,886.269) O.883.8201 (1,707,0861 (1,940.710) (1.333.522) 

Net change in total OPEB liability O,592.160) (6.616.134) (339.374) 8.746.491 1.187.961 074,067) 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 42.294.486 48.910.62(1 49.249.994 411.503,503 ;9,315.54' 39.789.609 

Total OPEB liability - ending $ 38,702,326 S 42,294.486 S 48.910.620 $ 49.249,994 S 40.503.503 S 39.315.542 

Covered-employee pa.v roll $ 10.954,355 S 10,479.779 S 10.048.540 $ 10,1)48,540 S 9,662.057 S 9.227.325 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll 3.53305384 403 58q. 486.74° o 490.12°o 419 20°u 426.08° 

Note: &halide is intended tu show information fur 10 years. Additional years will he displayed as they become available 

Note: No assets accumulated in a trust that meets Me criteria oj GASB codification P22.101 or P52.101 to pay related henflitsf0rpensionOPEB plan. 

See Independent Atlitor‘' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) JUNE 30. 2023  

 

6/3012023 6;30O0” 6!.30!2.021 6/30/2020 6/30/2019 (i;30;2018 

Actuarially determined contribution S 2.592.520 S 2.703.037 $ 2.681,963 S 2.536.112 $ 2.485.004 S 2.512.969 

Contributions ui relation to the actuarially 

determuied contribution 

Empli iyer ci attributions to trust 

      

Employer-paid retiree premiums O.915.301) (1_886269) (1. 883,820) (1.707.086) (1.940.710) (1. 3.33 , •'2) 

Contribution deficiency 677.'19 S 816.768 S 798.143 829.026 S 544.294 S 1.179.447 

C overed-employee payroll S 10,954.355 $ 10.479,779 $ 10.048,540 S 10,048.540 $ 9.662,057 $ 9.227,325 

Contributions as a percentage of CI ivered employee payroll 1 7.48') 18.006 n 18.75% 16 99"o 20.09°0 14.45°.0 

Note: Schedule is Intended to show infivination Pr 10 years. Additional years will he displayed as they become available. 

See Indepetukut Auditors' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

FOR  THE lT AR  ENDED JUNE 30. 2023* 

Municipal System 

63012023 6 '30/2022 6'30/2021 6'30/2020 6,10l2019 6'30/2018 6'30/2017 6'30,2016 6;30/2015 

3.73716% 3.56448°o 3.77861% 3.88141% 3.99688% 3.96208% 3.66849% 3.68263% 3.58843% City's hoportion of die Net Pension Liability 

Citys Propoitionate Share of the Net Penion Liability $ 15 521.299 $ 9.914.605 $ 16336.-159 $ 16.129.078 $ 16.549.796 $ 16.575.064 $ 15.036.066 $ 13.154.743 $ 9.209.507 

City's Coveied Payroll S 6,799.511 S 6.803.770 S 7.313.765 S 6.957.556 S 7.009.489 S 6.662.801 S 6.415.651 S 5.576.000 S 5.292.000 

City's Pioportionate Share id the Net Pension Liability 

as a Percentage of its Coveied Payroll 228 27°O 145 72" O 223 37"O 231 82" O 236 11"O 248 77°O 234 37°6 235 92°6 174 03°6 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position a• a Peicentage of the 
Total Pension Liability 67.870.0 77.82% 64.52% 64.68% 63.94% O.50% 62 11% ii6.180o 73.99% 

Police S stem 

         

CiWs Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 1.918336Do 1 6581466 ii l 667760Dti 1 516-136Dti 1 648868Dii 1 586870Dti 1 613780Do 1 592232Do 1 518915Do 

City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $ 19 608.799 $ 8.838.825 $ 15.413.971 $ 13.771.779 $ 13.939.631 $ 13.854.064 $ 15.125.703 $ 12.473.473 $ 9.502.271 

City's Cowl ed Payroll S 5.598.035 S 4.814.419 S 4.800.992 S 4.732.287 S 5.018.855 S 4.750.774 S 4.483.688 S 4.076.000 S 3.820.000 

City's Propoitionate Shale of the Net Pension Liability 
a% a Percentage ot us Coveied Payroll 350 2ro 183 59°I) 321 06°I) ?11l 0.2°o 277 75°.o 291 62°I) 337 35°I) 306 0.2°o 248 75°o 

Piaui Fidnemy Net Position as a Percentage of the 
Total Pension Liability 84 10% 84 09% 71 nno 0 71 (10°0 71 $9. 0 70 01°0 66 04°0 70 7300 75 100 0 

LASERS 

         

City's Proportion of the Net Pension Liabihty 0.00"1°O 0 0022VO 0 00211('6 0 00213°O 0 00210' el 0 00213(' el U 0020N' el 0 001866 6 U 00182('6 

City's Propurtionate Share ot the Net Pension Liability S 166.919 S 120.977 S 1 74.180 R 154.172 S 147.038 $ 1-49.646 R 161.527 126.644 5 113.961 

City's Covered Payroll 

chys Propoolunate Shale of the Net Pension Liability 

S 42.679 S 41.131 S 40.624 S 39.440 S 39.440 5 37.-155 5 35.917 1 34.000 1 34.000 

as a Percentage ot its Coveied Payroll 391 10°o 294 13°o 428 76°.o 390 90°c) 372 81"o 399 54"o 449 72Ni 372 4ro 335 18'. o 

Piaui Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 
Total Pension Liability 63 7000 71  $(10 0 58 ono., 62 9000 64 30° o 62 5tro 57 70% 62 66°o 65 02°o 

Nate Schedule is intended to show inlarmanon fin. Itt years Additional years Hill be &splayed as they become avadabk 

°The amuunts presented have a measurement date gf the prmous fiscal rear ond 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS - REIIREi<tENT PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 

6/3012023 6:3011011 6:3012021 6/3012020 6'30,,2019 630/2018 630/2017 630/2016 630/2015 

Munici tal System 

Contracncilly Requited Contribution ¶ 2.112 917 ¶ 2.005.857  ¶ 2.007.112 ¶ 1.901.579 ¶ 1.808.964 ¶ 1,734.849 ¶ 1.515.787  ¶ 1.267.000 ¶ 1.101.000 

Contributions iti Relation to the 
Contractually Requireil Conti ibuiton (2.112,917) (2.005.857) (2.007.112) (1.001.579) (1.808.964) (1.734.849) (1.515.787) (1.267.09i t 1.303.828.i 

Contribution Deficieucy (Excess) 

city% Covered Payroll 

Contributions as a Percentage of 

Covered Paroll 

,9I) .•2(12.8.28) 

S 7.f, ¶ 6.799.512 ¶ 6.803.770 S 7.313.765 S 6.957.556 S 7.009.489 S 6.662.801 S 5.642.000 $ 5.576.000 

26 00°0 24 75% 22 75% 22 46% 23 38% /7 76% 20 50°I) 29 50°I) 26 000 ,3 

Police S 'stem 
Contractually Required Conti ibution S 1,761.842 S 1.665.416 S 1.624.873 ¶ 1.561.544 ¶ 1.526.162 ¶ 1.543.299 S 1.510.089 S 1.323.000 S 1.285.000 

Contrlbutions in Relation to the 
Contractually Requited Contribution (l 761.8421 (1.665.416j (1.624.8- 3) (1.561.544 (1.526.162) (1.543.2!'!') (1.510.08'..) (1.123.P.5) (1.318.4521 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) S - S - 3 - b 3 - S - 1 - 3 (195) ¶ (33.452) 

City's Covered Papoll S 5.924.986 ¶ 5.598.035 $ 4.814.419 S 4.800.992 $ -1.732.287 S. 5.018.855 $ 4.750.774 $ 4.298.000 S. 4.076.000 

Contnhmions as a Percentage of 

Coveted Papoll 29.74°0 29.75% 33.75% 31.53o „ 32.15o„ 30.75°0 31.79°o 30.79% 32 3514 

LASERS 
Contractually Required Contnbution 1, 18.974 R 18.352 R 17.93.3 S 1 7.143 $ 15.816 1 15.816 $ 14.233 ¶ 11.700 $ 14.300 

Contributiom in Relation to the 
Contractually RequirolCt nal ibution (.18.97-1) (18.352) (17.9331 11 7.143) 115.816) 1 l5.8l6) ( 1 4.23 3) , 14.320) , 13.786) 

Contnhution Deficiency (Excess) ¶ - ¶ - ¶ - ¶ - ¶ - ¶ - ¶ -  ¶ (o2u) ¶ 514  

City's Cowie.] Payroll ¶ 43,319 ¶ 42.679 ¶ 41.131 ¶ 40.624 ¶ 3.0.440 ¶ 3.).440 ¶ 37.455 ¶ 35.000 Y 34.000 

C'ontnlaitions as a Peicentage of 

Covered Payrc4l 43 80% 43 00% 43 60% 42 20qt. -1() 10% 40 10% 3 000,. 40 550 . 

?hue.  Schedule is mended fo ,show tqfirrataiian for 10 sears Addaranal sears will be dtplaled as ilh-) breame availahie 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TC) REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

JUNE 30. 2023  

(1) PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES  

Changes of Benefit Terms 

For MERS and MPERS, there were no changes of benefit terms during  anv of the years 
presented. 

For LASERS, a 1.5% cost of living adjustment, effechye July 1. 2016. was prol, ided by Acts 93 
and 512 of the 2016 Louisiana Regular Legislative Session, and the system added benefits for 
members of the Harbor Police Retirement System. which was merged with LASERS effecnve 
July I, 2015 bv Act 648 of 2014. 

(:hanges of Assumptions 

For MERS, for the valuation year ended June 30, 2021, the investment rate of return was 
decreased from 6.95% to 6.95%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2020, the investment rate 
of return was decreased from 7.00% to 6.95%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2019, the 
investment rate of return was decreased from 7.275% to 7.0% and the rate of inflation was 
decreased from 2.60% to 2.50%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2018, the investment rate 
of return was decreased from 7.4% to 7.275% and the rate of inflation was decreased from 
2.775% to 2.60%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2017, the investment rate of return was 
decreased from 7.5% to 7.4%, the rate for projected salary increases was decreased from 5.0% to 
4.5%. and the salary growth rates were changed over various years of service. 

For MPERS, for thr valuation year ended June 30, 2021, thr investment rate of return decreased 
from 6.950% to 6 750%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2020, the investment rate of return 
decreased from 7 125% to 6.950%, the salary growth rate increased from 9 75% for 1-2 years of 
service to 12.30%, the salary growth rate decreased from 4.75% for 3-23 years of service to 
4.70%, and the salary growth rate decreased for over 23 years to 2.70%. Additionally, the 
mortality tahles changed from RP-200 Combined Healthy with Blur Collar Adjustment Sex 
Distinct Tables projected to 2029 hy Scale AA for healthy annuitants and heneticiaries, RP-200 
Disabled Lives Table. and RP-200 Employee Table to Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plan 
Mortality Table for Safety Below-Median Healthy Retirees, Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans 
Mortality Table for Safety Disable Retirees, and Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Morality 
Table for Safety Below-Median Employers. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2019, the 
investment rate of return decreased from 7.20% to 7.125% and the inflation rate decreased from 
2.60% to 2.50%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2018, the investment rate of return 
decreased from 7.325% to 7 20% and the inflation rate decreased from 2.70% to 2.6tRis. For the 
valuanon year ended June 30, 2017, the inflation rate decreased from 2.875% to 2.70%. 

For LASERS. for the valuation year ended June 30, 2022, the investment rate of return was 
decreased from 7.40% to 7.25%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2021, the investment rate 
of return was decreased from 7.55% to 7.40°.:). For the valuanon year ended June 30. 2020, the 
investment rate of return was decreased from 7.60% to 7 55%; the inflation rate was also 
decreased from 2.5% to 2.3%; and salary increases decreased from 2 8% to 14.0% to 2.6% to 
13.8%. For the valuation year ended June 30. 2019, the investment rate of return was decreased 
from 7 65% to 7.60% The inflation rate was also decreased from 2.75% to 2.5%. For the 
valuanon year ended June 30, 2018. the investment rate of return was decreased from 7.70% to 
7.65%. For the valuation year ended June 30, 2017, the investment rate of return was decreased 
from 7.70% to 7.65%. 

S3 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30. 2023  

(2) OPEB SCHEDULES 

Assumptions to Arrive at Actuarial Determined Contribution 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Healthcare trend rate 

Salary increases 

Pnor discount rate 

Discount rate 

Retirement age 

Mortality  

7:1')) 
Actuarially determined contributions are calculated as of 
the last day of the fiscal year in which contributions are 
reported. 

Individual Entry Age Normal 

Level dollar, open 

30 years 

Market value 

2.5% annually 

5.5% annually for ten years, 4.5% thereafter 

4.0% annually, including mflaction 

3.54% annually Beginning of year to detennine ADC) 

3.65% annually I As of end of year measurement date) 

3 years after the following. attainment of 25 years of 
service at any age; or, age 60 and 10 years of service; for 
employees hired after 1231š2012: 3 years after age 55 
and 30 years of service, age 62 and 10 years of service; 
or age 67 and 7 years of service: for police, 3 years after 
25 years of service; or age 50 and 20 years or service; or 
55 and 12 years of sen-ice 

SC)A RP-2000 Table 

Turnover Age specific tahle with an average of 17% when applied 
to the active census 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2023  

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Special Revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for a particular purpose. 

Community Development Block Grant Fund — accounts for the proceeds of entitlement grants 
received from the Department of Flousing and Urban Development. 

DISA Fund - accounts for revenues earned through the lease of a Citv-owned huilding which 
are used for the upkeep and maintenance of the buildine. 

Katrina Fund - accounts for FEMA reimbursements, insurance proceeds and the related costs 
associated with the storm. 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

Capital Projects funds account for the purchase. construction and renovation of the Citv's major 
capital facilities. Their resources are derived principally from proceeds of general obligation or 
sales tax bonds. certificates of indebtedness and U.S. Government and other agencies grants. 

Public Works Fund — accounts for transfers from the DISA Fund. 

General Obligation Bonds 2010 Fund - accounts for improvements to the City's streets. bridges 
and drainage. The fund's resources are derived from the proceeds of a general obligation bond. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOI 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2023  

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

  

Special Revemie 

 

Capital Plojects Total 

Nonmajor 
Cuu.ernmental 

Funds 

Community 
Development 

Block Grant Fund 
D1SA 
Fund 

lc.suun 

Fund 

Public 
Wol k, 

Fluid 

Gracrdl 
Obligation Bonds 

2010 Fund 

       

C aih and cash equ it Aleuts S - S I N70,04 5 s .4  . ..',5 — ,:isir, 8 1.3:83.717.7 S - S 7.711.428 

lin esuneuts 

  

- 

   

- 

Receivables, net ul allowani.es fat tuicollectible 

       

Taxe: 

  

- 

   

- 
Leases 

  

1 865.285 

   

1.685.285 
Other 

  

1 7.851 

   

1 7.851 
Due tr.in uther hinds 

  

- 

   

- 
Due from Iocal entities 

 

- 

    

- 
Due lioni °Mei governments 

 

448,826 

 

296 13 l 

  

74'1.757 
Inventory 

 

- 

    

- 
Prepaid items 

  

675 

   

675 
Restricted assets: 

       

Cash 

     

445.990 445.990 
Investments 

Total assets 

        

446.626 S 3.653.856 S 4.153.727 S 1.883.787 S 445.990 S 10.563.986 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES 
LIABILITIES: 

      

AiiiAllili salariei, and othet payables $ 9-  trin S i(16.97_4 s - S 37.437 S - 5 241.42U 
Due to othei finails 349.462 

    

349.462 

Due to other gm tinnieffis - 

    

- 

Total liabilities 446.4'2 10o.973 

  

37.427 590,682 

DEFERRED LNFLOWS OF RESOURCES. 

      

Unavailable revenue - 

 

1 59%O51 

   

1.590.051 
Unavailable revenue - intergovernmental 441 170 

  

327.37 

 

761.1.C4b 

Total deferred inflows of reF.IMITieS 441,170 1.599,051 

 

127.378 

 

2.367.599 

FUND BALANCES: 

      

Nonspeuilable: 

      

Inventory 
Prepaid itenis 

 

07s 

   

675 
Restricted for 

      

Debt service 

      

Grams 
Streets and drainage 

   

3.826.340 

 

445 9W1 4.272.339 
Committed tn 

      

Capital outlay 

 

4.97l 

  

1.846.3%0 1.851.321 
Contingencies 

 

1 574.523 

   

1.574.523 
Operating iesewes 

      

Assitmed to 

      

Compensated abseui.es 

      

Public iinpriuementc. facilities & eginpnieni 

 

367,t,oi 

   

367.663 
Publw safety 

      

Unassigned (441,u1r» 

    

1,441.016i 

Total fund bakuices (441016i l .v47.832 

 

J.826.349 1.846.35ti 445.990 7,O5,505 

Total liabilities. defen-ed inflous cif 

resourtes aud fuud balances 44o.o2n S 3 653.s.56 y 4 15.4 727 1.853 787 S 445 ourt S l0.59.86 

See Independent Auditor.' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOLISLANA 
COMBNING STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AN CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

  

speLial Revenue 

 

Capital Projects Total 
Nonneum 

Cioveniniental 
Funds 

CInninunity 
Development 

Block Grant Fwnl 
DISA 
Fund 

Kituinit 
huid 

Pulith. 
Viuurks 
Funil 

General 
Obligation Bond.: 

2010 Fwnl 

REVENUES: 

      

Taxe: and assessments: 

      

Sales taxes - s - S - s - s 

 

Ad valorem 

      

FritliCillsc 

      

Beer and totwco 

      

Other 

      

Licenses ;mil penults 

      

Interguwernmental revenues 

      

Federal and state grants l:35.800 

 

1.738 642 

  

1.894 442 
Other state and local governmental revenues 

      

State supplemental pay 

      

FMCS alld fortelIllres 

      

SCrIrk.e ChUges 

 

1.144.78H 

   

1.144.758 

Othcr revenues. pnmanly interest. net 

    

14.-18 14.718 

Total revenues 155.800 1.144,188 1.738.642 

 

1-1.715 3.0i3.9-18 

EXPENDITURES: 

      

Cuirent 

      

General 4overiunent 26.269 1.175.381 2,,1 28.400 

 

1.230.311 
Pulilic works - 

  

5.08(1 

 

5.086 
Public safety 

      

Recreation and culture 

      

Judicial systetu 

   

'3.000 

 

-3 1100 
Debt servtce 

      

Principlietirement 

      

Interest and fiscal charges 

      

Bond Issuance Lost 

      

Capital outlay 276,970 43.2tiO 

 

84.598 

 

-14 

Total expenditures 303.139 1.218.581 2,,1 O1.084 

 

1.- 13.165 

Excess tileficiencyi of revenues over 
tinter i expenditmes 147.439't ('3.7951 1.738.381 (191.084) 14."I8 1.34i '83 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES i: 

      

Inception of lease 

      

Proceeds of refimding lion& 

      

Payment If,  refunded Ixmd esctow agent 

      

Transfers in 

 

84.706 

 

sr1.000 

 

164.706 
Transfers oin 

 

100.00(4 

 

1 I 3.32) 

 

(213.8321 

Total other financing sources 

 

i15.2941 

 

i 33.S32'; 

 

1,19.126j 

Net change ui fiind balames (147.439) (89,087i 1.738.351 (224.91(9 14.715 1,291.657 

Fund L.:fiances. beginning of year (293.57-1 2.036.919 1147 96i: 2 t t7I .266 431.2'2 6.333 i%-lb 

Fund balances. end of year S (441.01(o S 1N4"..832 S 3.826.349 S 1.846.350 $ 445.990 s 7.625.5II5 

See Independent Auditors' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

COMNIUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actua] on 

Budgetary 
Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Positive (Ne):ative) 

 

Final 

     

Inteigovernmental revenues 5.201.134 $ 5.'01.134 S 155,800 $ (5,045.334> 

Total revenues 5.201.134 5.201.134 155,800 

 

(5.045,334) 

EXPENDITURES: 

     

General government 411,000 40.000 26,269 

 

13,731 

Capital outlay 5.161.134 5.101.134 276,970 

 

4.884,1(4 

Total expenditures 5.201.134 5.201.134 303,239 

 

4.897.895 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures 

  

(l47.439) 

 

(147,430) 

OTHER FINANCENC SOURCES (USES) 

     

Net change in fund balance 

  

(147A39) 

 

t 147A39) 

Fund balance, beginning of year (293.577) (293,577) (293,577) 

  

Fund balance, end of year S (293.577) $ (293.577) S (441.4)10 $ r 147.439) 

See Independent Auditors' RelH.rt 
SS 



CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDIJLE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

DISA FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actual on 

Budgetary 
Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Posirive (Negative) 

 

Final 

    

Service charges 1.039.371 $ 1,123.771 $ 1,1-14,788 $ 21,017 

Intergovemniental revenues 

    

Othei revenues, priniarily interest 

Total revenues 

    

1.039,371 1.123.771 1,144,788 21.017 

EXPENDITURES: 

    

General government 1,124,077 1.207.277 1,175,381 31.896 

Capital outlay 142,770 142.770 43,200 99.57(1 

Total expenditui es 1.266,847 1,350.047 l.21ti.581 131,466 

Excess i deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures (227,470 (226.276) (73,793) 152.483 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

    

Transfers in 84.706 84.706 84.706 

 

Transfers out 

 

(100.(►00) (1011O)0) 

 

Total other financing sources 84,70o (15.294) (15,294) 

 

Net change in fund balance (142,770) (241.570) (89,087) 152.483 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,036,919 2.036.01'1 2,036,919 

 

Fund balance, end of year S 1,894,149  $ 1.795.349  S 1,947,832 $ 152.483  

See Independent Auditorc' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

KATRINA FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 7,0 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actua] on 

Budgetary 
Basis 

Variance wirli 

Final Budget 
Posirive (Ne):ative) 

 

Final 

    

Intel governiimit a l revenues 

 

50.00(1 ti l.738,(A2 1.688,642 

Total revenues 

 

)0 000 1,735.642 1.688.642 

EXTENDITURES: 

    

Cieneral governmenr 

 

50.00(1 261 49339 

Total expenditines 

 

)0.000 261 49339 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expendittnes 

  

1,738,381 1.738.381 

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): 

    

Transfers in 

    

Transfers out 

    

Total other financing SOUTCCS 

    

Net change in fund balance 

  

1,738,381 1.738.381 

Fund balance, beginning of year 2.087,968 2.087,968 2,087,968 

 

Fund balance, end of year S 2,087,968  $ 2,087.968  S 3,826,349  $ 1.738.381  

See Independent Auditorc' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
BALANCE SHEET 

CAMELLIA SQUARE ECONOMIC DEVEL(:1PMENT DISTRICT 
JUNE 30, 2023 

ASSETS 

General 
Fund 

CURRENT ASSETS:  
Receivables. net of allowaiices for uncollectibles: 

Taxes S 33,21.X) 
Restricted assers 

Cash 48,937 

Total assets 82,227 

LIABILITIES AtiI) FUND BALANCES 

LIABILITIES:  
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 5 3S3 

Due to other govennuent 

Total liabilities 445 

FP\I1 BALANCES:  
Restricted for economic development SI.752 

Toral fund balances 81,782 

Total liabilities and fund balances S2.227 

See Independent Auditorc' Report 



CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

CAMELLIA SQUARE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actual on 

Budgetary 
Basis 

Variance with 

Final Budget 
Posirive (Ne):ative) 

 

Final 

     

Taxes 

Sales and use S 105,000 $ 157.285 S 157,285 $ 

 

Hotel occupancy 25.000 34;262 34.262 

  

Other revetnie 10 1.12/ 1 129 

  

Total revenues 13(O10 192.676 192,676 

  

EXPENDITURES: 

     

General government 6,000 8.400 

  

1 

Economic developmern 124,010 186.010 186,010 

  

Total expenditures 13I1.010 194.41(1 194,409 

 

1 

Excess (deficiency) c,f revenues over 

(tinder) expenditures 

 

(1.734) (1.733) 

  

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

     

Net change in hind balance 

 

(1.734) (1,733) 

 

1 

Fund balance, beginning of year 83,515 83.515 83.515 

  

Fund balance, end of year S 83.515 $ 81.781 S 81.782 i 1 

SeeIndependentluditorc' Report 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
BALANCE SHEET 

NORTHSHORE SQUARE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
JUNE 30, 2023  

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSETS: 

 

General 
Fund 

  

Receivables. uet of allowalices for uncollectibles: 
Taxes S 19,085 

Restricted assets 
Cash 

 

181,481 

Total assets 

 

200,566 

LIABILITIES AtiI) FUND BALANCES 

  

LIABILITIES: 

  

Accounts payable and other current liabilities 5 2'0 

Due to other funds 

 

63 

Tolal liabilities 

FP\I1 BALANCES:  
Restricted for economic development .:(10.2S:1 

Toral fund balances 200,283 

Total liabilities and fund balances 20u.560   

See Independent Auditorc' Report 

,)3 



CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDIJLE C)F REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

NORTHSHORE SQUARE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 7,0 2023  

REVENUES: 

Budgetary Amounts Actua] on 

Budgetary 
Basis 

Variance wuh 

Final Budget 
Posirive (Negative) 

  

Final 

     

Taxes 

Sales and use S 100,000 

 

110.442 S 110,442 $ 

Other revenue 

  

4.607 .1,607 

 

Total revenues 100,000 

 

l 15,049 115,049 

 

EXPENDITURES: 

     

General gtwernmenr 5,650 

 

5,600 5,600 

 

Economic development 

Total expenditui es 

     

5,650 

 

5.600 5,600 

 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues twer 

(under') expenditmes 94,350 

 

109,449 109,449 

 

OTHER FINANCING SOURC'ES (USES) 

     

Net change in fund balance 94,350 

 

1(19.449 109,449 

 

Fund balance, beginning of year 90,834 

 

90.834 90S34 

 

Fund balance, end of year 185.184 ¶ 2(40.283 S 20(1.283 ¶ 

See Independent Auditorc' RelH.rt 
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SUPPORTING SCHEDULES 



Schedule "1" 

CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE (:)F FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

 

Salaries, Wages 
and Related 

Benefits 
Contract 
Services 

Supplies and 
Material,: Equipment 

Repair uid Museum; 
Nlaintenance Arts Evening 

1%.lain Street: 
Plannmu 

Zonine Total 

Admimstrative $ 840.951 $ 112.979 S 4.605 $ - S - $ S 

 

$ 958.535 
Finance 667.351 39.551 24,739 

 

91 I 

  

731.55' 
Legal 326.165 32.466 3.65" 

    

362.283 
Data processing 193.300 274.028 2.903 lo6. s68 - 

  

576.799 
Purchasing '79.730 3.338 6,933 

 

1.001 

  

291.002 
Human resources 280.158 68.664 13,044 

 

- 

  

361.866 
Civil service 110.312 4.663 505 

    

115.480 
Council 661.919 1(13.713 8,455 4.885 Lyl 

  

779.064 
Permits 816.989 11.444 10,985 

    

850.418 
Plamnng 140.115(1 80.283 30,950 

 

- - 

 

25,000 376.283 
Cultural arts 260.421 50.004 3.147 

 

-gp) 73."V,1 

  

387.154 
City Marshall 199.853 15.000 2,712 

 

- 

  

7  17.565 
City Prosecutor 257.270 5.918 7.519 

    

270.707 
City Court 192.720 

 

1.242 

    

193.'162 

Total expenditures $ 5,327.189 $ 813051 S 121391 S 111.-153 S 2.303 S 73 '8; s 2.5,o0o $ 6.473.670 

See Independent Auttiton.' Report 
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Schedule "2" 

CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE (:)F FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

SALES TAX FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 

 

Salaries. Wages 

and Related 

Benefits 

Contract 

Services 

Supplies and 

Materials Equipment 
Repairs and 

Maintenance 

Heritage 
Festival Total 

Administrative $ 783,126 $ 3.8'1.57 1 S 

   

$ 4.615,376 

Streets. bridges and drainage 1.438,737 399.937 318.882 8.355 321.081 

 

',496,g91 

Engineering 608.874 45.184 5,539 

   

659.597 

Electrical 212,428 2.169 13.650 318 

  

228,565 

General maintenance 275,636 414.223 13.545 1.497 99.856 

 

804,757 

Vehicle maintenance 451,422 22.027 35.108 7.766 31.638 

 

547.961 

Parks and recreation 1.404,20(1 675:710 11S.781 4.0'r 51.406 16.400 2.270.519 

Total expenditures 5.1 74 41,, 180.771 52 i).2.14 S M958 503.981 S 16.400 S 11.6.2.1.767 

Seu Independent .1uditor.' Report 



Schedule "3" 

CITY OF SLIDELL LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE oF FUNCTIONAL EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT (BUDGETARY BASIS) 

PUBLIC SAFETY FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

Salanes. Wages 

and Related Contract Supphes and Repairs and 

Benefits Services Materials  Equipment Maintenance Total 

Police S 10.521.391 S 1,060.768 S 31.898 S 26,582 $ 258.861 S 11,P9.500 

Corrections facility 836.082 113.457 27.915 1.06S 1.247 9'79.769 

Regional training facility 186.418 76.923 3n.413 

 

4.155 297.909 

Animal control 369.073 58.210 12,527 2.748 15.382 457,940 

Total expenditures 11.912.964 S 1,309.358 S 1 o2,753 S 30.39S $ 279.6-15 S 13.635.118 

See independent Auditors' Report 
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Schedule "4" 

CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF MUNCILPERSONS' COMPENSATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

COUNCILPERSON COMPENSATION 

William Borchert S 23.070 

Leslie Denham 

 

23,979 

David Dunham 

 

23,979 

Cynthia King, 

 

?3,979 

Kenneth Tamborella 

 

23,979 

Thomas Browntield 

 

23,979 

Nicholas Disanti 

 

23.979 

Jeffery Burgoyne 

 

23,979 

Megan Haegerty 

 

/1.979 

See Independent .kuditor.' Report 



Schedule "5" 

CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TC) AGENCY HEAD 

FOR THE YEAR ENDEI) JUNE 30. 2023 

 

Mayor 
Greg Cromer 

Sabry 131.259 
Benefits - medical and dental insurance 16,904 
Benefits - retirement 38.7/1 
Benefits - life insurance 385 
Benefits - disability insurance 272 
Car allowance 9,600 
Per diem 974 
Travel 83 
Registration fees 141 
Conference travel 3,839 
Special meals 115 

Total compensation, benefits, and other payments 202.293 

See Independent .kuditor.' Report 

9,) 



Schedule "6" 

C:ITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISRNA 
JUSTICE SYSTEM FUNDING SCHEUDLE - RECEIVING ENTITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

Cash Basis Presentation 

First Six Month Period End Second Six Month Period 

December 31. 2022 End June 30_ 2023 

Receipts from  

City Court of East St Tammany. Criminal fees - other ti 108,488 $ 103.488 
Ci ty Court of East St. Tammany, Crinunal cour t costs:fees 

 

23,970 

 

/4,175 
City Court of East St. Tammany. Bond fees 

 

1.960 

 

1 806 

Total Receipts 

 

134.418 S 129 469 

Endirp2 balance of ainuunts assessed but not received 

    

See Independent .ku(litor.' Report 
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STATISTIC:AL SECTION - UNAUDITED 



STATISTICAL SECTION 

This part of the City of Slidell. Louisiana's (the "City") annual comprehensive 
financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding what 
the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required 
supplementary information says about the City's overall tinancial health. 

Contents Tables 

Financial Trends 

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time. 

Net Position by Component  
Changes in Net Position 2 
General Governmental Tax Revenues hy Source 3 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds  4 
Changes in Funds Balances of Governmental Funds 5 

Revenue Capacity 

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's property tax. 

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property 6 
Property Tax Rates 7 
Principal Property Taxpayers 8 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 9 
Principal Sales Taxpayers I 0 

Debt ( opacity 

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt 
in the future. 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type  1 1 
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 1 2 
Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Deht 1 3 
Legal Debt Margin Infotmation 1 4 
Pledged — Revenue Coverage 15 
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STATISTICAL SECTION (CONTINUED) 

Contents Tables 

Demographic and Economic Information 

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader 
understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place. 

Demographic and Econoniic Statistics 16 
Principal Employees 17 

Operating Information 

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand 
how the inftirmation in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides 
and the activities it performs. 

Full - Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function 18 
Operating Indicators by Function 19 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 20 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the 

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented 
GASB Statement 34 in tiscal year 2003; tahles presenting government-wide 
information include information beginning in that year. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS (.lF ACCOUNTING) 

UNAUDITED) 

TABLE I 

     

Fiscal Year 

     

2014 2015 2016 2/11- 2(118 2010 2020 2021 '022 2(123 

Governmental Activities 

          

Net invesunent in cap)tal assets S 105.563.420 S 110.077.230 S. 11??S7.?.41 S 115.852.285 S 121.775.085 $ 1%3.5117.052 S 164.637.972 S 16s.139.686 S 158.1)04.W S 156.239.310 
ResIrided 1.044.950 1.035.784 2 151.136 2 517.505 2.598 303 2.647 '49 12.424.765 11i177.872 12 048.562 13.844.541 
UM corseted 16.082.476 (2.236.414) (258.836) (2s4.0871 (22.333.860) (21,078.1321 (J0.193.464) )24.790.72l ) (12.622.932t C7.999.0521 

Total governmental activities net pucition S 124.790.855 S 109.770 600 S 114.149.s31 S 118.11s.793 S 102042.615 S 135.456.669 S 144.560,273 S 151.420,1137 S. 158.329.795 S 102.084.505 

Business-Type Activities 

          

Net uivestineut m tapital assets $ 45.992.103 S 463108..054 S 46 078.298 $ 50.248.160 S 50,80I 923 S 50.425.447 $ 54.651.2'2 S 56 177.124 S 58 280.498 S 55 770.537 
ReStlicted 304.825 337.806 218.105 162.816 754.053 789.605 785.310 711.5.215.1 755.218 -.1;5.124 
UnrestriL tell 6.782.523 4.063.616 6 902.581 8 155.227 4.6117  650 5.633 2 78 S.156.775 41.008.43F, 03131.404 13.764).253 

Total business-type net position S. 53.139.751 S 51 310.376 S s3 288.087 S Sg 596.203 S 55.2s3 626 S 56.848 430 $ 63.594.366 S 66.571.645 S 4R 007.124) S 70.333.014 

Primary Government 

          

Net investment in capital assets S I s1.555.532 S 156.050.184 S 158.335.s29 $ 106.106.445 S I 72.640.005 S 264.312.499 5 219.259.244 S 221.317.61U S 217.154.663 S 212.0111.553 
ReelmIed 2.309.784 2.273.590 2 369.24-1 2 NiU.4 II J.382 446 3.437 354 13.216.084 11 1:63.155 12 833.786 14.020.665 
thuestrected 23.705.203 2.727.202 (,.7.43.745 7.931.140 (1S.726.210) t15.444.8s4) t22.036.089) t l4.582.283 ) (3.s01.528t 5.770.161 

Total primary government net position S 1 77.930.60v S 161.05(O76 S 1 ti7,438.518 S 176.711.09t) S 15- .296.244 $ 1'42.304.99v S 210.462.030 S 215.208.482 S 226.426.015 $ 232.415.719 
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CITY OF SLIDELL_ LOUISIANA 
CHANGES N NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 2 

        

Ycar 

      

Expraws 2014 2015 

 

2016 

 

2017 2018 

 

2014 2020 

 

2021 2022 2023 

Government51 gent dies 

              

Genoa! govenunent S 9 434,652 S 9 58.1.823 1 10.31.,0 723 I 93)08 542 S 9.623.3.0 I- 0  964.1.66 S 9 487.57 5 11 54.050 S 13.032.7.3 S 13.545 1459 
Publ.: work. 14 630.818 14 .113.867 

 

15.680 .63 

 

17.614 0576 14.068.155 

 

15.138.1.13 13 i5n.£41 

 

14 14,9.o7 16.092.94).: 14.694 .82 
Publ.: salety I0.696.68I 11.606,793 

 

12,143.610 

 

12 929.437 12.748.109 

 

123)21.682 [4.279.130 

 

13.469;894 112813042 16.511773 
Recrealion and culture L979.695 2.091,426 

 

2,331.422 

 

2 229.585 2.431.6.51 

 

2.577.523 3.100.446 

 

3.255.980 2.914.466 .5.828.543 
Judicl9i symeni 373.589 346,846 

 

474.972 

 

545.810 A11,555 

 

502.449 536 729 

 

664.232 572.440 801.372 
Interest 'Ai lona-tenn debt 509.91)3 4.9.007 

 

414 182 

 

6l5141 5i; tl 415 

 

560.7)32 433.160 

 

500,th .7 484.9'9 39.1.671 
Bond ...mance cost - _ 

 

80 '65 5 

 

24b 69-  - 

 

6.6- 5 - 

 

- - - 
To1,1 got erimiental actrane. expense. 3%675.141 38.361 1462 

 

41 436.42' 

 

4-31,4 1.:4C8 40 s"...1.554 

 

19.671.590 41.787.692 

 

44.226 949 44,578.'78 49 t.22.40(i 

Bikone..-type activitm. 

              

Utilities 10.201..370 10 272.'06 

 

10.485 ...91 

 

1.079 617 10.953 101 

 

11) 9t..5J.5.1 1 l 254.555 

 

0 729.410 10 865.175 12.260 739 
Auport 1.039.799 1 tal7.560 

 

070 75.1 

 

1.125 221 1.255 074 

 

1 283.010 l 214.300 

 

1 247.107 1 729,435 1.64 7  49 5 

Total laisme...-type %Mt Mr: expense,: 11.244.169 11.280 3AA 

 

11 4 AA.4-11 

 

11,S(14.338 12.14.175 

 

12.248.964 12.468.N3 A 

 

10.976.607 12.594.h1O 13 9i 0..234 

Toid primary governmem expet.4.- -18.923.520 1 49.642.21x 1, 5.2XSA.368 b 5 )6.'36 S 5O39.729 $ A .920.4 A 4 S 54.256 527 S A $ A S.113.3SS $ 6.3.731.1.44 

P1%4111111 RPliellues 

              

Got enunetual ilethllies 

              

Charge. foi seri. ices 

              

General government S .4 557.46' S 3.958 521 S 5 819.562 1 5.706.166 1 5,040.662 i 3,062.072 S 3.804.579 I 3,665.04I S 53069.0'8 $ 4 1 ii.),002 
Public works 492.42I 622 21, 1 

 

404.610 

 

308.705 279.114 

 

521.279 - 

 

- 24.755 4.150 
Public ....defy 92..715 923.585 

 

957 568 

 

994 037 1044.673 

 

1 169.795 1 174.404 

 

1 5981 ):-I 1.292.445 1.260 878 
Rtat.IL1011 and .ulture I07.631 90.820 

 

131 .I9 

 

109 123 217.285 

 

195.116 27.761 

 

42.116 A- 156 68 424, 
Judicial 5ysteni 42.2):.13 39.945 

 

43 821 

 

4' 438 52 494 

 

59.78): 48A19 

 

56.691. 297.223 274 423 
(:)peraung pant. and contribunon 

              

General government 699.435 323,423 

 

1,112.452 

 

I .590.085 273.284 

 

455.417 131 944 

 

1.445.67 ' 1.713.37.4 1,54!..3.36 
Public works A.241.'18, 2.028,400 

 

3,33.1,837 

 

5 280.417 :045.800 

 

2.066.o.-  90 913 

 

105.42' 1.122.864 

 

Public s.,fery 580.346 9.13.547 

 

082 355 

 

708 656 111/3 315 

 

9455.O3 1 .04.157 

 

7973936 804 688 1.085 701 
Rea-radon and cuhure 205.1910 214.844 

 

175 701 

 

191311 20l 355 

 

170...o i,.. 133.866 

 

130.753 124 177 121 953 
Judicial .ysiem - 8.224 

 

8 895 

 

10 9.2 -I 390 

 

4.488 

    

- 
Capital grani6 and contributions 

              

General governmetit (78.- 041 39.168 

 

240.862 

 

(1 36."$8) - 

  

22 WI, 

  

70.361 - 
Public a. mks I L242.- 20 4.832.529 

 

55;51.961 

 

7 692.981 6..817  190 

 

34.93e.al a 20.212.331,  

 

7.241.164 6.842.789 4.403.820 
Public ...fey 90.f;73 129.5)35 

 

6r 2.4 

 

104 122 26 24-  

  

15.220 

  

89.510 .14 ./.17 

Rei.reation and culture 313.172 317.571 

 

51 189 

 

18 997) 1.6)36 109 

 

78.543 145.888 

 

160.282 3:7,061 484 380 

hilliCklsy.reni - 

    

58 652 - 

      

- 

Tot-Ago* ernmental .....vme. 
jaugi.on i es clam:. 21.427.470 14.4.52.021 

 

1- .530.697 

 

20 527.422 18.401.983 

 

43.656.686 r.6ll 5.1); 

 

1..247.321 i 6 726.sos 1..4.51S.044 



CITY OF sLIDELL. LOIlsIANA 
CHANGES N NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL. YEARS - CONTINUED 
a ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 2 

      

Ycj, 

     

2014 2015 26 

  

ls 2.119 2020 1(, 21 2022 2.121 

Busauesc-t)-pe acta hies. 
Charge,  foe semees 

           

Utilities 9.394.013 9.806 762 to 949.069 

 

9,97^.551 10.132.631 10.561.806 10.270,272 

 

I0,x os,870 0 11 "".432 
Airp. as 303.162 516 640 399.454 

 

493.1:6 675,565 692.529 7.:47.6.SS 
lIl.:-o7lz 2

9
 sd- 9( 

1,22.I.372 1 271.666 
Operatinst In-ams Mid ...mural maim,. 

           

I.Ttilittes 

        

I6.394 3 , "9 

 

Airport 

        

(.9.854 

  

Capital grants and collo abutious 

           

Utilities 1 316.956 394 137 1 29..).483 

 

4.541.459 1,119.251 551.,i2 ,-; 4(10.661 2,612 

 

34.160 

Ant Olt 2.441 4ii rel 30x.598 

 

231.944 414,s53 2-.- t1" 6F. -.27 566,642 15.693 ii6.479 

Toml bustness-type activities 

program reVentleS 11 416.602 10.766 410 11 077.124 

 

Is.:46.080 12,342,2.20 12 033.129 11.4 -6 -4s 12.201.657 12.04s.214 12 877.679 
Total mammy fmrenunent 

plITTalll teVillUeS S 34.544.o72 S 25 195.440 $ 29.516 52I S 35.77? 502 1 30.- 44 303 S 55 ,359)7.15 1: 39 05S.296 5 2-  449.206 i 2.1, --5 . , 22 S 2A.395 '23 

Net fexpealser:tel. Male 

           

Cinvemment..1 sem diee s s (-23.929 N.si) s (2,3 N
I
!
2
11

,.
.7
6

_
6
4
.
6
4

1 S (23.57.3.4, 6a (22,479,5'1 .1.965.0% 14.1 76 4-1) $ a21,979,6261 S 128.851.0'61 S (36 304.856, 

Busmess-type ines 
Total pt Emmy fenrenunent net expeuse 

 

1513 937) 

 

3.341.242 1'4 145 (2 i5.).351 i992.ox7t 1,225,210 (546.3961 030.555, 
S. (14.01(:981321.4:1) S .2.4 113.778) (23.1- 0 017) S 2351 S i22...,05 424,1 S ? 709.261 S(15 IA6.211 i S 2." "54.343) S (29 395.366) S 37.3” 4111 

General RevenUeS and Other thanges ea No Position 

           

Cinves vvvv ent.d sem die,: 

           

Taxes 

           

Ad valorem S -1 230.•4.:5 S 4 323.125 1 3.580 394 1 4.'86 055 £ 4.- 57.352 I 4 690.635 S 4 643.332 $ 4 974.570 S 5.000169 S 5.233 666 
Sales and use lt: 361..9.5 18 549.553 19.354 305 

 

19.609 476 19.628.5'4 20.691.ta5t 21 543.9-'7 25 56'.08l 27.155.230 27.684 164 
Franclthe 2.062.463 2.061.909 2..1.'1.780 

 

2 os5.460 1,S12.157 1.S74.3'S .3.222.423 1.760.966 2.209.42to 2.4510I90 
Beer 67.09' 66.650 65.591 

 

671O2 69.550 74.444 75 4.I4 76.4S I '7.6'1 7 1.266 
Oilier - - 

  

- 

    

- 22.669 
Pectination 

 

3 ca 000 2.24' 255 

        

Other general 'violates - - 

  

- - 

   

- 360250 
Inrestment eat mugs 132.6..te 131.883 165 167 

 

3.8 3.19 841 0t..7 1 411.224 929.001 65.-'89 114.597. 2.023 193 
Miscellanmas 38.994 26;724 237.833 

 

35.'74 61 697 26.62- 1'5.'02 388.505 o3.922 13' 170 
Loan Camelbuon 2.336.5"5 - 

  

- - - 

   

- 
Transfer. 71,3.423 594.701 6 1 1 .$$$ 

 

460.092 o0I.052 658.4.39 15.200 892) 557.453 I 108.02- 1.500.346 

Tobl gm enunental „mimes 2" 954.3' 3 26.464 544 26 263.661 

 

2".540.7.36 2",646.079 29.428.9' 4 25.588.741 33.692.275 .45,599.842 411059.86t. 

Bumness-type .te ovine, 

           

Taxes* 
Ad valorem 1 592r9an 1 937.536 1.0'5 3961 

 

2.325 536 2.368.165 2 354.574 2 412.285 2 433.337 2.4-15.t6ta 2.564 565 
In% esimeut earnings 1.02' 946 955 

 

1.228 1.367 2.254 I 909 190 1.217 2.191 697 
Mis..ellanersk- 14.960 (67.741i 92.916 

 

119.002 110.360 112.120 122 037 177.0'4 432.521 l l .433 
Tran.fers ("n3.423') {594.70 l I (6[1.333) 

 

'550.092) .601154 (656.4397 5.200 592 4557.552) t I.lrati.02 7) {1.500.346) 
Total busuies-type aLtisines 1.204 554 1 2-'6.040 1.45' 925 

 

1.565 0-1 1.8-'5 040 1 510.530 ' 3—.123 2 052,4.04. 1 77 (.671 3.267  349 

Total pt amaay gm enunent $ 2,  I 5S ”27 S 2' 669.585 1 29.721 589 1 29.406 "12 S 29.721 119 I 31 239.-104 S 33 325;871 $ .4 5 715.277 S 37.3-1.713 S 1.4.?27 215 

Changes in Net Position 

           

Government.d sctii S 14.766.692 S 2.474 1104 S 4 372.931 S 3,964.262 S 5.366,508 $ 33.414.09 S 11.412.604 S 4.712.640 S 6:7r.57.2 s .5 -..c.010 
Bu..iness-r1.-pe 1.372.95- 762 (.73 1 971, .611 5,307.216 2.049.185 1.594,704 6.745,03A 3.278.279 1.225.4" 2 236.794 

Total pramaay gm cannon S 15 0-9.67. S 3 2 ,•.507 1 6.351 542 1 9.273 475 £ '.415 693 S 35 005.755 S 18 157.644 $ 7  990.020 S 7.9- 3.347 S 5.991 504 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 3 

Fiscal Sales Property Franchise klcoholic Beverag Other 
Year Tax T ax Tax Tax Tax Total 

2014 $ 18.361,905 $ 4,230,984 $ 2,062.463 S 67.095 S - S 24.722.447 

2015 18.849.553 4.323.125 2.061.9118 66.650 

  

25.3111,236 

2016 19.354,308 3,580.394 2,001.780 66.591 

  

75.003,073 

2017 19.604.476 4.786.055 2.085.400 67.632 

  

26.543.562 

2018 19.628,574 4,757,382 1,882.159 69.550 

  

26.337.665 

2019 20.691,058 4,690,635 1,874.378 74.594 

  

27.330,665 

2020 21.543.977 4.843.332 3.222.423 75.405 

  

29.685,137 

2021 25.867,981 4,974,569 1,760.966 76.851 

  

32.6811.367 

2022 28.135,829 5,000,170 2,209.420 77.671 

  

35.423,090 

2023 27.684,164 5,'33,868 2,451.0911 71.286 

 

22.669 35.463.077 
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CITA OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

L AST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(MODIFIED AC('RUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 4 

     

Year 

     

2014 2015 2016 21117 2015 2019 2020 2021 2022 2111S 

General Fund 

         

Nonspendable• 'I 1564.634 S 1 590 133 S 1 76.269 S 1,364.171 S 1.545.009 S 1.643.402 S 1.851 974 $ 261.1'91 S 271,209 S 425.504 
Restricted* 3n0 000 300.000 300.000 300.000 300.000 300.0(P0 300 000 300 (P00 - 

 

Commitied (04 L374.000 l 616 000 1.616.000 1,616.00(1 1.709.0041 1.'09.000 2.444 000 2.444.900 2 518,723 2.518.723 
Assigned to* 1.069.652 1.295.230 869.256 1.196.449 1.359.416 1.407.353 990.951 2.576.611 694.000 694.000 

Unassigned* 1.49- .719 951.-59 2.625.5- 9 748,571 3- 1.- 38 1.597.399 2.(.18.701 2.)+22.154 3 A02.417 6.944.91" 

Total general fund S 5.806.005 S 5.753.122 S 5587.104 $ 5.225.191 $ 5.2si.163 $ 6.657.154 S 8.205.626 $ 8.404.056 5 7MS6.349 S 10.583.144 

All other governmental funds 

         

Nonspendable • S - S - S - S - $ - i - I - S 175.440 S 102.470 S 102.060 
Restmted * F.377 549 7 311.175 5 264.651 16.143.113 14.949.47I 13.361.094 12.124 765 II) '7' 872 11.748.562 13.544.541 
Commitied to• 15.769.879 15 S44 S31 19.305.549 20,E86.67it 22.398.586 22.927.076 22.160 461 25.870.430 28 120,708 30.200.901 
Assigned to• 3.392 001 2 522.619 1 896.732 4.602.014 1.587.520 2.225.- 50 - 8 065 709 11.51—.480 11.940.051 

Unassigned 

 

- (1 774.6501 11,469.345) (3.135.74E1 (383.4881 2.712 618 (4.842 7691 (5 656,6631 12.0E:2.840i 

Total all other 
governmental fund. S 27.539.429 $ 25.67s.625 S 2=1.692.2S2 5 4n.162.460 b 3c.- 99.829 $ 38.130.432 S 36.997.844 S 40.046.682 S 45.832.557 $ 53.704713 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 

CHANGES IN FUNDS BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

(UNAUDITED) 

T.%BLE 

     

Fi,cal Yea] 

     

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 1021 2022 

Revenues 

          

Taxes mid n sses orients S 24.6%5,35i $ 25.2.'4,587 S 24,936.452 S 26,47%2/31 S 26,268.112 S 27.2%6,070 S 29.609.7.12 S i2,60i.%17 S 34.364,519 $ 3%463.077 
Licenses and pet mits 2.383,461 2,525,052 2,431.112 2,316.044 2.204.4 / 6 2.489.212 2.2(.3,14/ ','59.657 2.570.320 2.7 /6.896 
Intergovernmental revenue 16.439.670 5.253.019 7.840 201 19.915 456 9.889  157 42.787.414 21 /05.413 8.036 273 13.2/9.06 13 /03.580 
Payment iu hen of taxes 273.489 280,080 272.613 257.079 28%.411 241.438 225.719 279.c-..6 - 

 

Fines and forfeitures - 3%0,000 ','47.‘55 - - - - - 297,221 r4,423 
Lease rer, enuea 2.008.O1 2.327.449 2.132 52S 2.O9  073 1.542 369 1.547.003 1 599.500 1.494 554 1.608.832 1 660.616 
Comnbutimis 3%3,694 282.331 308.429 24%.455 360.855 3 se..no0 195.270 161.124 103,732 119,860 
Othet revenues. pnmanly interest. and !ninon 24/.041 245,4-7 419. int) 42 i .14-  918.011 1.58- .480 1.056.96 331.043 103,544 i .2-  I .394 

Total revenues ifs 361.618 ..ty .10/.995 40.587.02k 51.6h2.l85 41.-IA8.921 7h 266.61 7 56.6 61,49 45.167.044 52 332,176 57.269 846 

Expendflure% 

          

Ciinent 

          

Geueial government S 8,629,951 $ 8.665.241 $ 9.140.898 S R.(48.659 S 5,636.s39 S 9.19- .530 $ 9.059.9 s3 S 10.611.603 S 13.863.690 $ 11.118.470 
Publis vs orks 9.709,417 6.4 s9,538 6,644.891 6.34.1.732 5,246.796 6.405.119 6.444.305 4.541.634 4.185.988 6.454.381 
Piihlic safety 9.654.798 10.360.372 10.553 71i. 10.8sti 036 11.068 551 11.240.416 12 243.278 11M5 746 12.727.7(4 13 607.664 
Recreation and culture I .3 s6,594 I,4%/.9I% 1.420.809 1,501.155 1,588.265 1,613,226 2.047.9.15 2,127.6S4 2,413,504 2.7/1,59/ 
Judicial system 333.154 353,toqi, 396.253 468.887 445.311 453.107 473 556 571.854 506.291 7Si 234 

Debt .enice: 

          

Pi incipal 2 173.8s8 2 O9.600 2.191 600 1.883 100 1.192 200 901.00 048 000 990 0O 1 081.000 1 141 720 
Inleres1 503.293 440.182 37o.677 414.71.4 605.313 577.195 552 473 520.681) 448.321 45).4 800 
Othet chat ges - - 81).555 245.69-  - 6.6- 5 - - 93.394 - 

Capital outlay 12.515.430 12.165.567 11.530.116 19,634.975 17.95%.014 42.806,594 2 6.062.525 10.F.18.003 6.3g6,352 - .8- 5.04F 

Total ex pen.linues 44.880.595 4' 006683 42.388 87s 49.990 064 46.717  089 7.1 222.4&2 66 862 035 42.478 259 46 704.274 46 134 914 

Excess of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 1.481.023 (2.508.358) ( 1.800 949) 1.672 121 (5.269  065) 3.044.155 4205.986 2.6S9  685 5.534.502 11 134.932 

Other financing %names (uses) 

          

Transfer. iu 6.485.3s2 s .133.O1 4.769 802 4.624 227 

 

2011.160 2 28s 422 876 476 9 456.232 6 346 034 
Transfeis out (5.781,921i (4.7.15.360i (4.048.4641 (4.044.135a (22..932272.88(1 ( 1.3 s2,/30 i (1.663.5 s2) (318.893) (11.596,468i (%..194.4.19) 
Premium on hands sold - 

 

- 536.052 - 

  

- - - 
Payments to refunded houd esamv agenl 

  

(5.108 74s) - 

    

(4 826.6961 

 

Issuance of debt 

  

5,146.00t) 12.000.000 

    

4.920,0O 

 

Litmation setdement 

  

- 

 

381..15" 

     

Inception of lease - 

        

269.s17 
Loan cansellation 972.260 

         

Total tithei financing sources i uses, 1.675.081 594.701 648.%58 13,416.144 986.409 u%S,439 621,870 557.%53 (2,046,9321 1.214,61 / 

Net shange iu fluid balances S 3 156.706 S (1 913.687) S (1.152.361) S 15.088.265 S (4.282.659) S 3 702.594 S 415 884 S 3.247.268 S 3 48/.570 S 12.349 541 

Debt service a., a percentage ul 
noncapital expenditui es 630.0 7  90°1, 7 6.4°4 5 83°4 5 .12°L. 4 (.2% 4 57011 4 Wu 3 (.9°b 4 0401) 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 6 

Real Property 

FiNcd Asse.sed EA unwed 
Year Value Actual Value  

Commercial Personal Property  

A.scssed Estmuned 
Value Ailual Value  

Public Service Properiv Railroad Siock 

AsNessed Eaunated A,sessed Estimated 
Value Actual Valiir Value .Actual Value  

.kssessed Estimated 
Value Aciiial Value  

Total Direct 
Tax Rate 

Ahsessed 
Value as a 

Pc~centaLr •01' 
Actual Value 

2014 S 185.222.294 S 1,852,222.940 S 42.519.2! 2143.461.447 S 13.880.086 92,533.907 S 89.460 S i96.400 S 241.711.057 S 2.228.814.693 '5 89 110 , 

2015 186.909.760 1,869,097.600 42.- 69.382 285.129,213 14.760.190 98,401.267 93.880 625.867 244.533.212 '.253.'53.947 '5 85 I 1 

2016 193 066.706 I 930.667.060 46.30;6.440 309.242.933 13.56I 160 90.407.733 95.830 638.867 253 1111.136 2,330,956.593 22 50 I I' . 

2017 199.418.066 1.994.180.660 47.631.954 31- .546,360 14.642.954 97.619.693 89.350 595.667 261.- 81.324 2.409.942.380 '7 52 I I . 

2018 202.620.238 2.026.202.380 48.756.621 325.0.34.140 13.7- 7.263 91.848.420 93.'40 6'4.933 265.247.1462 2..343.719.873 '7 08 

 

2019 204 4'4534 2 044.745.340 47.473.107 316.4/i7.380 13.373 131 89.1 54.207 99.4601 663.067 265 420.232 2.451 049.993 26 93 II°. 

2020 207.563.463 2.0- 5,634.630 50.170.162 334.467.- 47 13.404.966 89,366.440 105,200 701.333 271.243.791 2.500.170.150 27  07 II°. 

2021 222.841.644 2,228,416.440 50.129.7'6' 334.198,447 13.922.200 92.814,667 109.920 732.X0o 21;'.003.531 2.656.162.3i3 26 09 

 

2022 226 266.7E:1 2 262.6671,20 48..475.244 323.168.293 14.133 327 56.533.30 110.100 734.000 288 985.453 2,643.1013.421 26.09 11°. 

"0"3 230.742.052 2.307.420.520 55.645.502 3'70.970,013 14.742.152 58.968.608 IIII.100 - 34.00o 301.239.806 2.738.093,141 26.09 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
PROPERTY TAX RATES 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 7 

I)irert Rate, (iverlappith2 Ritei% 

ly of Slidell Parish   School District 

Total 
Tutal Total Total Deht Debt Total 

School 

Direct & 

Fiscal Operating Service City Operating Service 
Debt 

Parish Operating Service Special Direct Cherlapping 

Year Millage Millage Milkme Millage Millage Millage Millaoe Millime  District, Rates  Millage Rates  

2014 19.33 0.6 25 89 36.03 36 03 50.28 17.90 68 18 43.10 147.41 173 30 

1 015 19.33 0.2 1 5 85 35.91 35 91 50.28 17.90 68 18 47.00 151.09 176 94 

2016 19.31; ≥.17 22 50 37.47 37 47 50.28 17.90 68 18 48.50 154.15 176 65 

2(117 21.24 6.28 -17 5) 36.26 36 '6 48.51 17.90 66 41 47.14 149.81 177 33 

.1018 21.24 5.84 "17 08 36.67 36 67 48.51 16.90 65 41 44.19 146.27 173 35 

2019 21.24 5.69 26 93 36.69 36 69 48.51 15.90 64 41 44.19 145.29 172 22 

1010 21.24 5.83 /7 07 36.54 36 54 50.51 13.9(1 64 41 43.77 144.72 171 79 

2021 20.31 5.78 26 09 35.13 35 13 48.10 13.90 62 00 4/.35 139.48 165 57 

2022 20.31 5.78 26 09 34.80 34 80 48.10 13.90 62 00 43.42 140.22 166 31 

20.13 20.31 5.75 26 06 34.91 34 91 48.07 13.90 61 97 43.44 140.32 166 38 

110 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 8 

  

2023 

  

2014 

 

Taxpayer 

Ta.xable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percentage c.f 
Total Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Peaceutage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Central LA Electnc Company $ 9.418,780 1 2.99% $ 8.391.160 l 3 43% 

Freinam Town Center SPE LLC 6.000,705 

 

1.90"o 

  

0 00% 

Anuos Energy 3.826,317 3 1.21% 1.854.507 S 0 76% 

KE Mason Ownet TIC LLC 3.805,496 4 1.05% 

  

0 00% 

ET New Orleans LLC 3.318,474 5 0.98% 

 

- 0 006, 

Capital Otte N A 3.102,441 6 0.98"o 1,482.6-10 8 0 61% 

Pelican Pointe LLC 3.099,376 7 0.98% 1.631.288 7 0 67% 

SC3 Fremaux LLC 3.076,500 8 0.98"o 

  

0 00% 

Walmart Real Estate Business 2.789,657 9 0.88% 2.217A01 4 0 91% 

JP Ntorgan Chase Bank 2.592338 10 0.82"o 1,636390 6 0 67% 

Voko CE Rents:Tuff Equip 

  

0.00% 1.446.590 10 0 59% 

AT&T Southeast Tax Dept 

  

0.00° o 3,'49.1/3 , 1 33% 

Wahnart Stores (2) 

  

0.00% 1.455.110 9 0 60% 

Stzeler North Shore Lanuted 

  

0.00° o 2 458,010 3 1 01% 

TOTALS S j)3(1.(184 

 

12 77'. $ -'5,8'2,2 I() 

 

10.54° o 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 9 

Fiscal 
Year 

Total Tax 

Levy for 
Fiscal Year 

Collection within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections for 

Pre\ ions 
Years 

Total Collections to Date 

Amount 
Percentage 

of Levy Amount 
Percentaue 
of Levy 

2014 S 6.257,899 S 6.110,623 98"o $ 14.836 $ 6,125.459 98°0 

2015 6.321.186 6.236.073 99% 31.938 6.268MI 0 9910 

2016 5.695,000 5.548.130 97% 15.918 5.555.783 98"o 

2017 7.204,250 7.096,458 99". 6.354 7,111.892 990 o 

2018 7.181.008 7.075,742 99°.6 34.151 7,125.547 99°0 

1 019 7.147,768 7.054.104 99°0 - 7.057.754 99°0 

1010 7.342,569 7.237,985 99% 13.062 7,243."3 99°., 

2021 7.487,923 7.397.231 99% 13.008 7.416.596 99"0 

20'12 7.539.631 7.457.461 99°6 

 

7.462M29 990., 

10'3 7.873,676 7.763,212 99% 5.782 7,762,400 990 0 

Totat Mlections tocludr redanptioas. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
PRINCIPAL SALES TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 10 

2023 2014 

Taxpayer 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Percentage c.f 
Total Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Taxable 
Assessed 

Value Rank 

Peiceutage of 
Total Taxable 

Assessed 
Value 

Retail Sales l 2.562.195 1 9.26% S 1.535.942 1 8 36% 

Auto Sales 1.270,8x5 

 

4.59°G 892.482 3 -1 86% 

Remote Seller 1.067,493 3 3.86% 

  

0 00°i, 

Retail Sales 2 942,102 4 3.40°G 906.772 

 

0 00% 

Retail Sales 3 849,178 5 3.07% 565.047 4 3 08°i, 

Giocery Sales 1 765,030 6 2.76°o 4-18.422 5 2 44% 

Hardware Stores 573,970 7 2.07% 241.517 9 1 32% 

Giocery Sales 2 566.113 8 2.04°G 

 

6 2 30% 

Grocery Sales 3 528,298 9 1.91% 232.607 10 1 27°o 

Haillware Stores 2 504,658 10 1.82°o 

  

0 00% 

Retail Sales 4 

  

0.00% 275.977 

 

1 50°i, 

Retail Sales 5 

  

0.00°o 246.917 8 1 34% 

TOTALS S 9.629.92 "' 

 

34 780,„ 5,768,'S5 

 

26.48°G 

NOTE: Business names are not thsdosetl because sales tax intimmation is confidential. 

Source: Based on Sales Tax Collections. compiled by City of Slidell Finance Department 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 11 

Governmental AL:IR ities Btismes:. - Type Actkaties 

Cieneral Sales Tax LCDA Couununity Total Peicentage 
Fiscal Obligation Revenue Capital Excess Certificate uf Disaster Utility Equipment Certificate uf Primary of Person:I! Per 
Year Bowls Bonds Lea,mes Rev Bond IndebteckieY• Loan Bola,  Leases Indebtedness Government Income kl ) Capita k I ) 

2014 $ 9,995.845 $ 1,844,353 $ - S 1,517.500 $ - S - $ 3,086,350 $ - $ 884.000 $17,328,048 2 07"0 630 

2015 8,850,589 1,251,235 

 

1,137,900 

  

2,480,675 

 

676.0410 14,396,399 1 72(!o 921 

2016 8,207,843 63£,117 

 

741,300 

  

1,970,000 

 

460,000 12,017,260 1 39% 430 

2017 20.192,921 

  

327,201) 

  

1.545,000 

 

235.000 22.300.17'1 ' 57% 796 

2018 19,279,14.1 

     

1,430,483 

  

16,709,617 2 34% 743 

2019 18.329.367 

     

1.822.113 

  

20.151.480 2 19% 727 

2020 17.332,590 

     

2.149,379 

 

- 19.481,969 2 06% 705 

2021 16,284,813 

  

- 

  

2,187,266 

 

- I 8,472,4179 1 S5°0 642 

ilyy, 15,302,4)36 

  

- 

  

8,345,276 

  

23,647,312 / 34<'.0 825 

20/3 13,550,004) 

     

- 15,973.649 

  

29,523,649 2 77% 1.03() 

NOTE Details regarding the City's outstanding debt can be found in the notes tu the financial statements. 

41) See the Schedule of Demographic and Econonue Statistics, Tahle 16, foi personal income and population data 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 

RATIOS OF GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 12 

Fiscal 
Year 

General 
Ob4ation 
Bonds (2) 

Less: Amounts 

Availahle in 
Debt Service 

Fund (3) Total 

Percentage of 

Estimated 
Actual Taxable (1) 
Value of Property 

Per 
Capita 

(4) 

2014 9.995.845 2.587.133 7.408.712 0.33°0 1 69 

2015 8,850.589 2.638.67^ 6,211.917 0.28°o 225 

)016 8.207.843 1,841.484 6,366.359 0.27% 

 

2017 20.192.921 7,'17.595 17.975.326 0.75°0 647 

1(11S 19,279.144 7.198.393 16,980.751 0.69°,, 6(19 

2019 18.329.367 2.347.749 15.981.618 0.65°0 577 

2020 17,332.590 2.430.19S 14,902.392 0.60°0 539 

2021 16.284.813 2.430.198 13.854.615 0.52°0 481 

707 ) 14,768.304 2.430,198 12,338.106 0.47°0 431 

2023 13,550.000 2.430.198 11,119.802 0.41°0 388 

(1) See the Schedule of Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property, 

Table 6, for property value data 
(2) Amount does not include special assessment. sales tax or revenue bonds 
(31 Amount available for repayment of general obliption bonds. 

(4) Information is based on U.S. Census Bureau. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF JUNE 311. 2t122 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 13 

(iovernmental Uuit 
Debt 

()ut.,tanding 
Estimated Percentage 

Applicable (11 
Estimated Share of 
Overlapping Debt 

Debt repaid with property taxes: 

   

St. Tammany Parish S 2.1411,000 9.270 198,361 
St. Tammany Parish School Board 326.215.667 9.27% 30.237,676 

Subtotal. overlapping debt 

  

30.436,037 

City of Slidell direct debt 

 

lull% 14.135,233 

Total direct and overlapping debt 

  

44571.270 

Source St. Tammany Parish School Board officials and St Tammany Pansh Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 

NOTE: Overlapping governments are those that coincide. at least in part, with the geographic boundaries 
ot the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping 
governments that is horne b.), the residents and businesses of the City of Slidell. This process 
recognizes that, when considering the government's ability to issue and repay long-term deht. 
the entire deht burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. 
However. this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident. and. therefore. is responsible for 
repaying the debt of each overlapping government 

(1) The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxahle assessed property 
values. .Applicable percentages were estimated by detemuning the portion of the Parish's taxahle 
assessed value that is within the City's boundaries and dividing it by the Parish's total taxable 
assessed value. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN LNFORMAT1ON 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 14 

      

Fiscal Yetu 

   

2014 2015 2010 2017 2018 2019 2(120 2021 2022 2023 

Debt limit S 84,598.8- 0 S 85.586.624 S 88.588,548 S 91,o2 t.813 l 92.836.'52 S 92.897.08I S 94,935.32' S 100.451,2 to S 101.1-1-4,9U9 S 105.438.503 

Tutal net debt applicable tu Inuit 

 

(7.352.867) t!..101.3281 t 6.324.510 (1—.975.326) t let.980.- 5li l:15.0Fil,b1S) 114,902.392) +13.s:54.615i (12.338,100) (11,435.58W 

Legal debt margin 5 —.246.0(O $ -0.425 20(i s"64.fi O S 73.(.48.487 S —5.1356 0u0 S 7M1 915.463 5 130.032.4)35 $ 56.50e,  021 S tt9 906.O3 S 94.0n2.923 

Tutal net Jebt applicable tu the limit 
as a percentage of debt limn 

 

s 0so c, - '11" 7  IV.) 19 025a I8.29°4 17  200i, 15.70% 1, 79*4 12 20`to 10 85°0 

  

Legal Jett pampa] calculation for fiscal year 2023: 

         

Asseised value 

 

S 301.252.806 

       

Debt Lunn - 35"o of S288.985 453 00 (II 

 

$ 105.438.503 

       

Debt applicable 10 the ham: 

         

General obbgation bond; S 14.128.259 

        

Less: Amount set aside for repayment 

         

of genetal ubligattun debt 2.692.o"9) 

        

Total net debt applicable to limit 

 

11.435.580 

       

Legal debt margin 

 

S it9.700.329 

ilt Stale law allows a inattimum a 350(i of msevie4 sahlation for tutal bonded general obligation Jebt 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
PLEDGED - REVENUE COVERAGE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 15 

Fiscal 

Year 

  

Utility Rex enue Bonds 

     

Sales Tax Bonds 

 

Utility 

Charpes 

and Other 

Less: 

Operating 

Expenses (1) 

Net 

Available 

Revenue 

 

Debt Service 

Coverage 

Sales Tax 

Revenue 

 

Debt Service 

Coverage 

 

Principal 

 

Iniercsi 

 

Principal Iniercsi 

201-1 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

1013 

$ 11,530,190 

11,701,266 

12,061,307 

12,441,874 

12,635,963 

13,044,730 

12,797,034 

13,333,445 

13,336,803 

14,069,997 

$ 7,663,648 

7.797,201 

8,040,248 

8.245.019 

8,310,447 

8,401,263 

8,626,396 

7,189,879 

8,407,436 

9.776.568 

$ 3,866,542 

3,904,065 

4,021,059 

4.196.855 

4,325,516 

4.643.467 

4,170,638 

6.143.566 

4,929,367 

4.293.429 

$ 590,000 

605,000 

510,000 

425,000 

210,000 

205,000 

269,000 

285,000 

536,000 

891,000 

$ N5.531 

73,031 

58,578 

45,977 

36,095 

31,643 

34,269 

33,344 

45,124 

144,428 

4 92 

5.76 

7 07 

8.91 

17.58 

19.62 

13.75 

19.30 

8 48 

4.15 

$ 18,361,905 

18.849.553 

19,354,308 

19,604,476 

19,628,574 

20,691,058 

21,543,977 

25,867,98! 

21,646,100 

27,684,164 

$ 560,000 

580,000 

600,000 

625.000 

S 72.805 

53.985 

33,625 

11.563 

29.02 

29.73 

30.55 

30.80 

NOTE: Details iegarding the Citys outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the tinaucial statements. 

(I) Amomit does not include depreciation expen,:e. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL AND ST. TAMMANY PARISH, LOUISIANA 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
I UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 16 

Fiscal 
Year 

City of 
Slidell 

Population 
(1) 

St Tanunany 
Parish 

Population 
(2) 

St Tammany 
Parish Total 

Peisonal Income 
(2) 

St. Tammany State 
Parish Per Capita Unemployment 
Posonal Income Rate 

12) (3) 

St. Tanunany 
Pat ish School 

Enrollment 
(4) 

Median 
Age 
r :-,) 

2014 27,526 242,333 7.384,855,8-42 30.474 5 70.. 38.414-1 37 I 

2015 27,622 145,819 7.464,105,927 30.363 7 00 0 38.193 39 

2916 1 7,942 250,088 7.739,723,424 30.948 7 0% 38.439 38 6 

2017 28,013 253,602 7.867,241,244 31,022 5 9°0 38.681 38.4 

2018 27.883 256.327 8,149.147,984 31.792 6 1°0 39,0(10 38 3 

2019 27,711 255,111 8.556,121,539 33.149 5 3% 39.000 37.4 

2020 '7,633 260,419 8.906,590,219 34.201 9 7°0 39O10 37.7 

2021 28,781 264,570 9.169,467,060 34.658 4 9°0 39.000 37 7 

2022 28,658 2(i9,388 9,499,429.044 35.163 4 5°;.) 37.374 37.2 

2023 28.649 273.263 10,164.290,548 37.196 3 3°0 37,212 38 2 

NOTE: The City of Slidell is located within St. Tammany Parish 

Sources: 
(1) Based on U.S. Census Bureau 
k2) Information is based on U S Census Bureau. 

(3) LouNiana Department of Labor 
(4) St Tanimany Parish Schnnl Board 
(5) U S Ceu.sus Bureau 

119 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 17 

Employer Location 

 

20.73 

  

2011 

 

Employees Rank 

"n or T4Ilal 
St. Taininany 

Parish 
Employment Employees Rank 

"n or Lila] 
St. Taininany 

Parish 
Employment 

St. Tammany Parisli School Board Parish wide 5.873 I 5 05% 5.399 I 4 86% 

St. Tammany Health System Covington 2.c00 ' 2 15% 1.715 ' 1 54% 

Lakeview Regional Medical Center Covingtt at 95(1 3 O1OO. 807 5 0.730 4, 

Si. Tanunany Pansh Sheriff's Office Parish wide 802 4 0.69% 747 6 0.6 7(! 4 

Och.suer Medical Center - North Shore Slidell 565 5 0.49% 1.091 4 0.98% 

Rotolo Consultants Inc Slidell 45u 6 ti.39N 

  

ti.00".0 

City of Slidell Slidell 

  

O.011% 3-12 9  0.31% 

Pool Coiporanon Covington 429 7 0.37% 

  

13.011% 

Crossgates Family Fitness Slidell 30b 8 o.26°0 

  

0.00‘.0 

AYALA Hospital Covington 211 9 0.IM'''., 

  

0.00% 

Anvil kalSolutions LLC Covington 189 111 0.16"'., 

  

0.00% 

Testi on Marine & Land Systems Slidell 

   

494 S 0 44°0 

Tulane National Pi imate Reseal di Covington 

   

307 10 0 28% 

Louisiana Medical Center & Hearr Lacombe 

   

502 

 

0 45% 

Slidell Nlemoi ia I Hospital Slidell 

 

0 0.000. 1 186 3 I .07°0 

TOTALS 

 

$ 12 277 

 

10.56°0 $ 12 590 

 

10.26°. 

NOTE Infi onuation is only aVailable lior St Trunmany Pansh. nt which the City of Slidell is located. 

SOURCES 2023 infra illation North Shi ore Blok i of Lists 2022-2023. New Oilcans City Business and St. TIMIIIIM) ECOnoilliC 
Development FoungLatiou & www.STPSB org for St. Tammany Parish School Amid 
24114 information Book of Lists 24iI4-2tilS New Orleans Cary Business and via City of Slidell 2015 C.AFR 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
FULL - TLME EQUIVALENT CITY G.'tVERNM£NI EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 18 

Function 

     

Yeal 

    

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Geneial Governinent 

          

Atbnintstrauve 5 5 5 5 5 6.5 6.5 6 6 6 
Finance (1) 1 4 i 9 20 20 20 20 20 20.25 18 19.1 
Legal 1 _ " _ ' _ ' _ ' _ ' _ ' ' _ ' _ 4 
Civil Seivice 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 1 
Planning 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 3.5 4 4 5 4 
Legislative 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 

Pulthc Safety 

          

Police 104 105 105 106 106 108 108 117 123 138 
Alum! Control 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 6 6 7 

Public Works 

          

Public Operations (.2) 58.5 58.5 58.5 58.5 57.5 57.5 47.5 47 47 40 
Femurs 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 6.5 8 9 1/ 13 
Engineering 6 6 ti 6 6 6 6 6 7 6 

Public Utility (31 61.5 61.5 61.5 61.5 61.5 62.5 64.5 63 64 48 

Judicial System (4) 6 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 

 

6 

Recreation and Culture 1 3 1 3 

 

1 3 I 1 1 3 n. -,. , 3 3 2 

Auport l 1 , _ 

      

I 

DISA (5) 5 

      

3 3 3 

Total 313 314 316 316 31 7 318.5 321.5 

 

33,4 343.1 

Si lurce: Atli vied FY2023 Budget City of Slidell 

Note: Includes Elected. Unclassified. and Classified full time employees pei the original adopted budget. 
?n11 figures represent budgekd positions hy department. 

( 11 Includes Finance Administration, Data Processing. Purchasing and Risk Management 
(21 Includes Sales Tic( Administration, Vehicle Maintenance. Streets. Bi idges, Drainage. General Nlaintenance & Electrical. 
(31 hicludes Public Utility Administration, Wastewatei Treatnient Plant. Wastew-alei Collection & Water maintenance 
(4) Includes City COM. City Marshall and City Prosecutor 

DISA employees became full ume employees in 2014. Fioni 2008-2013 DISA employees were contract employees 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(UNAUDITED) 

TABLE 19 

Function 

    

Fucal Yeiir 

    

2014 2015 2016 2017 201$ 201'1) 2Wo 2021 7022 2023 

public Safety 

          

Total anests 2.647 2.649 2 503 2.215 2.585 2 488 2,172 1.802 1.863 1,776 
Parkmµ tickets 56 42 -ig 36 37 31 /8 20 23 60 
Ttattic violauons 3.349 2.799 2.677 1.541 3.'58 3.148 3.000 3.368 3 218 2.472 

Public Works 
Potholes repaired 

puhlic Utility 
Water 

1A35 

 

1 ,398 1,914 1.411 1.572 2,092 1.069 5'0 520 

Number of accounts 10,806 10.944 11.060 11,058 11.ltdo 10 793 10,868 10.884 11 359 11.353 
New meter connections '55 187 288 197 216 193 232 513 1 005 1.456 
old metei change out 14 20 26 23 ,, 11 32 32 45 15 
Daily avenge consumption (MGD) 3.2 3.3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Wastewater 

          

Number of accounts 10.514 10.638 10.733 10.711 10.777 11.187 11.266 11.291 10.946 10.942 
Avenge daily treated wastewater (MGM 4.27 3.93 4 16 4.03 3.88 4 41 4.04 -1.44 3 87 3.$2 

Building Peimits 

          

New residential 16 16 25 33 13 7 8 19 15 15 
Residential additions 213 177 185 210 I97 217 169 224 355 -i-i-i 

New eommerctal 27 39 13 11 ei 37 6 4 10 9 
Commercial addittons 121 97 134 III 109 101 109 135 126 129 

Recreation and Culture 

          

Number of teams in softball league 84 60 40 36 18 0 0 0 0 0 
Number of children on summer camp )74 175 174 175 175 175 0 76 100 88 
Park Pavilions Rentals 2 l 8 209 241 212 217 186 (35 135 175 158 

AuPon 

          

Number of land leases 16 16 15 15 15 14 14 14 13 13 
Number of tie downs 29 28 30 18 31 31 24 21 22 24 
Number of hanger kases 

 

1 l i 1 1 l 1 3 5 

Note Indicators are not available for the genetal govennuent function 

Sources Vanotts government departments 
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t'ITV OF SLIDELL.. 1.01.7s1ANA 
l'APIT 1L ASET STATISTIC'S BY S.W.-TRW 

LAST 1EN FIst AL YEARs 
.14A11.0 TED. 

TABLE 20 

F 
;014 ;1.1g ;016 ;01" ;MIS ;MO ;02°) ;021 ;0022 ;0023 

13 11 11 11 13 13 13 
a a I.i a 

.10acrol Gmemnono 
Velucle> 111 

Equpoosos la a 

Public Solely 
130 103 

Mocb.aery A Elopmeai lo 1g 
Swum 
Mono. Academy  

ILI lab 1110 120 190 224 
1'1 1'1 Iv 21 2" 2g 

I I I I I I 

193 
1g 

Public Works 
VelikleS T 1 05 ir MI T 1 05 00 el fp V 
Muhoomy 4 Leareiteal 9g M. 1114 111 I 1.1 111g 1114 11.1 113 31 g 
Pr/0J Wats 100100 I 5.2./. I 5?.5 15?.5 15?.5 I 54.1 I 54.0 154.7 155.4 I 55.0 155.3 
Lloturry4411 woos ..014-.. 12 7 12 5 12 7 12 7 12 7 12 7 12 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 
C0i..rege sow.. mar.; $f I $f .. $f .. 11b .1 $f .1 $f .1 8V 1 8V 1 $4. 1 $4. 3 
Avlsob woon tables. o4 " pi S pi S Ol '1 ea 1 02 2 DI ‘ DI ‘ teg it o' V 
..00C111011, j .,fig .i.o.7 ....a. $34C J...03 Z.4-'0 z.1S1 z.lRii ....r.1 ..."I 
lathe agalak. M M N. IU N. 4111 1U 1U N. at, 

PuSbc ...aloy 
Woo. 

Vehsclo I g 13 13 13 13 13 13 14 12 15 
‘13chniery* Ego.pme0 :0 :3 :3 's — :g :b :11 30 32 31 
Woe.. mom. (Asks. 1"z 2 179 1 1bl .. 11118 1510 4 l'..figi 111.1 4 I b4 0 I b4 0 1bl , 
MUMMA capAdy a n Ma Z 1001401 2 154:001 2 I $4 Mud 2 151:001 2 1501401 2 I 50:40. 2 I 50:40. 2 1501401 2 1001.101 2 100.44... 

0oreve boulv. lr3Dout l 
Sauk. ...i nolo stesige MA: 6.0 WA WA WA &la WA WA 6.0 WA WA 
P.0.10.4...e capa..” .!•11:O, I• 0 1'..1 1".1 I'.3 I'.0 1".0 I'.0 1•3. l'.0 1'.0 

seoer 
Winch.. 3 4 34 34 3g 31 3" 30 iv 30 42 
Msclosary A Nusrutoac .4.1 .ij xi xi ?.1 i . .41 5" .316 A 
Sousury X% at :Ado, 14.5 I 07.: 104.: 109.1 107.1 I ?OA I ?OA 171.5 172.1. I ?2.1. 
PLO wooly . MtiD I o 2 001 0 2 0 2 0 a 001 0 a o.a o.a o..1 

Recresona on.1(010001 Ars 
'I'ollikle... 12 12 12 11 11 12 12 II P. 11 
M....1onor! /4 Norval ....5 ,..4 .:112 No ;4 ?Q. ?: ?I ;Illa ,12 

Pak+. Dere..is 4m 24 4m 24 450 24 450 24 4.y. A 011 yi 450 50 4?4150 .en A 510  II 
Nunilin oirlonomokk .21 .23 23 23 .21 21 22 22 21 21 
140.010 of wax yen. 10 14 is is 10 10 10 1..1 10 10 
Nombor of pin, 2 - - 2 2 2 2 2 2 - 

001‘,0 
Wink> 1 $ 4 0 o o o ' ' 11 
14...1..0e.7 b Equpnbcou 4 ' • a la la la 14 1$ 110 
Fee of P.unsoy !Al 5.0‘11 54111 54111 5.0n1 5.411 5.411 !Al 5.411 5.411 
Teo. of Prallei Taxmay 4.000 4.01, 4.01t0 4.0110 4900 4MM 4.01 4MM 4MM 4.1.01 
Feel of Comecon* Timms). 1."12 1 ,,," 1."40 i :Nip i :niii 1."12 1 ."II i ."II l ."II l ."II 
Foci of Auburn Toiling $2.. $2.. ICSI $2.1 Ed 02.1 02.1 02.1 02.1 02.1 
Nuala of T-Haaort 3: 3: 1. .. 1. .. g .ij .ij .ij .ij .ij 
Fce....1T-Hoopor. Tauten :...43. 2..43. 2...410 2..‘11. 2...W. 2..40. 2..40. 2..40. 2..40. .2...13. 
.;4Fee...I T.Houger . .4O..10110 WIN, 34.1elti 510.141t0 52.220 322:0 322:0 322:0 322:0 32.5:0 

%duce+ Vanua% ory .beram000l* 
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION 



ERICKSEN KRENTEL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governrnent Audit 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of 
Slidell, Louisiana (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and 
have issued our report thereon dated December 8, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions 
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the City's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119 

P: (504) 486 7275 F: (504) 482 2516 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
ww . w.EricksenKrentel.com  
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the of financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an 
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government. Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's 
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 
Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a 
public document. 

December 8, 2023 
Mandeville, Louisiana 

Certified Public Accountants 
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY 

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited City of Slidell, Louisiana's (the "City") compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. The City's 
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs 
for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal. Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in 
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
City's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the 
requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements 
applicable to the City's federal programs. 

4227 Canal Street 
New Orleans, LA 70119 

P: (504) 486-7275 l F: (504) 482 2516 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
www. L ricksenKrentel.com  
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the 
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgety, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered 
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the City's compliance 
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government 
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City's compliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

• Obtain an understanding of the City's internal control over compliance relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and 
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

10141  

► 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to 
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit 
we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be 
material weaknesses, as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the City Council, the 
Louisiana Legislative Auditor, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities and 
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. Under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

December 8, 2023 
Mandeville, Louisiana 

/ ¿r 

Certified Public Accountants 
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CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENI)EI) JUNE 30, 2023  

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the federal 
grant activity of City of Slidell, Louisiana (the City) under programs of the federal government for 
the year ended June 30. 2023. The information in the schedule is presented in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code af Federal Regulations Part 200. Worm Administrative 
Requirements. Cost Principles. and Audit Requirement s fbr Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Because the schedule presents only a selected ponion of the operations of the City. it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash tlows of 
the City. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards has been prepared on the accrual 
basis of accounting. Grant re‘emies are recorded fim financial reporting purposes when the City 
has rnet the qualifications for the respective grants. 

Accrued and Deferred Reimbursement 

Various reimbursement procedures are used for federal awards received by the City. 
Consequently, timing differences between expenditures and program reimbursements can exist at 
the beginning and end of the year. Accnied balances at year end represent an excess of 
reimbursable expenditures over cash reimbursements and expenditures will be reversed in the 
remaining grant penod. 

Pass-Through Entity Information 

Pass-through entity identif-Ying nurnbers are presented where available. 

Payments to Subrecipients 

There were no payments to subrecipients for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. 

(3) INDIRECT COST RATE  

The City has elected not to use the 10% de mminns indirect cost rate alloNNed under the Uniform 
Guidance. 

(4) FEDERAL LOAN PROGRAMS 

As further described in Note 5 to the financial statements, the City has an outstanding Series 2021 
general obligation refunding bond with the State of Louisiana, Department of Environmental 
Quality (AL No. 66.458) (Loan No. 18-(►3-3213), originating in December 2021 with a 1.22% 
interest rate and a principal balance of $13,172,381 at June 30, 2023. 

As further described in Note 5 to the financial statements, the City has an outstanding Series 2022 
utility revenue bond with the State of Louisiana, Department of Health and Hospitals (AL No. 
66.458) (Loan No. 1103041-01), originating in January 2022 with a 2.00% interest rate and a 
principal balance of $2,566,268 at June 30, 2023. 
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CITY OF SLIDELL. LOUISIANA 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

A. SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

1. The independent auditors' report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial 
statements of the City of Slidell, Louisiana. 

No signiticant deticiencies or material weaknesses in internal control relating to the audit of the 
financial statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control mer 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial 
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Audtting Standards. 

3 No instances of noncompliance material to the tinancial statements of the City of Slidell, 
Louisiana were reported in the Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control m er Financial 
Reporting and on Compliance and ()ther Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditmg Standards. 

4. No significant deficiencies or material weaknesses relating to the audit of the major federal 
award programs are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major 
Prograni and on Internal Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance. 

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for the City of Slidell. 
Louisiana expresses an unmodified opinion. 

6 There were no audit findings required to he reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 
200.516(a). 

7. A rnanagernent letter was not issued for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

8. The proararns tested as major program were: 
AL Number 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 66.458 
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 20.205 

9 The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $750,000. 

10. City of Slidell, Louisiana was determined to he a low-risk auditee. 

B. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

There were no findings related to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD 
PROGRANIS 

There were no findinas related to major federal award programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

IP 



CITY OF SLIDELL, LOUISIANA 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OE PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 2023 

SECTION I - FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

There were no findings related to the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

SECTION II - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATED TO MAJOR FEDERAL 
AWARD PROGRAMS 

There were no ti dings related to major feder ard programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

SECTION III - MANAGEMENT LETTER 

A ma igement letter s not issued tor the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

December 8, 2023 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the 
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Slidell, Louisiana (the "City") for the year 
ended June 30, 2023. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about 
our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government. Auditing Standards 
and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing 
of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letters to you dated August 1, 2023. 
Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information 
related to our audit. 

Significant Audit Matters 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The 
significant accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements. Several new accounting policies were adopted as disclosed in Note 14 to the 
financial statements and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2023. We 
noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the 
financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates 
affecting the City's financial statements were: 

Management's estimate of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on 
historical water and sewer revenues, historical loss levels, and an analysis of the 
collectability of individual accounts. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to develop the allowance in determining that it is reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

4227 Canal Street 

New Orleans, LA 70119 

P: (504) 486 7275 F: (504) 482 2516 

Ericksen Krentel LLP 
www.EricksenKrentel.corn 

2895 Highway 190, Si.fi 213 

Manceville, LA 70471 
P: (985) 727 0777 F: (985) 727 6701 



ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
Page 2 

Management's estimate of the operating lease obligation is based on 
management's evaluation regarding the office space lease agreements We 
evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to calculate the finance lease 
obligation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of the depreciation expense is based on historical 
information regarding asset life and usefulness. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to calculate this expense in determining that it is reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of other post-employment benefits liability is based on 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability 
of occurrence of events far into the future. Assumptions include future 
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. We evaluated the key factors 
and assumptions used to calculate this expense in determining that it is reasonable 
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of claims liabilities at year-end are determined by the 
third-party administrator using historical data. We evaluated the key factors and 
assumptions used to calculate these liabilities in determining that they are 
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of pension liability is based on estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events 
far into the future. Assumptions include investment rate of return, projected salary 
increases, mortality rates, expected remaining service lives and cost of living 
adjustments. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to calculate this 
expense in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their 
significance to financial statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the 
financial statements were: 

The disclosures contained in Note 3 regarding the City's pension liability. 

The disclosures contained in Note 10 regarding litigation pending against the City 
describe the nature and status of such lawsuits and the assessment of the City's 
legal counsel as to the likelihood of unfavorable outcomes. 
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
Page 3 

The disclosures contained in Note 11 regarding the City's self-insurance and risk 
management present a reconciliation of the total claims liability for the current 
and two prior years for governmental and business-type activities. 
The disclosures contained in Note 12 regarding the City's unfunded other post-
employment benefits liability. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstaternents 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management. The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements 
of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. In addition, none 
of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to each opinion unit's financial statements taken 
as a whole. 

Disagreements with Management. 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated December 8, 2023. 

10141  
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ERICKSEN KRENTELLLP 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
Page 4 

Management Consultations with Other Independent. Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a 
consultation involves application of an accounting principle to City of Slidell's financial 
statements or a determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those 
statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to 
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such 
consultations with other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City of Slidell's auditors. 
However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and 
our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Matters 

We applied certain limited procedures to management's discussion and analysis, budgetary 
comparison information, schedule of changes in net OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule 
of employer contributions, schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability and 
schedule of contributions - retirement plan, which are required supplementary information (RSI) 
that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit 
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI. 

We were engaged to report on the combining and individual non-major governmental funds and 
fiduciary fund financial statements, non-major fund budgetary comparison schedules and 
supporting schedules, which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to 
this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the 
form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information 
complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the 
method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate 
and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the 
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial 
statements or to the financial statements themselves. 

10141  
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and Members of the City Council 

City of Slidell, Louisiana 
December 8, 2023 
Page 5 

We were not engaged to report on the introductory and statistical section, which accompany the 
financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on it. 

Restriction on Use 

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and 
management of the City of Slidell, Louisiana and is not intended to be, and should not be, used 
by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Very truly yours, 

Certified Public Accountants 



CITY OF SLIDELL  

LOUISIANA LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR 

STATEWIDE AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023  

ERICKSEN KRENTELL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 
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ERICKSEN KRENTEL, 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS • CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS' REPORT  
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

To the Members of the City Council 
And the Honorable Mayor 
City of Slidell, Louisiana 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the control and compliance (C/C) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor's (LLA's) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures 
(SAUPs) for the year ended June 30, 2023. The City of Slidell's management is responsible for those 
C/C areas identified in the AUPs. 

The City of Slidell has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to 
meet the intended purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C 
areas identified in LLA's SAUPs for the year ended June 30, 2023. Additionally, LLA has agreed to 
and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may 
not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all the items of 
interest to a user of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, 
users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their 
purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are attached in Schedule "1." 

We were engaged by the City of Slidell to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing 
Standards. We were not engaged to and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the 
objective of which would be the expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C 
areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had 
we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would have 
been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the City of Slidell and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 
in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures 
engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified 
in the SAUP's, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. 
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

December 8, 2023 
Mandeville, Louisiana 
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Schedule "1" 

CITY OF SLIDELL 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES 

FOR TI IF YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023 

WRITTEN POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

1. Procedures: (7btain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that 
they address each of the following categories and subcategories if applicable to public funds 
and the entity's operations: 

a) Budgeting. including preparing. adopting. monitoring, and amending the budget 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the 
vendor list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and 
purchase orders: (4) controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law: and (5) 
documentation required to be maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

c ) Disbursements, including processing. reviewing, and approving. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving. recording. and preparing deposits. Also, 
policies and procedures should include management's actions to determine the 
completeness of all collections for each type of revenue or agencv fund additions (e.g. 
periodic confirmation with outside parties, reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff 
procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number sequences, agency fund forfeiture 
monies confirmation). 

e) Payroll/Personnd, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time 
and attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process 
for employee(s) rate of pay or approval and maintenance of pay rate schedules. 

f) Contracting. including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard 
terms and conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, if applicable), including (1) how 
cards are to be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, 
(4) required approvers of statements. and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g.. determinine the 
reasonableness of fuel card purchases). 

h) Travel and evense reimbursement. including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar 
thresholds hy category of expense. (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required 
approvers. 

i) Ethics. including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 
42. 1111-1121, (2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place. (3) system to 
monitor possible ethics violations. and (4) a requiretnent that documentation is 
maintained to demonstrate that all employees and officials were notified of any changes 
to the entity's ethics policy . 

j) Debt Service, including (1) debt issuance approval. (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA 
reporting requirements. (3) debt reserve requirements. and (4) debt service requirements. 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (C(lNTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

WRITTEN POLICIES .4ND PROCEDURES CONTINUED 

k) InfOrtnation Technology Disa.ster Recoveryllusiness Continuity, including (1) 
identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a 
separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testingiverification that 
backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely 
application of all available system and software patches/updates. and (6) identification of 
personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event. 

1) Sevual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements kir (1) agency 
responsibilities and prohibitions,(2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

Results: The City's written policies and procedures address the functions of budgeting, 
purchasing, disbursements, receipts!collections, payrollipersonnel, contracting, credit cards, 
travel and expense reimbursement, ethics. debt service, inthrmation technology, disaster 
recovery, husiness continuity, fraud, and sexual harassment. 

BOARD OR FINANC'E COMMITTEE 

Procedures: Obtain and inspect the boardifinance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as 
well as the hoard's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect 
during the fiscal period. and. 

a) Observe that the board/finance conunittee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the board's enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other 
equivalent document. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model. observe that the 
minutes referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual coinparisons on the general 
fund, quarterly budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual 
budget- to-actual. at a minimum, on all special revenue funds. 

c) For govermnental entities. obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned 
fund halance in the general ftind. If the general ftind had a negative ending unassigned 
fund balance in the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one 
meeting during the fiscal period referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the 
negative unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 

Results: The board met with a quorum in accordance with the board's bylaws. Minutes 
reflect the review of the monthly financial report during the council meetings. EK notes that 
the monthly financial reporting package includes the budget to actual reports for each fund. 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (C(lNTINUED) 
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BANK RECONCILL4TIONS 

3. Procedures: Obtain a listing of entity bank accounts for the fiscal period from management 
and inanagement's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify 
the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly 
select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from 
the fiscal period. obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation Ibr 
each selected account, and observe that: 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the 
related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated or electronically logged); 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of managementiboard member who 
does not handle cash. post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation 
(e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and 

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that 
have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date. if 
applicable. 

Results: Bank reconciliations included evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of 
the related statement closing date and included evidence that a member of management who 
does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each hank reconciliation. 
The City did not have any reconciling items over 12 months from the statement closing date. 

COLLECTIONS (EXCLUDING ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS ) 

4. Procedure: Obtain a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for 
cash/checks!money mders (cash) are prepared and management's representation that the 
listing is complete. Randomly select 5 deposit sites (or all deposit sites if less than 5). 

Results: Obtained a listing of deposit sites for the fiscal period where deposits for 
cashicheckshnoney orders are prepared and management's representation that the listing is 
complete. One location where deposits are processed. 

5. Procedures: For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing of collection locations and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection 
location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and 
inspect written policies and procedures relating to employee job duties (if no written policies 
or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) at each collection location, and 
observe that job duties are properly wgregated at each collection location such that. 

a) Employees that are responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making 
bank deposits, unless another employeelofficial is responsible for reconciling collection 
documentation (e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

ci Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collection 
entries to the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers unless another employee/official is 
responsible for reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 
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COLLECTIONS (EXCLUDING ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFERS; CONTINUED) 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or 
subsidiary ledgers, by revenue source andlor agency fund additions, are not responsible 
for collecting cash, unless another employeeiofficial verities the reconciliation. 

Results: There are four collection sites. The City has separate employees for collecting cash 
and reconciling collection documentation. The employee responsible for collecting cash is 
not responsible for posting collection entries to the general ledger. The employee responsible 
for reconciling collections is not responsihle for collecting cash. 

6. Procedure: Obtain from management a copy of the bond or insurance policy for theft 
covering all employees who have access to cash. Observe that the bond or insurance policy 
for theft was enforced during the fiscal period. 

Results: The City maintains an insurance policy that covers employee theft. 

7. Procedures• Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for 
procedure 43 under "Bank Reconciliations's above (select the next deposit date 
chronologically if no deposits were made on the dates randomly selected and randomly select 
a deposit if multiple deposits are made on the same day). Obtain supporting documentation 
for each of the 10 deposits and. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per the bank statement. 

d) Observe that the deposit was made within one business day of receipt at the collection 
location (within one week if the depository is more than 10 miles from the collection 
location or the deposit is less than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or 
drawer). 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general ledger. 

Results: The related collection documentation was traced to deposit slips. The deposit slip 
total agrees to the actual deposit per the hank statement. Regular periodic deposits were 
made after collection. The actual deposit per the bank statement agreed to the general ledger. 

NON-P.4YROLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 

TRA PEL REIMBURSEMENTS, AND PETTY CASH PURCHASES)  

8. Procedure: Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all 
locations if less than 5). 

Results: Ohtained a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. One location processes payments. 
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NON-PAMOLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 
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9. Procedures:  For each location selected under #S above, ohtain a listing of those employees 
involved with non-payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and 
procedures relating to employee joh duties (if the agency has no written policies and 
procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties), and observe that job duties are 
properly segregated such that. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase, and placing an order/makine the purchase. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving payments to vendors. 

c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohihited from adding/modifying 
vendor files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes 
to vendor files. 

d) Either the employeeofficial responsible for signine checks mails the payment or gives 
the signed checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

e) Only employeesiofficials authorized to sign checks approve the electronic disbursement 
(release) of funds, whether through automated clearinghouse (ACH), electronic funds 
transfer (EFT), wire transfer, or some other electronic means. 

Results:  At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchase request, approving a 
purchase. placing an orderimaking the purchase, and processing and approving payments to 
vendors. The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from 
adding/modifying vendor tiles unless another official is responsible for periodically 
reviewing changes to vendor files. Either the employee responsihle for signing checks mails 
the payment or gives the signed checks to another employee to mail who is not responsible 
lbr processing payments. 

10. Procedures:  For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entity's non-payroll 
disbursement transaction population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain 
management's representation that the population is complete. Randomly select 5 
disbursements for each location, obtain supporting documentation for each transaction and: 

a) Observe that the disbursement matched the related original itemized invoice and that 
supporting documentation indicates that deliverables included on the invoice were 
received hy the entity. 

b) Observe that the disbursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initial.date, 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9. as applicable. 

Results: The 5 disbursements matched the related original invoicelbilling statement. The 

disbursement documentation included evidence of segregation of duties. 
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NON-PAYROLL DISBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING CARD PURCHASES/PAYMENTS, 

TRAVEL REIMBURSEMENTS, .4ND PETTY CASH PURCHASES; CONTINUED)  

11. Procedures: Using the entity's main operating account and the month selected in the Bank 
Reconciliations procedure, randomly select 5 non-payroll electronic disbursements (or all 
electronic disbursements if less than 5) and observe that each electronic disbursement was 

a ) Approved by only those persons authorized to disburse funds (e.g., sign checks) per the 
entity's policy, and approved by the required numher of authorized signers per the 
entity's policy. Note• if no electronic payments were made from the main operating 
account during the month selected the practitioner should select an alternative month 
and/or account for testing that does include electronic disbursements. 

b) Observe whether the dishursement documentation included evidence (e.g., initialidate. 
electronic logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicable. 

Results: The 5 disbursements were approved by an authorized person to disburse funds. The 

documentation included evidence of segregation of duties. 

CREI)IT CARDS/DEBIT C4RDS/FUEL C4RDS/P-CARDS 

12. Procedures: Ohtain from management a listing of all active credit cards. bank debit cards, 
fuel cards, and P-cards (cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the 
names of the persons who maintained possession of the cards. Ohtain management's 
representation that the listing is complete. 

Results: Obtained from management a listing of all active credit cards. hank debit cards, fuel 
cards, and P-cards for the fiscal period, including the card numhers and the names of the 
persons who maintained possession of the cards. Obtained management's representation that 
the listing is complete. 

13. Procedures: Using the listing prepared hy management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards 
if less than 5) that were used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly 
statement or combined statement for each card (for a dehit card, randomly select one monthly 
bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, and: 

a) Observe that there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g.. original receipts for credit/debit card purchases, 
exception reports for excessive fuel card usage) was reviewed and approved, in writing 
(or electronically approved), hy someone other than the authorized card holder. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

Results: The monthly statements selected contained supporting documentation that was 
reviewed and approved by someone other than the authorized card holder. No finance 
charges or late fees were assessed on the selected statements. 
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CREDIT CARDS/DEBIT CARDS/FUEL CARDS/P-CARDS (CONTINUED) 

14.Procedures:  Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 
above, excluding fuel cards, randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 
10) from each statement, and obtain supporting documentation for the transactions (i.e. each 
card should have 10 transactions subject to testing). For each transaction, observe that it is 
supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased, (2) 
written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) documentation of the 
individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, the 
practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a "missing receipt statement" that 
is subject to increased scrutiny. 

Results: For each transaction, there was an original itemized receipt that identified what was 
purchased, written documentation of the business/public purpose, and meal charges were not 
applicable. 

TRA VEL AND TRA VEL-RELA TED EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENTS (EXCLUDING 
CARD TRANSACTIONS)  

15.Procedures:  Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense 
reimbursements during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing or 
general ledger is complete. Randomly select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense 
reimbursement forms/prepaid expense documentation of each selected reimbursement, as 
well as the supporting documentation. For each of the 5 reimbursements selected: 

a) If reimbursed using a per diem, observe that the approved reimbursement rate is no more 
than those rates established either by the State of Louisiana or the U.S. General Services 
Administration (www.gsa.gov). 

b) If reimbursed using actual costs, observe that the reimbursement is supported by an 
original itemized receipt that identifies precisely what was purchased. 

c) Observe that each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose (for meal charges, observe that the documentation includes the names of those 
individuals participating) and other documentation required by written policy (procedure 
#1h). 

d) Observe that each reimbursement was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone 
other than the person receiving reimbursement. 

Results: The 5 reimbursements selected agreed to the reimbursement rate established by the 
State of Louisiana in PPM49 or original itemized receipt that identifies what was purchased 
for actual costs. Each reimbursement is supported by documentation of the business/public 
purpose and was reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the person 
receiving reimbursement. 
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CONTR4CTS 

16. Procedures:  Obtain from management a listing of all agreements!contracts for professional 
services. rnaterials and supplies, leases, and constniction activities that were initiated or 
renewed during the fiscal period. ()btain management's representation that the listing is 
cornplete. Randomly select 5 contracts (or all contracts if less than 5) from the listing, 
excluding the practitioner's contract, and• 

a) Observe that the contract was hid in accordance with the Louisiana Public Bid Law (e.g., 
solicited quotes or bids, advertised). if required by law. 

b) Observe that the contract was approved by the governing body:board. if required by 
policy or law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g. change order), observe that the miginal contract terms 
provided for such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the 
contract tertns (e.g. if approval is required for any amendment was approval 
documented). 

d) Randornly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain 
the supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe that the 
invoice and related payment ageed to the terms and conditions of the contract. 

Results: For the 5 contracts selected, the contracts were hid in accordance with the Louisiana 
Public Bid Law, were approved by the governing board, amendments were provided for in 
contract terms and were made in compliance with the contract terms. Payments selected for 
each of the 5 contracts agreed to the contract terms, invoice and related payment agreed to 
the terms and conditions of the contract. 

PAYROLL .4ND PERSONNEL  

17. Procedure: (abtain a listing of employees and officials employed during the tiscal period and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees or 
officials, obtain related paid salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized 
salariesipay rates in the personnel files. 

Results: Obtained a listing of employees and officials employed during the fiscal year and 
management's representations that the listing is complete. Randomly selected 5 employees or 
officials. obtained related paid salaries and personnel files, and agreed paid salaries to 
authorized salaries/pay rates in the personnel files. 

18. Procedures. Randomly select one pay period during the fiscal period. For the 5 employees 
or ofticials selected under 416 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation fbr 
the pay period, and: 

a) ()bserve that all selected employees or officials documented their daily attendance and 
leave (e.g., vacation, sick, compensatory). (Note: Generally, officials are not eligible to 
earn leave and do not docutnent their attendance and leave. However, if the official is 
earning leave according to a policy andior contract. the ofticial should document hisiher 
daily attendance and leave.) 
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PAYROLL AND PERSONNEL (CONTINUED)  

b) Observe that supervisors approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees or 
officials. 

c) Observe that anv leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entity's 
cumulative leave records. 

d) Observe that the rate paid to the employees or officials agee to the authorized salary/pay 
rate found within the personnel file. 

Results: All employees selected documented their daily attendance and leave; supervisors 
approved the attendance and leave of the selected employees and all leave accrued or taken 
during the pay period is reflected in the City's cumulative leave records. 

19. Procedures: Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination 
payments during the fiscal period and management's representation that the list is complete 
Randomly select two employees or officials, ohtain related documentation of the hours and 
pay rates used in management's tertnination payment calculations and the entity policy on 
termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee or officials' cuinulate leave records. 
agree the pay rates to the employee or officials' authorized pay rates in the employee or 
officials' personnel tiles. and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

Results: Termination payments agreed to the hours in the employee's cumulative leave 
records and ageed to the authorized pay rates in the employee's personnel files. 

20. Procedure: Obtain management's representation that employer and employee portions of 
third-party payroll related amounts (e.g. payroll taxes, retirement contributions. health 
insurance premiums, garnishments, workers' compensation premiums, etc.) have heen paid, 
and any associated forms have been filed, by required deadlines. 

Results: Employer and employee portions of payroll taxes, retirement contributions, health 
insurance premiums. and workers' compensation premiums have been paid. and associated 
forms have heen filed, by required deadlines. 

ETHICS 

21 Procedures.  Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure 416 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above• obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed one hour 
of ethics training during the fiscal period. 

b) Observe that the entity inaintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
ofticial were notified of any changes to the entity's ethics policy during the tiscal period. 
as applicable. 

Results: We performed the procedures, and the documentation demonstrates that each 
employee has completed one hour of ethics training and there were no changes to the entity's 
ethics policy during the fiscal period. 
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DEBT SERI, ICE 

22. Procedure: Obtain a listine of bonds/notes and other debt instruments issued during the 
tiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all debt 
instruments on the listing, obtain supporting documentation_ and observe that State Bond 
Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

Results: State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each debt instrument issued. 

1 3. Procedure: Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and 
rnanagernent's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, 
inspect debt covenants, obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and 
payments, and agree actual reserve balances and payments to those required by deht 
covenants (including contingency funds. short-lived asset funds. or other funds required by 
the debt covenants). 

Results: Reserve halance and payments a2ree to required amount. by debt covenants. 

FRAUD NOTICE 

24. Procedure: Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal 
period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all 
misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting docutnentation. and observe that the entity 
reported the misappropriation( s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the 
parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

Results: There were no inisappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal year. 

25. Procedure: Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice 
required hy R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or 
abuse of public funds. 

Results: The City has posted the required notice on its premises and website. 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DISASTER RECOVERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY 

26. Procedures: Perform the following procedures: 

a) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical 
data (tf no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsihle for hacking up critical 
data) and observe that such hackup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored 
on a physical medium (e.g.. tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted 
before being transported. 

b) Obtain and inspect the entity's most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that 
its backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible 
fbr testingiverifying backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification 
was successfully performed within the past 3 months. 



Schedule "1" (( ontinued) 

CITY OF SLIDELL 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES (C(lNTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2023  

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY DISASTER RECOPERY/BUSINESS CONTINUITY 
(CONTINUED), 

c) Obtain a listing of the entity's computers currently in use, and their related locations, and 
management's representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers 
and observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have current 
and active antivirus sofhvare and that the operating system and accounting system 
software in use are currently supported by the vendor. 

Results: We performed the procedures and discussed the results with mana2ement. 

SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

26. Procedures: Using the 5 randomly selected employeeslofficials from procedure #16 under 
"Payroll and Personnel" above, ohtain sexual harassment training documentation from 
management, and observe that the documentation demonstrates each employee/official 
completed at least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

Results: We performed the procedures and the 5 randomly selected employees completed at 
least one hour of sexual harassment training during the calendar year. 

'17. Procedure: Observe that the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint 
procedure on its website (or in a conspicuous location on the entity's premises if the entity 
does not have a website). 

Results: The City has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its 
website. 

28. Procedure: Obtain the entity's annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, 
observe that the report was dated on or before Fehniary 1. and observe that it includes the 
applicable requirements of R.S. 42.344: 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements: 

b) Number of sexual harassment complaints received hy the agency: 

c) Number of complaints which resulted in a finding that sexual harassment occurred: 

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resulted in discipline or 
corrective action: and 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Results: The City has completed its sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period 
dated betbre February l and it includes all applicable requirements. 
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